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At Browns Investments, innovation has always been a key factor of our investment strategy. We manage
a fast growing portfolio of industries and services that includes leisure and entertainment, plantations,
agriculture and construction among others. Our business sectors are as diverse as they are lucrative and our
fearlessly aggressive business model has seen your company go from strength to strength in the span of a
few years.

The strength and reputation of the Group are by now beyond doubt. The same could be said of the quality
of our business performance and our long-term viability. These are the characteristics we value most and
what we will build upon for the future as well. It is what makes us who we are.
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An outstanding enterprise with a very distinctive character.
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We know how to adapt. Our bold approach sees us investing on our own as well as together with trusted
joint venture partners. We’re not averse to the challenges posed by calculated risk: carefully balancing
risk and return is one of our greatest strengths. We see opportunity where others see none - a vision that
has driven us to make several significant acquisitions while investing aggressively in many areas of the
economy.

Browns Investments PLC is a member of Browns Group of Companies.
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	GROUP
		
2012/2013
2011/2012
		
Rs 000
Rs 000

Change
%

2012/2013
Rs 000

COMPANY
2011/2012
Rs 000

Change
%

2,056,549
2,936,425
2,746,092
2,623,498
2,565,533

27.63
(87.91)
(97.11)
(98.71)
(101.40)

71,168
544,881
375,011
375,011
375,011

210,286
(67,836)
(152,565)
(201,374)
(201,374)

(66.16)
903.23
345.80
286.23
286.23

Earnings Highlights
Turnover
EBIT
Profit Before Tax
Profit After Tax
Profit Attributable to Equity holders

Rs.000
Rs.000
Rs.000
Rs.000
Rs.000

Balance Sheet Highlights
Total Assets
Total Debt
Total Shareholders’ Funds
Number of Shares Issued

Rs.000
Rs.000
Rs.000
No.000

16,237,604
1,874,858
10,653,731
1,860,000

16,167,861
1,952,316
10,610,589
1,860,000

0.43
(3.97)
0.41
-

7,585,242
972,670
6,510,769
1,860,000

7,348,661
1,053,401
6,129,273
1,860,000

Rs.
Rs.

(0.02)
5.73

1.39
5.70

(101.40)
0.5

0.20
3.50

(0.11)
3.30

286.23
6.22

17.04
14.82
2.44
1.29
2.51
2.19
0.27

20.59
15.45
20.13
15.43
2.10
18.16
23.54

(17.23)
(4.13)
(87.87)
(91.65)
19.43
(87.97)
(98.86)

100.00
14.94
7.28
3.21
10.02
7.18
5.93

100.00
17.19
(0.94)
(0.80)
2.97
(0.92)
(3.20)

(13.07)
870.95
500.64
237.17
878.18
285.43

Share Information
Earnings Per Share *
Net Assets Per Share **
Financial Ratios
Gross Profit
Debt to Equity
Return on Capital Employed
Interest Cover
Current Ratio
Return on Total Assets
Return on Equity

%
%
%
Times
Times
%
%

2,624,821
354,883
79,423
33,928
(35,815)

* Earnings per share has been adjusted for weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year (has been adjusted for previous years).
** Net Assets per share has been computed for the total number of shares issued as at 31st March 2013.

3.22
(7.66)
6.22
-

Group Revenue

10/11
11/12

11/12
12/13

Group Net Assets

Rs.
Bn
Group Net Assets

10.65
12/13

09/10
11/12

10/11
11/12

Rs.
Group Revenue
Rs.2,625Mn

Rs.10,654Mn

10/11

Rs.2,057Mn

Rs.10,611Mn

09/10

Rs.3,016Mn
Rs.7,888Mn

Rs.2,447Mn

Rs.2,452Mn

Rs.10,654Mn

Rs.2,625Mn

Rs.10,611Mn

Rs.2,057Mn

Rs.3,016Mn

Rs.2,452Mn

Rs.7,888Mn

10/11

Group Revenue

2,625
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09/10
09/10
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Rs.2,447Mn

2012/13 at a glance

Group Net Assets
12/13

12/13

M

ORE THAN
JUST THE CHASE
FOR REVENUE
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

In line with Brown and Company PLC’s
vision of having a presence in the
sunshine industries that are expected
to lead national growth, Browns
Investments has made known its presence
in the diversified industries of Agri
Business and Plantations, Leisure and
Entertainment, Construction, Exports
and Manufacturing.
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Mr. I.C. Nanayakkara
Executive Chairman/Executive Director
Dear Stakeholders,
On behalf of the Board of Directors of Browns Investments PLC, it is my pleasure to
present to you the Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31st
March 2013, and to briefly review the performance of the Company during this period.
Browns Investments PLC (BI) is a member of Browns Group of Companies which was
listed on the Diri Savi Board of the Colombo Stock Exchange since July 2011.
In line with Brown and Company PLC’s vision of having a presence in the sunshine
industries that are expected to lead national growth, Browns Investments has made
known its presence in the diversified industries of Agri Business and Plantations, Leisure
and Entertainment, Construction, Exports and Manufacturing.

movement during the first half of the year under review. The economy also felt the
effects of the curtailing of credit as well as the depreciation of the rupee. The economic
downturn experienced throughout the Globe also resulted in a low demand for Sri
Lankan products in the western markets.
Operational and Financial performance
The country and the Company were affected by the significant droughts followed by rain
that negatively impacted the agriculture sector as a whole. Amidst these unfavourable
climatic conditions, the Plantations and Agri business sectors of BI reaped many
benefits of group synergies through the parent company Browns including having Agstar
Fertilizer PLC, a supplier of fertilizer and crop care products in its portfolio. The sector
posted favourable financial results during the year, driven by marginal increases in tea
prices and productivity improvement due to better practices.

After a year of strategic expansions in the 2011/2012 time period, this year the
company resolved to follow a path of consolidating its investments whilst making value
addition enhancements to its operations in 2012/2013.

BI holds a 30% stake in LOLC Leisure Ltd which is going ahead with major
refurbishment plans of its hotels at the moment. Palm Gardens, Riverina and Tropical
Villas were demolished during the year to commence the building of a 400 room 5 star
hotel in the combined property that will be managed by an international brand once in
operation. Eden Resorts and Spa, which is the only five star on the southern coast, is
currently undergoing a partial refurbishment while being profitably operational.

During the year, the Sri Lankan economy recorded a growth of 6.4% when compared
to the successive 8% growths recorded in the two previous years. The high interest
rates that were experienced towards the end of the previous year continued its upward

BI’s other leisure project in Kosgoda, the Samudra Beach Resorts (Pvt) Ltd, a 150 room
star hotel is progressing ahead of the plan and the company is awaiting approval to
expand the number of rooms to 172.

In 2011, the company which entered the entertainment sector through its investment
in Excel world, the biggest entertainment park in Colombo, gave a facelift to enhance
the conference and meeting facilities Excel world during the year under review. In the
long term, the Company plans to convert the six acre land in to a mixed development
with the hope of capitalizing on the government’s plan of expanding the Colombo City
to make it a landmark tourist and a commercial hub.
Performance in the Construction sector with the Company’s investment in Sierra
Constructions (Pvt) Ltd, one of the leading players in the construction sector, and Ajax
Engineers (Pvt) Ltd , the market leader in manufacturing glass and aluminium doors
and windows has been positive, given the natural post war boom in the construction
Industry. The construction sector is expected to do well in the rapid economic
development taking place in the island and we are hopeful of gaining our fair share of
profit by being a frontrunner in this sector.
The economic downturn in the western world and the supply of low priced goods from
the Chinese market made it a highly competitive year for the company’s manufacturing
subsidiary, Royal Fernwood Porcelain Ltd (RFPL). Currently, RFPL products are exported
to key clients in niche markets and are also supplied to local market through the
Browns dealer network which was also expanded during the year. The company plans
to expand its operations aggressively - by introducing new designs to local and export
markets, increasing factory efficiencies such as re-aligning logistics and improving the
sourcing of raw materials in order to compete on better price points.

The country and the company were affected
by the significant droughts followed
by rain that negatively impacted the
agriculture sector as a whole. Amidst these
unfavourable climatic conditions, the
Plantations and Agri business sectors of
Browns Investments reaped many benefits of
group synergies through the parent company
Browns including having Agstar Fertilizer
PLC, a supplier of fertilizer and crop care
products in its portfolio. The sector posted
favourable financial results during the
year driven by marginal increases in tea
prices and productivity improvement due to
better practices.

The slow sentiments in the Colombo Stock Exchange in the year under review were
reflected in the performance of the company’s portfolio of listed companies.
Approximately Rs.1Bn is our trading portfolio which includes investments in Financial
Services, Diversified Holdings, Agriculture and Plantation sectors which has been
negatively affected by the performance of the Colombo Stock Exchange. However the
higher interest rates did result in an improvement in interest income for the company.
Given the prevailing conditions, the company maintained a creditable performance
during the year under review. The Company’s profit for the year was Rs.375Mn,
inclusive of other income of Rs.492Mn compared to a loss of Rs.201Mn last year.
Group profit excluding negative goodwill remained on par during the two years.
Appreciations
In conclusion, I wish to record my sincere appreciation towards all our employees
for their dedication and commitment and the Board of Directors for their strategic
contribution. I would also like to thank our joint venture partners for their
uncompromised confidence in the Company and we look forward to working together
with them in the future.
My sincere appreciation goes to our outgoing chairperson Mrs. Rohini Nanayakkara who
retired during the last quarter of the financial year after 2 years of providing leadership
and guidance to Browns Investments and to the Browns Group. I would also like to
thank outgoing Director Mr. Nishan Fernando for the support given during his tenure on
the Board and warmly welcome Mrs. Kalsha Amarasinghe and Mr. Kapila Jayawardena
who were appointed to the Board of Browns Investments on 27th September 2012.
With the diversified portfolio that BI has, it is evident that the risks are carefully
mitigated, resources are fully optimized, strategies are identified and opportunities are
unlimited.
So let’s look forward to a great year ahead!

Mr. I.C. Nanayakkara
Executive Chairman/Executive Director
30th July 2013
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On post balance sheet, Browns Investments acquired Green Paradise Resort, a 67
roomed exclusive property in Dambulla to fill the central province vacuum in its leisure
portfolio. Green Paradise Resort, built to luxurious Italian design specifications and
opened to the public only in April 2012.

On post balance sheet, Browns
Investments acquired Green Paradise
Resort, a 67 room exclusive property
in Dambulla to fill the central
province vacuum in its leisure
portfolio. Green Paradise Resort,
built to luxurious Italian design
specifications and opened to the
public only in April 2012.
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Furthering its Leisure portfolio, the company is also awaiting approvals for the two
proposed boutique hotels in the Maturata and Pussellawa plantations.

I

N A WORD,
I T’S CHARACTER
Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer’s Review

to acceleration in private sector loan growth and increased inflation. Inflation rose from
around 3.8% in 2011 to 9.2% in 2012. The increase in CCPI was driven by price
circulation in the food and non-alcoholic beverage sector as well as certain non-food
categories. Increased oil prices contributed to the increase as well.
While imports dropped by 6% in 2012 exports declined by 7% resulted in a trade
deficit of over US$ 9 billion by the end of 2012. The Central Bank of Sri Lanka which
had largely ceased its intervention in the foreign exchange markets by the end of 2011
allowed a gradual depreciation of Rupee against USD resulting in a 16% depreciation
in the first half of 2012. The Rupee which was traded at around 113.90 by January
2012 declined to around 128 by the end of the year.
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Mr. P.R. Saldin
Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer
Dear Stakeholders,
I am pleased to present to you a review of the performance of Browns Investments PLC
for the year ended 31st March 2013. Browns Investments PLC a subsidiary of Brown
& Company PLC and a member of the LOLC group was listed on the Diri Savi Board of
the Colombo Stock Exchange in July 2011. The investment strategy followed by the
company is to invest in growing sectors of the economy on its own or with investment
partners.
In the year 2012 which was the 3rd year after the end of the war the Sri Lankan
economy recorded a growth of 6.4%. This was a decline from the 8% growth in
previous years. The economic landscape was affected by a number of factors including
a significant drought followed by floods in major areas of agricultural production. From
a global perspective the economic downturn resulted in a low demand for Sri Lankan
products. In this economic backdrop your company performed reasonably well and
obtained a growth in certain areas of the investment portfolio.
Interest rates which commenced an upward movement in 2011 continued to rise in
2012. The AWLPR which was 11.41% in January 2012 increased to 14.38% by
February 2013. The tightening interest rate policy by the Central Bank was in response

While the agricultural sector was significantly impacted by drought and subsequent
floods, the Plantation sector showed improved results with higher tea prices even
though rubber prices which had been increasing in the last few years declined. The
tourism industry witnessed development during the year and tourist arrivals increased

The company which had grown
exponentially in the previous 2 years
mostly consolidated investments during
the period under review in our chosen
areas of investment of Agriculture,
Leisure and Entertainment,
Construction, Plantations and
Manufacturing. The company continued
to develop its investments and add
value.
from a war time figure of 448,000 in 2009 to over a million in 2012. The construction
industry grew at 21.6%.
The Colombo Stock Exchange had a disappointing year. After a significant rise in the
period soon after the end of the conflict, the Colombo Stock Exchange continued to

The company which had grown exponentially in the previous 2 years mostly
consolidated investments during the period under review in our chosen areas of
investment of Agriculture, Leisure and Entertainment, Construction, Plantations and
Manufacturing. The company continued to develop its investments and add value.
The company’s subsidiary Samudra Beach Resorts (Pvt) Ltd’s hotel project to build a
150 roomed hotel in Kosgoda continued ahead of schedule. It is envisaged that with
requisite approvals the hotel be expanded to 172 rooms, and the hotel would be of a
five star status. The site is of a unique nature as it is on the Western beachfront with
two water bodies on the North and the South. Negotiations with international hotel
management chains are progressing, to have the property managed by an international
hotel chain.
Browns Investments PLC holds a 30% equity in LOLC Leisure with the balance 70% held
by Lanka Orix Leasing Co PLC. LOLC Leisure operates Eden Resort & Spa and Dickwella
Resort & Spa. These two hotels continued to operate successfully during the year. The
company also owns the properties where the former Riverina, Club Palm Garden and
Tropical Villas were situated. The buildings on this property are being demolished and
plans are being carried out to build a 400 roomed star class hotel on this property. This
hotel will once again be managed by an international hotel chain. These properties of
LOLC Leisure and Browns Investments PLC together make our group the operator of the
largest number of hotel rooms on the western coast.
Browns Investment’s joint venture company F L C Holdings PLC had an improved year.
Although there was some decline in rubber prices, improved tea prices and volumes
resulted in improved profitability during the year. F L C Holdings PLC which has in
its portfolio a number of well-known marks such as High Forest, Ragala, Rothschild,
Liddesdale, Delta and Helboda continued to improve on productivity and cost controls
impacted bottom line for performance. The company’s property project to build a
commercial tower in Borella is expected to be completed in 2014 and will provide
80,000 sq ft of rentable space encompassing 12 stories.

F L C Holdings PLC along with its subsidiary, F L C Hydro Power PLC now operates two
mini-hydro power plants in the estates and will continue to expand its capacity over the
next few years.
The company’s manufacturing subsidiary, Royal Fernwood Porcelain Ltd which
manufactures high quality porcelainware for the local and export markets had a difficult
year. Continued low demand in Western market coupled with stringent competition
from other Asian countries made export markets difficult. Imports of cheaper Chinese
products in the local market also impacted local sales. Increased cost of energy in the
form of the higher prices of liquid petrol further impacted production cost. The building
of the distribution network by Browns for local sales was carried out with increased
dealer network and initiatives are being carried out to obtain niche markets in the
export sector.
In the agriculture sector the company’s associate company, Agstar Fertilizers PLC had a
good year despite adverse weather conditions with strong impacts in agriculture, higher
interest rates and a significant delay in the Government treasury paying the subsidy.
The company’s strategy of efficiencies in purchasing, production and distribution as well
as high levels of services bore fruits in the fertilizer sector. The company acquired an
9 Acre block of land in Ja-Ela to re-locate its blending plant and stores during the year.
This facility will be operational in early May. Significant delays by the treasury in paying
subsidy which was due, continued to be a negative factor.
The company’s subsidiary, Excel Global Holdings (Pvt) Ltd a subsidiary company of
Millennium Development (Pvt) Ltd has leasehold rights for the property termed Excel
World which showed an improved performance during the year. The plans to build a
one of a kind mixed mega development project including entertainment and leisure,
conferencing restaurants, shopping and lifestyle areas are being designed. Preliminary
designs have been drawn up and discussions are being carried out with potential joint
venture parties. In the interim period minor improvements in current facilities have been
carried out to improve customer satisfaction and recognition.
In the construction sector, company’s subsidiary Ajax Engineers (Pvt) Ltd had limited
revenue in the year under review. This is due to the fact that current contracts are
coming to an end and new contracts had not been finalized during the year. However, a
significant number of contracts are being finalized at present and a significant improved
outlook is expected in the next year. The Sierra Holdings (Pvt) Ltd and
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flounder. This was a result of higher interest rates, tightness of the global economy and
perception of the investors in the local market.

The depressed level of activity in the Colombo
Stock Exchange was reflected in the
performance of the company’s portfolio of listed
companies shares, while higher interest rates
resulted in improvements in interest income
for the company in its loans granted, overall
interest cost increased as a result of higher rates
and borrowings to meet its projects.
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The company’s subsidiary Samudra Beach
Resorts (Pvt) Ltd’s hotel project to build
a 150 roomed hotel in Kosgoda continued
ahead of schedule. It is envisaged that with
requisite approvals the hotel be expanded to
172 rooms, and the hotel would be of a five
star status. The site is of a unique nature as
it is on the Western beachfront with two
water bodies on the North and the South.
Negotiations with international hotel
management chains are progressing, to have
the property managed by an international
hotel chain.

Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer’s Review (Contd.)

Sierra Constructions (Pvt) Ltd in which Browns Investments PLC has an investment had
an improved year. Increased economic achievement in the construction area resulted in
improved revenue and profitability.
The depressed level of activity in the Colombo Stock Exchange was reflected in the
performance of the company’s portfolio of listed companies shares, while higher interest
rates resulted in improvements in interest income for the company in its loans granted,
overall interest cost increased as a result of higher rates and borrowings to meet its
projects.
During the year Mrs. Rohini Nanayakkara our Chairperson from inception retired and I
would like to place on record my thanks and appreciation for her advice and support
during her tenure as Chairperson.
I warmly welcome Mr. I.C. Nanayakkara who was appointed to the Board of Directors
as the Executive Chairman during the year. I also wish to welcome Mr. Kapila
Jayawardena and Mrs. Kalsha Amarasinghe who were appointed to the Board of
Directors during the year.
In conclusion I thank our joint venture partners, shareholders and financial institutions
for their support as well as our employees for their commitment, dedication and hard
work. I would also like to thank the staff of Brown & Company PLC who provide much
of our support services.
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Mr. P.R. Saldin
Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer
30th July 2013

Board
OF DIRECTORS

Seated Left to Right

Standing Left to Right

I.C. Nanayakkara - Executive Chairman/Executive Director
P.R. Saldin - Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer

R.P. Sugathadasa - Non-Executive Director, N.M. Prakash - Executive Director,
D.S.K. Amarasekera - Non-Executive Director, S. Furkhan - Non-Executive Director,
Mrs. K.U. Amarasinghe - Non-Executive Director, W.D.K. Jayawardena - Non-Executive Director,
A.G. Weerasinghe - Independent Non-Executive Director,
S.V. Somasunderam - Non-Executive Director
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MEET OUR LEADERSHIP

Board OF DIRECTORS
Mr. I.C. Nanayakkara
Executive Chairman/Executive Director

He has over 20 years of experience at top management level in the areas of Finance,
Human Resource Development, General Management and Operations.

Mr. Ishara Nanayakkara is an astute businessman who holds Directorial positions in
many corporates and conglomerates in Sri Lanka.

Presently Mr. Saldin serves as the Group Chief Operating Officer of the Browns Group of
Companies and Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer of Browns Investments PLC.
He also serves on the Board of Directors of a number of listed and unlisted companies.

He ventured into the arena of financial services with the strategic investment in LOLC
PLC and was appointed to the Board in 2002. He has an exposure to an array of
financial services through his stewardship in two flagship finance companies in the
group – Lanka ORIX Finance PLC and Commercial Leasing and Finance PLC (CLC)
where he is involved as an Executive Director and Chairman respectively.
He is also involved in both life and general insurance through LOLC Insurance Company
and in stock broking through LOLC Securities Company, factoring through LOLC Factors
and deeply involved in micro finance and Islamic finance. He is recently appointed as
the Deputy Chairman of Seylan Bank, reinstating his expertise in the banking sector.
His interest in Micro Finance is evident through his recurrent contribution to PRASAC,
the largest microfinance Company in Cambodia and in his own initiative, LOLC Micro
Credit Ltd, one of the largest private sector microfinance institutions in Sri Lanka, where
he currently serves as the Chairman. This commitment is further extended through his
newest venture in LOLC Myanmar Micro Finance Company Ltd, where he is the founding
chairman. He was instrumental in the recent joint venture of BRAC and LOLC.
His passion for Renewable energy is reflected through the energy portfolio of the LOLC
Group - comprising of hydro power, agri waste and bio- mass – a promising source of
alternate energy. The sustainable investments of the LOLC Group companies are poised
to offer their share to the environment.
Mr. Nanayakkara is also conversant in sustainable Forestry and Plantation through
group companies - Maturata Plantations Ltd, Pussellawa Plantations Ltd and Gal Oya
Plantations (Pvt) Ltd. The Agstar Fertilizers PLC, a leading agri input provider in the
country, has further enhanced the Group’s contribution to the agriculture & plantation
sectors.
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The participation in Sierra Constructions Pvt Ltd, one of the largest construction
companies in the country is timely, considering the contribution of the construction
sector to the post war development.
Mr. Nanayakkara is focused on the immense opportunities presented by the leisure
sector. With the acquisitions of some of the leading hotels in the Southern coast
alongside key properties in the North and East, development plans are underway for
the leisure subsidiaries of LOLC Group and Browns Group – Eden Hotel Lanka PLC, Palm
Garden Hotels PLC, Tropical Villas Pvt Ltd, Riverina Resorts Pvt Ltd and Dickwella Resorts
Pvt Ltd, Samudra Beach Resorts (Pvt) Ltd in Kosgoda and Green Paradise Agro-Eco
Hotel in Dambulla.
Mr. Nanayakkara is the Executive Chairman of Brown and Company PLC, the holding
company of Browns Group, a conglomerate with leading market position in trade,
leisure, manufacturing, consumer appliances and agriculture equipment.

He was previously Country Controller for Royal Dutch Shell in Sri Lanka and Finance
Director of Shell Gas Lanka Ltd and Shell Terminal Lanka Ltd. Mr. Saldin also served as
Group Finance Director and Commercial Director of CIC Holdings PLC. He also served on
the Board of Directors of number of listed and unlisted companies in the CIC Group.
Mr. N.M. Prakash
Executive Director
Mr. Prakash holds an MBA from University of Southern Queensland and is also a
Certified Professional Marketer (Asia Pacific) and a Certified Management Accountant
(Aust). He also holds an Executive Diploma in Business Administration from the
University of Colombo and is an Alumni of National University of Singapore & Asian
Institute of Management, Manila. He is a Fellow of the Chartered Management Institute
(London) and Certified Professional Managers, Sri Lanka.
He served as the Sales Director for Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC, a multinational company
involved in retailing of durables. Mr. Prakash has also served as the Deputy Credit
Director and Credit Manager for many years handling the marketing and management
of hire purchase and related credit portfolios at Singer. He also served in the Boards of
Singer (Sri Lanka) Ltd, Singer Finance Lanka Ltd and Singer Industries (Ceylon) Ltd.
At present, he is the Group Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer of Browns
Group of Companies, a public quoted conglomerate involved in trading, manufacturing,
finance, travel & tours, plantations and investments.
Mr. A.G. Weerasinghe
Independent Non-Executive Director
Mr. Weerasinghe is an experienced senior banker who joined the Taprobane Group of
Companies in June 2012. Presently he serves as the Chairman of Taprobane Securities
(Pvt) Ltd, Taprobane Investments (Pvt) Ltd, Lexinton Holdings (Pvt) Ltd, Taprobane
Wealth Plus (Pvt) Ltd, and Heron Agro Products (Pvt) Ltd.
He is an Associate and a Fellow member of the Institute of Bankers, Sri Lanka and also
holds a B.A. in Economics from the University of Ceylon, Peradeniya. Mr. Weerasinghe
served as an Assistant Lecturer in Economics, University of Ceylon, Peradeniya. He was
also a former President of Sri Lanka FOREX Association and a member of the Sri Lanka
Cricket Board.
Mr. Weerasinghe was the former Deputy General Manager, Corporate Banking at
Bank of Ceylon. He has served as Country Manager, Bank of Ceylon, London and
Deputy General Manager, International at Seylan Bank. He was a Director and was
subsequently appointed as the Chairman of Pan Asia Banking Corporation PLC in March
2008, and continued his service till March, 2012.

He holds a diploma in Business Accounting from Australia.

At present he serves on the Boards of many renowned companies in Sri Lanka, namely,
Agstar Fertilizers PLC, Ceylon Leather Products PLC, Dankotuwa Porcelain PLC, South
Asia Textile Industries Lanka (Pvt) Ltd, Colombo City Holdings PLC, and is the Chairman
of Ascot Holdings PLC.

Mr. P.R. Saldin
Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Rimoe Saldin is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. He
is also a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants in the United
Kingdom and a Certified Management Accountant, Australia. He is an Alumni of the
Asian Institute of Management, Manila.

Mr. D.S.K. Amarasekera
Non-Executive Director
Mr. Kamantha Amarasekera is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Sri Lanka and is an Attorney-at-law of the Supreme Court of Sri Lanka. He also holds
a degree in Business Administration from the University of Sri Jayawardenapura and
began his career in the year 1998.

Mr. Nanayakkara’s involvement in multifaceted business fields is conclusive proof of his
perpetual interest on the growth sectors of the Sri Lankan economy.

Mr. Amarasekera is an eminent Tax Consultant and the Senior Tax and Legal Partner of
Amerasekera & Company, a leading tax consultancy firm in the country.

Mr. Somasunderam is also Managing Director and Chairman of Lexus Developers Ltd. It
was established in 2005 for the purpose of constructing apartments.

Mr. S. Furkhan
Non-Executive Director
Mr. Stefan Furkhan joined the hospitality industry in 1984 having had his initial training
in Germany and Australia and possesses over 25 years of experience in the tourism and
hospitality industry in Australia and Sri Lanka.

Mr. Somasunderam is also an investor in the Sri Lankan stock market with the blue chip
companies.

He is a Graduate Diploma Holder and Fellow Member of the Chartered Institute of
Marketing, UK (CIM), the premier professional marketing body in the world, and a
Member of the Institute of Hospitality, UK. Mr. Furkhan was a former Vice President of
the Tourist Hotels Association of Sri Lanka (THASL), and the Chairman of its Marketing
Sub-Committee. He also served on the PATA Sri Lanka Chapter Board.

Mr. W.D.K. Jayawardena
Non-Executive Director
Mr Kapila Jayawardena holds an MBA in Financial Management, is an Associate of the
Institute of Cost and Executive Accountants and was awarded Fellowship of the Institute
of Bankers (IBSL) in 2006.
He has varied experience in the fields of Banking, Audit, Relationship Management,
Corporate Finance, Corporate Banking, Investment Banking and Treasury Management.

Mr. Furkhan has had extensive experience in the setting up, Project Management and
launching of new Green Field Hotel Projects in Sri Lanka, Bangladesh and Australia. He
also functioned as the Managing Director of the Confifi Group Hotels until recently.

Mr Jayawardena was appointed as the Chairman of the Sri Lanka Banks Association
(SLBA) in 2003/04 and served as President of the American Chamber of Commerce in
Sri Lanka in 2006/2007.

During his career he has been instrumental in identifying and introducing several
new concepts to the tourism industry in Sri Lanka. He was adjudged the winner of
the Chartered Institute of Marketing, Marketer Awards 2001, in recognition of his
marketing efforts in the hospitality industry.

He served as a Director of Lanka Clear, National Institute of Business Management
(NIBM) and The Institute of Bankers (IBSL).

Mr. Furkhan is currently Chairman of Confifi Capital (Pvt) Ltd., which privately manages
funds for Investments, Equities and Venture Capital. He is also a Director of Eden Hotel
Lanka PLC since incorporation in January 1992. He is also a Promoter and Director
of Sino Lanka Hotels Holdings (Pvt) Ltd., which is a newly set up joint venture hotel
development and owning Company that currently has three new hotel projects under
development. He is also actively involved in promoting new tourism developments in a
personal capacity.

He was presented with the prestigious Combined Support Group Award by the US
Navy for services rendered after the Tsunami in 2005. The Government of Sri Lanka
appointed him to the Board of the Sri Lanka Fulbright Commission in 2010.
Mr. Jayawardena was appointed to the Council of the National Chamber of Commerce
of Sri Lanka on 27th January 2011.

Mr. Sugathadasa also serves as a Director of Environmental Resources Investment PLC,
Dankotuwa Porcelain PLC, Colombo City Holdings PLC, South Asia Textile Industries
Lanka (Pvt) Ltd and Samudra Beach Resorts (Pvt) Limited.

Mr Jayawardena is also the Chairman of Lanka Orix Finance PLC, LOLC Insurance Ltd,
LOLC General Insurance Ltd, LOLC Life Insurance Ltd, LOLC Securities Ltd, Speed Italia
(Pvt) Ltd, United Dendro Energy (Pvt) Ltd, Palm Garden Hotels PLC, Riverina Resorts
(Pvt) Ltd and Eden Hotel Lanka PLC.
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Mr Jayawardena has over 27 years experience in all areas of banking out of which 9
years was in the capacity of CEO/Country Head Citibank Sri Lanka and Maldives. He
was the first Sri Lankan to be appointed as a Senior Credit Officer (SCO) by Citibank in
Sri Lanka. During his leadership Citibank in Sri Lanka was rated AAA by Fitch Rating in
Sri Lanka. Citibank Sri Lanka was the first foreign bank to obtain a AAA rating.

Mr. S.V. Somasunderam
Non-Executive Director
Mr. Somasunderam is a Chartered Management Accountant and a fellow member of
CIMA (U.K.)

He is the Group Managing Director/CEO of Lanka ORIX Leasing Company PLC and serves
on the Boards of LOLC Micro Credit Ltd, and Commercial Leasing & Finance PLC.
Mr Jayawardena is also a Director of Brown & Company PLC.
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Mr. R.P. Sugathadasa
Non-Executive Director
Mr. Ruwan Sugathadasa possess over 16 years’ experience in Government and
Corporate Debt Market including over 10 years in Senior Management capacity at First
Capital Treasuries Ltd, a Central Bank appointed Primary Dealer. He was also involved
in Money Brokering, Corporate Debt Placement and Asset Management. Currently he
serves as Chief Executive Officer of Taprobane Holdings PLC. Mr. Sugathadasa holds a
MBA from the University of Preston, USA.

Mr Jayawardena was appointed to the Financial Sector Reforms Committee (FSRC) and
was a member of the Finance Sector and Capital markets cluster of the National Council
of Economic Development (NCED). He was a key member of the inaugural sovereign
rating team and sovereign debt for Sri Lanka appointed by the Governor of the Central
Bank.

He joined Walker & Greig in 1985 for a period of one year as Management Trainee and
thereafter joined his family business.
In 1994 Mr. Somasunderam established a company in U.K. together with his
British partners for the purpose of acquiring a wireless local loop licence to provide
telecommunication services in Sri Lanka and to seek funding for the same. In 1994 he
founded Lanka Bell Ltd and was successful in obtaining the licence. Mr. Somasunderam
was Executive Director thereafter Deputy Chairman of Lanka Bell Ltd until he divested
his shares in 2005 together with his foreign partners.
Mr Somasunderam has been a Director of Browns Group of Companies since 2005.

Mrs. K.U. Amarasinghe
Non-Executive Director
Mrs. Kalsha Amarasinghe holds an Honours Degree in Economics. She serves on
the Boards of Lanka ORIX Leasing Company PLC, LOLC Insurance Ltd, LOLC General
Insurance Ltd, LOLC Life Insurance Ltd, LOLC Leisure Ltd , LOLC Motors Ltd , LOLC
Securities Ltd , Speed Italia (Pvt) Ltd , United Dendro Energy Solutions (Pvt) Ltd,
Palm Garden Hotels PLC , Riverina Hotel PLC and Eden Hotel PLC. She also serves as a
Director on the Board of Commercial Leasing & Finance PLC.

Management
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TEAM

P.S. Goonawardena
Group Chief Financial Officer

Mrs. N. Delpechitra
General Manager Group Legal/Group Secretary

T.S. Selviah
Chief Operating Officer Leisure Sector

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO

Pussellawa Plantations Ltd
Maturata Plantations Ltd

Sierra Holdings (Pvt) Ltd
Sierra Constructions (Pvt) Ltd
Ajax Engineers (Pvt) Ltd
F L C Properties (Pvt) Ltd

AGRI BUSINESS

ENTERTAINMENT

Agstar Fertilizers PLC

Excel Global Holdings (Pvt) Ltd

LEISURE

Excel World Entertainment Park

LOLC Leisure
Eden Resort and Spa
Dickwella Resort & Spa

Samudra Beach Resorts (Pvt) Ltd
Green Paradise Agro-Eco Hotel

MANUFACTURING
Royal Fernwood Porcelain Ltd

OTHER INVESTMENTS
Stock Market
Financial Instruments
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F L C Holdings PLC

CONSTRUCTION
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Plantations

E

TH
CHARACTERISTICS
OF
INNOVATION
Browns Investments PLC (BI) is a subsidiary of Brown and Company PLC and is also
the strategic investment arm for the Group. BI ensures that its investment strategy is in
line with the company’s vision of having a presence in emerging or sunshine industries
that are expected to lead national growth. Whilst the company has active management
interest in most investments, it also has a few passive investments where there is only
a Board representation. The company is currently engaged in the diversified industries
of Agri Business and Plantations, Leisure and Entertainment, Construction, Exports and
Manufacturing.
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The current year for BI has been one of consolidation. With net assets in excess of
Rs.7Bn, the company’s investments strategies are to invest in the medium to long term
or invest to hold and divest at an appropriate time.
Agri Business and Plantations
Plantations
BI has interests in Plantations through F L C Holdings PLC (FLCH), a joint venture
formed with Perpetual Holdings (Pvt) Ltd. F L C Holdings is the holding company of
Pussellawa and Maturata Plantations which together manage 33 tea estates and 13
rubber estates. In addition to managing a total of 18,736 acres of tea and 14,465
acres of rubber that produce 11.6Mn kgs of tea and 3.3Mn kgs of rubber respectively,
the plantations also have interests in coconut (519 acres) and other crops including
timber (4,618 acres). Pussellawa Plantations also manage 2 green tea factories - two
of the few available in Sri Lanka.
Plantations and Agri business of BI reaped many benefits of group synergies through the
parent company Browns especially with the supplying of world renowned machinery,
technical support and services to customers. It also has the added advantage of having
Agstar Fertilizers PLC supplier of fertilizer and crop care products within the Group.
FLCH posted favourable financial results during the year, driven by marginal increases in
tea prices and productivity improvement due to better practices.
The hydro power plants developed in the plantations have successfully supplied
3.2 MW of electricity to the national grid. The company is in the process of making
further enhancements in order to increase the supply in the next few years.

Pussellawa Plantations

Plantations and Agri business of BI reaped
many benefits of group synergies through
the parent company Browns especially
with the supplying of world renowned
machinery, technical support and services
to customers. It also has the added
advantage of having Agstar Fertilizer PLC
supplier of fertilizer and crop care products
within the Group.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

The Leisure industry overall has seen growth over the past 3
years with tourist arrivals to the country increasing by 17.5%
in 2012 from 855,975 to 1,005,605 visitors in 2011. The number
is expected to rise in the coming years with a target of 2.5Mn
visitors expected in 2016. The country is rapidly developing
the infrastructure including the expansion in the number of
hotel rooms and Browns Investments is set to capitalize with
investments made in hotels in key parts of the island.

Agri Business
BI together with LOLC PLC and the Sierra Group hold over 80% stake of Agstar
Fertilizers PLC – a company that supplies straight and blended fertilizer, crop care
products and seeds to the agriculture sector. The path of Agstar as a Group company
that has already built a reputation amongst the farming community as a provider of
total solutions to the farmers, should be smooth in the future.

Leisure and Entertainment
Leisure
The Leisure industry overall has seen growth over the past 3 years with tourist arrivals
to the country increasing by 17.5% in 2012 from 855,975 to 1,005,605 visitors
in 2011. The number is expected to rise in the coming years with a target of 2.5Mn
visitors expected in 2016. The country is rapidly developing the infrastructure including
the expansion in the number of hotel rooms and Browns Investments is set to capitalize
with investments made in hotels in key parts of the island.

Agstar Fertilizers PLC

BI holds a 30% stake in LOLC Leisure Ltd, the managing company for Palm Gardens,
Riverina, Tropical Villas, Eden Resort and Spa & Dickwella Resort & Spa. Palm Gardens,
Riverina and Tropical Villas were demolished during the year to commence building
of a 400 room 5 star hotel in the combined property that will be managed by an
international brand once in operation. Stage 2 of the development plan is to commence
building residential condominiums on the same property.
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The financial year for Agstar has been a positive one especially when compared to the
competition. Despite the bad weather experienced in the country, volume and profits
have marginally increased when compared to the previous year. However, the company
is faced with the challenge of delayed fertilizer subsidies which is a common trend in
the industry.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

The other hotel properties of the Group will be refurbished in time to meet the high
demand of tourism expected in the coming years. Eden Resort and Spa is currently
undergoing a refurbishment plan which sees no interruption to its operations, started
towards the end of the financial year. Dickwella Resort and Spa which was acquired
two years ago has been in operation throughout the financial year but is expected
to undergo a major refurbishment in the next two years. The building of the hotel in
Kosgoda is progressing according to plan. However, the company is awaiting approval
to expand the proposed 150 rooms to 172 rooms in this newest 5 star hotel. The
company is also currently negotiating with an international brand to manage the
operations after the planned soft opening next year.
A 67 roomed property in Dambulla was acquired post balance sheet by BI. The brand
new hotel, Green Paradise Resort which was commissioned about a year ago consists of
villas and is situated in close proximity to the Cultural Triangle and other World Heritage
Sites. The company is also awaiting approvals for two proposed boutique hotels in
the Maturata and Pussellawa Plantations. In addition, BI is aggressively pursuing
opportunities on the East Coast of the country.

Excel World Entertainment Park

Construction
BI and LOLC PLC together hold a significant shareholding in Sierra Constructions (Pvt)
Ltd and Sierra Holdings (Pvt) Ltd. The Sierra Group is a dominant member in the
engineering and construction sector in Sri Lanka with operations in India, Maldives,
Qatar, Saudi Arabia and Australia. Though the investment in Sierra has been passive
in nature, there are synergies that can be achieved with the construction projects of
Browns Group where Sierra has had a few successful competitive bids in obtaining
contracts for some of the Browns property projects.
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The recently acquired Ajax Engineers (Pvt) Ltd is the market leader in manufacturing
glass and aluminium doors and windows. With the boom in the construction industry,
Ajax Engineers is expected to contribute positively to the Browns Group.
The construction of the commercial building complex in Borella, a commercial suburb of
Colombo is progressing according to plan and is expected to be completed by 2014.
Eden Resort and Spa

Entertainment
Browns ventured into the entertainment arena during the last financial year with the
acquisition of Excel World Entertainment Park, located in the heart of Colombo. During
the financial year, the conference and meeting facilities were given a facelift. In the
long term, the Company plans to convert the six acre land into a mixed development
consisting of a hypermarket, restaurants, conference centre and an entertainment
centre. The company hopes to capitalize on the expansion of Colombo City aimed
making the city a tourist hub.

Samudra Beach Resort

Exports and Manufacturing
Royal Fernwood Porcelain Ltd (RFPL), a subsidiary of BI with a 77% stake is
a manufacturer of high quality tableware for the local and export markets. The
manufacturing facility in Kosgama handles a capacity of 600,000 pieces a month and
includes prestigious brands such as “House of Frazer, Lenox, Pottery Barn, Debenhams,
John Lewis, Crate & Barrel and Country Road”.
Locally, RFPL is the only manufacturer to have a SLS certification by the Sri Lanka
Standards Board. Currently, RFPL products are exported to key clients in niche markets
and are also supplied to the local market through the Browns dealer network which was
also expanded during the year.

Royal Fernwood Porcelain

The company hopes to expand its operations by introducing new designs to the local
and export markets. The company will also increase factory efficiencies re-aligning
logistics and improving the sourcing of raw materials in order to compete on better price
points. The company will also look for new markets and establish its brand value by
participating in trade exhibitions and creating high quality novel products backed by the
relevant communication mechanisms.
Other Investments
BI holds an investment portfolio of Rs.2.4Bn of which approximately Rs.1Bn is a
trading portfolio that has been affected by the performance of the Colombo Stock
Exchange. The portfolio includes investments in Financial Services, Diversified Holdings,
Agriculture and Plantation sectors.

Free Lanka Office Complex

BIA Terminal project by Ajax Engineers
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The Company also has a land portfolio in excess of Rs.500Mn – which are either used
within the Group or held for future development.

E

TH
CHARACTERISTICS
OF
INTEGRITY

BROWNS INVESTMENTS PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013

Page 18

Corporate Governance

“Corporate Governance is concerned with
holding the balance between economic and
social goals and between individual and
communal goals. The Governance framework
exists to encourage the efficient use of resources
and equally to require accountability for the
stewardship of those resources. The aim is
to align as nearly as possible the interest of
individuals, corporations and society.”

We firmly believe in good corporate governance, a system by which companies are
directed and controlled. It ensures regulatory, compliance and accountability. The
Company holds itself accountable to the highest standards of Corporate Governance
and provides public accessibility to the information of the Company. Corporate
Governance lays the basis for responsible performance–oriented management and
control which is geared towards sustainable value creation. Corporate Governance has
been institutionalized at all levels in the Company through a strong set of corporate
values which have been adhered to by the Senior Management and Board of Directors
in the performance of their official duties and in other situations which could affect
the Company image. The Company is committed to the highest standards of integrity,
ethical values and professionalism in all its activities.
Formal publication of the Code of Best Practice on Corporate Governance Rules issued
jointly by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka (SEC) and The Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka is the hand book by which the Company
strengthens its transparency, accountability, and disclosure of its business practices.

The Company is committed towards its corporate values and adheres to the Code of
Best Practice on Corporate Governance.
This report sets out the Company’s Corporate Governance processes with reference to
the extent of compliance with same.
The key components of the Corporate Governance framework of the Company
comprising of Internal Governance Structure, Assurance of Compliance and Regulatory
Framework which guides the Company by way of developing and implementing
appropriate corporate strategies are discussed in detail in this report.
The Role of The Chairman
The Chairman’s primary role is to ensure that the Board is effective in its tasks of
setting and implementing the Company’s directions and strategy. The Chairman is
expected to act as the Company’s leading representative concerning the presentation
of the Company’s aims and policies to the outside world. While providing leadership to
the Board, the Chairman should ensure that the participation and contribution of the
Executive, Non Executive and Non/Independent Directors are encouraged and their
views on the matters under consideration are determined.

The positions of the Chairman & the Managing Director have been
separated in order to maintain a balance of power and authority.
Adhering to the Code of Best Practice on Corporate Governance issued by the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka and the Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka, the
Company has made a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
Managing Director to ensure a balance of power and authority in such a way that any
individual has no unfettered powers of decision.

KEY RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE CHAIRMAN….
• Provide leadership to the Company and ensure the Board of Directors work
effectively and discharge their responsibilities.

Mr. R.P. Sugathadasa

Non-Executive Director

Mr. S.V. Somasunderam

Non-Executive Director

•

Mr. W.D.K. Jayawardena

Non-Executive Director

Mrs. K.U. Amarasinghe

Non-Executive Director

Mr. N. Fernando (Resigned w.e.f.
01st October 2012)

Independent Non-Executive Director

Ensure the continual improvement in quality and calibre of the executives

•

Promote a culture of openness and debate by facilitating the effective
contribution of Non-Executive Directors in particular and encouraging active
engagement by all members of the Board.

•

Ensuring effective communication with shareholders

•

Ensure an appropriate balance is maintained between the interests of
shareholders and other stakeholders (employees, customers, suppliers and the
community).

Board of Directors
The Board of Directors are the ultimate governing body of the Company with a wealth
of experience and professionalism and has a wide range of expertise in diverse fields as
set out on pages 10 to 11. The Board is responsible for the ultimate supervision of the
Company. In all actions taken by the Board, the Directors are expected to exercise their
business judgment towards the best interests of the Company. The Directors participate
in defining goals, visions, strategies and business targets. All Directors are able to add
value and independent opinion on the decision making process, which is of immense
benefit to the effective functioning of the Board.
The Board gives leadership in setting the strategic direction and establishing a
sound control framework for the successful functioning of the Company. The Board’s
composition reflects sound balance of independence and anchors.
Composition of the Board and Directors’ Independence
The Board consists of 10 members at present comprising of• 6 Non-Executive Directors
• 1 Independent Non-Executive Director
• 3 Executive Directors
Name of Director

Capacity

Mr. I.C. Nanayakkara (Appointed
on 01st March 2013)

Executive Chairman/Executive Director

Mrs. R.L. Nanayakkara (Resigned
w.e.f. 28th Feb 2013)

Non-Executive Director/Chairperson

Mr. P.R. Saldin

Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer

Mr. N.M. Prakash

Executive Director

Mr. A.G. Weerasinghe

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. D.S.K. Amarasekera

Non-Executive Director

Mr. S. Furkhan

Non-Executive Director

Independence of the Directors have been determined in accordance with the Colombo
Stock Exchange Rules and the Independent Non-Executive Director has submitted signed
confirmations of his independence.
Board Responsibilities and Decision Rights
The business of the Company is conducted by its managers, officers and employees
under the direction of the Executive Directors and the oversight of the Board to enhance
the long term value of the Company for its shareholders. The Board aims at fulfilling its
responsibilities by creating value for all stakeholders in a manner that is sustainable and
beneficial. The Board of Directors are well equipped to realise the Company’s Corporate
business. The Board gives full consideration to the following:• Review strategic and operational issues
• Approve financial statements and annual budgets.
• Review profit and working capital forecasts and monthly management accounts
• Sanction major investments.
The Board is ultimately responsible for the Company’s financial performance.
The Company Secretaries are responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are
followed and all Directors have access to the Company Secretaries, S.F.L. Services (Pvt)
Ltd (formerly known as Standard Finance Pvt Ltd). The Secretaries provide support to
the Board on all Corporate Governance matters and compliance with applicable rules
and regulations.
All Directors receive appropriate training relevant to their experience and position within
the Company.
Board Balance
The composition of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Non-Executive Directors
on the Board ensures the right balance between executive expediency and independent
judgment as no individual Director or small group of Directors dominate the Board
discussion and decision-making process. The Independent Directors shall be able to
ensure equal benefits for all shareholders with independent views and opinions.
Directors are provided with monthly reports of performance and minutes of the Board
Meetings and are given the specific documentation necessary in advance of such
meetings.
The Chairman ensures that all Directors are adequately briefed on issues arising at
meetings.
Board Meetings and Attendance
For the financial year ended 31st March 2013 there has been a total number of
05 Board Meetings and Director’s attendance at such meetings are shown on
the next page.
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Ensuring that the Directors receive accurate, timely and clear information,
on the company’s current performance, to enable the Board to take sound
decisions, monitor effectively and provide advice to promote the success of the
company

Corporate Governance (contd.)

Name of Director

Number of Board
meetings attended

Mr. I.C. Nanayakkara (Appointed on 01st March 2013)

01

Mrs. R.L. Nanayakkara (Resigned w.e.f. 28th February 2013)

03

Mr. P.R. Saldin

05

Mr. N.M. Prakash

•

Mr. N. Fernando – Independent Non-Executive Director (resigned w.e.f 01st Oct
2012)

05

•

Mr. A.G. Weerasinghe – Independent Non-Executive Director (Acting Chairman)

Mr. A.G. Weerasinghe

05

•

Mr. D.S.K. Amarasekera – Non-Executive Director

Mr. D.S.K. Amarasekera

05

Mr. S. Furkhan

03

There have been a total number of seven (7) Audit Committee Meetings in the financial
year ending 31st March 2013 and the attendance of the members are shown below:

Mr. R.P. Sugathadasa

04

Mr. S.V. Somasunderam

05

Mr. W.D.K. Jayawardena (Appointed on 27th September
2012)

02

Mrs. K.U. Amarasinghe (Appointed on 27th September 2012)

02

Mr. N. Fernando (Resigned w.e.f. 01st October 2012)

02

Procedure for Directors to Obtain Professional Advice
The Directors obtain independent and professional advice with regard to decision
making in their duties.
Financial Acumen
Financial acumen has been a key attribute of successful careers of the Board of
Directors who have held senior management positions in other institutions.
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The Board consists of six Senior Accountants, who possess the necessary knowledge to
offer the Board guidance on matters of finance.
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Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is established to approve the Quarterly and Annual Financial
Statements and to recommend the same to the Board prior to its issuance. The
Committee comprises of :

Re-Election of Directors
The Company’s Articles of Association call for one third of the Directors in office to retire
at each Annual General Meeting. The Directors who retire are those longest in office
since their appointment/re-appointment. Retiring Directors are generally eligible for
re-election by the shareholders.
Board Committees
The Board has delegated some of its functions to Board Committees while retaining
final decision rights pertaining to matters under the purview of these Committees. The
compositions of the Committees are as follows:
Board
Audit Committee
• 1 Independent Non-Executive Director
• 1 Non-Executive Director

Remuneration Committee
• 1 Independent Non-Executive
Director
• 1 Non-Executive Director

Name of member

Number of
meetings held

Attendance

Mr. N. Fernando (resigned w.e.f. 01st
October 2012)

7

4

Mr. A.G. Weerasinghe

7

7

Mr. D.S.K. Amarasekera

7

6

The Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and the External
Auditors’ representative join the meetings of the committee by invitation of its
members.
The Audit Committee meets with the External Auditors M/s. BDO Partners to review the
Audits and determine the objectivity and independence of the Auditors.
The Audit Committee report is given on page 22.
Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee comprises of one Independent Non-Executive Director and
one Non-Executive Director.
The Remuneration Committee is responsible for•

assisting the Board of Directors in establishing remuneration policies and practices
in the Company;

•

evaluating the performance of the Executives of the Group; and

•

reviewing and recommending to the Board appropriate remuneration packages
based on industry standards and contributions made to the organization

The detailed Remuneration Committee Report is given on page 23 of the Annual Report.

Accountability
The Board places great emphasis on the complete disclosure of financial information
within the bounds of commercial reality and has taken necessary steps to ensure the
integrity of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting systems and internal
control systems and also conduct reviews and monitoring on a periodic basis.

Employees
The Company is
committed to build
a convenient work
environment

Customers/Community
The Company is
committed to maintain
and enhance its public
reputation and to meet
its CSR obligations
Regulators
The Company is committed to
ensure the compliance with
all regulatory frameworks
fulfilling the legal and good
governance practices adopted
by the Company

Shareholder Value
The Board constantly strives to enhance shareholders’ values of who they consider are
the pillars of success of the Company.
Shareholder Relations
The Board considers the Annual General Meeting a prime opportunity to communicate
with shareholders. Shareholders are given the opportunity of exercising their rights at
the Annual General Meeting. Each resolution bought before the shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting will be voted on separately by the shareholders. The notice
of the Annual General Meeting and the relevant documents required will be published
and sent to the shareholders within the statutory period. The Company circulates the
agenda for the meeting and shareholders vote on each issue separately. All shareholders
are invited and encouraged to participate in the Annual General Meeting. The
Annual General Meeting provides an opportunity for shareholders to seek and obtain
clarifications and information on the performance of the Company and to informally
meet the Directors. The external auditors are also present at the Annual General
Meeting to render any professional assistance that may be required. Shareholders who
are not in a position to attend the Annual General Meeting in person are entitled to
have their voting rights exercised by a proxy of their choice.
Going Concern
The Board of Directors, after reviewing the financial position and the cash flow of
the Company are of the belief that the Company has adequate resources to continue
operations well into the foreseeable future. Therefore the Board adopts the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Ethical Standards
The Board is committed to maintain high ethical standards in conducting its business
and to communicate its values to its employees and agents and ensure their conduct is
based on such values.
Compliance with Legal Requirements
The Board is conscious of its responsibility to the shareholders, the government and
the society in which it operates and is committed to upholding the highest standards of
ethical behaviour in conducting its business. The Board, through the Legal Division, the
Finance Division and its other operating structures, strives to ensure that the Company
complies with the laws and regulations of the country.
The Company has complied with the requirement of the Companies Act No. 07
of 2007.
Corporate Social Responsibility
Rights and claims of Stakeholder Groups such as employees, consumers, clients,
suppliers, creditors and the government are also considered important apart from the
shareholders. Corporate decisions are made with due consideration of these factors.
The Company acknowledges the issues facing the environment and adopts a responsible
attitude whilst meeting all of its business objectives. The Company’s policy is, wherever
economically practical, to recycle waste material and conserve water and energy.
Risk assessments carried out across the Company’s operations take account of
environmental, social and ethical matters.
Self Governance Practices by the Company
The Solvency Statements prepared by the Group Chief Financial Officer is tabled at the
Board Meetings in order to view whether the Company is solvent.
As provided by the Companies Act No.7 of 2007, the Company has obtained insurance
covers for Directors and key officials of the Company.
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Shareholders
The Company is committed to
enhance long term shareholder
value and facilitate the
existing shareholder rights
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Stakeholders

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
Role of the Committee
The role of the Audit committee which reports its findings to the Board, is to ensure the
integrity of the financial reporting of the Company, internal and external audit processes
of the Company and the maintenance of sound internal control and risk management of
the Company and its compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.
Composition
The Audit Committee, appointed by and responsible to the Board of Directors, comprises
of one Independent Non-Executive Director and one Non-Executive Director, with
the Company Secretary acting as Secretary. One of the above Directors acts as the
Chairman and is also a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka.
All Non-Executive Directors satisfy the criteria for independence as specified in the
Standards on Corporate Governance for listed Companies issued by the Securities &
Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka.
The members of the Audit Committee are:•

Mr. N. Fernando – the Chairman/Independent Non-Executive Director (resigned
w.e.f. 01st Oct 2012)

•

Mr. A.G. Weerasinghe – Independent Non-Executive Director (Acting Chairman)

•

Mr. D.S.K. Amarasekera - Non Executive Director

Mr. N. Fernando, Chairman of the Committee resigned from the Committee on 01st
October 2012. Consequent to his resignation Mr. A.G. Weerasinghe, Independent NonExecutive Director was appointed as the Acting Chairman of the Committee.
The Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer and Group Chief Financial Officer attend
all meetings of the Committee by invitation.
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Financial Reporting
The Committee is established to oversee the Company’s financial reporting on behalf
of the Board of Directors as part of its responsibility and to review the Quarterly and
Annual Financial Statements and recommend the same to the Board for its deliberations
prior to its issuance.
The Committee is also engaged in reviewing the Financial Statements to ensure
consistency of the accounting policies and their compliance with the Sri Lanka
Accounting Standards.

The Committee regularly discusses the operations of the Company and its future
prospects with the management and ensures that all relevant matters are taken into
account in the preparation of the Financial Statements.
Controls & Risks
The Committee reviews the effectiveness of the Company’s system of Internal Control.
The Committee also assesses the major business and control risks and the control
environment prevalent in the Company and advises the Board on actions to be taken
where weaknesses are observed.
External Auditors
The Audit Committee evaluates the independence of the External Auditors and the
effectiveness of the audit process.
The Committee meets with the External Auditors in relation to the scope of the audit
and also to discuss the Management Letter at the conclusion of the audit.
The Committee reviews the audited financial statements with the External Auditors
who are responsible for expressing an opinion on its conformity with the Sri Lanka
Accounting Standards.
The Audit Committee evaluates the independence of the External Auditors and
recommends to the Board of Directors that M/s. KPMG be appointed as Auditors for the
financial year ending 31st March 2014, subject to the approval of the shareholders at
the Annual General Meeting.
Conclusion
The reports submitted by the External Auditors of the Company and the certification
provided by the Senior Management is considered by the Committee in determining
that the financial position of the Company has been adequately monitored.

A.G. Weerasinghe
Acting Chairman, Audit Committee
Date : 30th July 2013

REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE REPORT
The Remuneration Committee re-constituted under the new Corporate Governance rules
of the Colombo Stock Exchange is responsible to the Board of Directors and comprises
of one Independent Non-Executive Director and one Non-Executive Director with the
Company Secretary functioning as its Secretary. The members of the Remuneration
Committee are:
•

Mr. A.G. Weerasinghe - The Chairman/Independent Non-Executive Director

•

Mr. N. Fernando - Independent Non-Executive Director (resigned w.e.f. 01st Oct
2012)

•

Mr. D.S.K. Amarasekera - Non Executive Director

The Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer attends meetings on invitation of the
members.
The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are:
•

To recommend the remuneration of the Directors, Managing Director/Chief
Executive Officer and members of the senior management.

•

To recommend the policy governing annual increments to staff.

•

To recommend the policy governing annual ex-gratia payments to staff.

Accordingly, the Committee will review and re-draft the remuneration policy and based
on the recommendations of the Committee, the Board shall approve the adoption of
the policy.

Date : 30th July 2013

BROWNS INVESTMENTS PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013

A.G. Weerasinghe
Chairman, Remuneration Committee
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The policy will cover the remuneration to Executive and Non-Executive Directors,
including the Executive Chairman and the Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer.
Under the terms of this policy, remuneration will be related to performance and
contribution.
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Directors’ Report
The Directors of Browns Investments PLC have pleasure in presenting to its members
their Report and the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st
March 2013.

Events Occurring after the Balance Sheet Date
The company has acquired 51% shareholding of Green Paradise Resort (Pvt) Ltd, on
05th April 2012 for Rs.500Mn which operates a hotel in Dambulla.

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the Company are investments in listed and non-listed
companies and investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities which are
mainly engaged in the Plantation management, Agriculture, Hydro power, Leisure,
Entertainment and Constructions sectors. Principal activities are described in detail in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” report on pages 14 to 17 of this report

Employment Policies
The Group employment policies respects the individuals and offers equal career
opportunities, regardless of gender, race or religion and consider the relationship with
the employees to be good. The number of persons employed in the Company as at
31st March 2013 was 04.

Review of Business and Future Developments
A review of the group business and its performance during the year, with comments
on financial results and future strategic developments is contained in the Chairman’s
Message (Pages 04 to 05), Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer’s review
(Pages 06 to 08), Management Discussion & Analysis (Pages 14 to 17) sections of
this Annual Report. This report together with financial statements reflect the state of
affairs of the company and the Group.
Turnover
The Turnover of the Group was Rs.2,625Mn as compared with Rs.2,057Mn in the
previous year. A detailed analysis of the Company’s Turnover is given in Note 5 of the
Financial Statements.
Gross Profit
The Group’s Gross Profit for the year was Rs.447Mn compared with the Gross Profit of
Rs.423Mn for the previous year. A detailed analysis of the Company’s Gross Profit is
given in Note 7 of the Financial Statements.
Property, Plant and Equipment
Information relating to the movement in Property, Plant and Equipment is given in
Note 17 of this Financial Statement
Stated Capital
The Stated Capital of the Company as at the date of this Report is
Rs.5,380,000,000/- which consists 1,860,000,000 ordinary shares.
Reserves
The total Reserves at 31st March 2013 amounts to Rs.5,273Mn as compared with
Rs.5,230Mn in the previous year.
Taxation
No provision has been made for income tax in the current year for the Company.
A provision for taxation for the Group is Rs.45Mn. as compared to Rs.123Mn in the
previous year.
Share Holdings/Share Information
The market value of an ordinary share of the Company as at 31st March 2013 was
Rs.3.30. The number of shareholders as at 31st March 2013 was 10,835
An analysis of shareholders based on shares held, the distribution of ownership is
provided on pages 29 to 30.
Shareholders
It is a Group policy to treat its shareholders equitably and maximize shareholder wealth.
Quarterly returns of financial results with any developments or changes would be
circulated to the shareholders on a timely basis.

Statutory Payments
Directors, to the best of their knowledge and belief are satisfied that all statutory
payments in relation to employees and the Government have been made upto date in
line with the Group Policy.
Environmental Protection
It is the Group ’s policy to keep adverse effects on the environment to a minimum and
to promote co-operation and compliance with the relevant authorities and regulations.
Corporate Governance & Internal Control
The information called for by this item with respect to the practice followed by the
Company is set out in the Corporate Governance statement on pages 18 to 21
Going Concern
As in the statement of Directors’ Responsibilities given on page 28 the Directors have
adopted the going concern basis in preparing the Financial Statements.
Profit and Appropriations
	Group
2013
2012
For the year ended 31st March
Rs.000
Rs.000
Profit/(Loss) for the year
Other Comprehensive Income
Retained Profit brought forward from previous year
Gain on bargaining purchase
Transfer to Revaluation reserve
Cost of equity transaction
Adjustment due to changes in holdings
Realized Revaluation on Disposals
Dividend paid
Retained Profit carried forward

(35,815)
(11,676)
5,132,683
5,085,192
(1,399)
17,300
2,620
(6,046)
5,097,667

2,565,533
18,383
2,879,304
5,463,220
8,514
(26,478)
(115,793)
(6,578)
(190,202)
5,132,683

	Group
2013
2012
For the year ended 31st March
Rs.000
Rs.000
Profit/(Loss) for the year
Retained Profit brought forward from previous year
Cost of equity transaction
Dividend paid
Retained Profit carried forward

375,011
968,538
1,343,549
1,343,549

(201,374)
1,471,705
1,270,331
(115,793)
(186,000)
968,538
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The review of the progress and performance during the year with a commentary on the
financial results and prospects is contained in the Chairman’s Review.

The Group promotes a culture of teamwork, integrity and dedication and remuneration
is linked to performance by annual appraisals of both qualitative and quantitative
performance of all employees.
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The principal activities of Browns Investments PLC are also described in the Managing
Director/Chief Executive Officer’s Review on pages 06 to 08 of this report.

Directors’ Report

Directorate
The Directors of the Company during the year under review are as follows:
Mr. I.C. Nanayakkara
		
Mrs. R.L. Nanayakkara 		
Mr. P. R. Saldin
Mr. N.M. Prakash
Mr. A.G. Weerasinghe
Mr. D.S.K. Amarasekera Mr. S. Furkhan
Mr. R.P. Sugathadasa
Mr. S.V. Somasunderam Mr. W.D.K. Jayawardena 		
Mrs. K.U. Amarasinghe 		
Mr. N. Fernando
		

Executive Chairman/Executive Director
(Appointed on 1st March 2013)
Non-Executive Chairperson
(Resigned on 28th February 2013)
Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer
Executive Director
Independent Non-Executive Director
Non Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
(Appointed on 27th September 2012)
Non-Executive Director
(Appointed on 27th September 2012)
Independent Non-Executive Director
(Resigned on 01st October 2012)

Directors’ Meetings
The Directors conduct Board Meetings at least on a quarterly basis. Board decisions are
resolved by at meetings, and by resolutions passed by circulation which are approved
and signed by all the Directors and tabled at the Board Meetings. The Minutes of the
Board Meetings and the Agenda for the next meeting are circulated to all the Directors
in advance to the meetings.
Appointments and Resignations of Directors
Mr. W.D.K. Jayawardena was appointed to the Board of Directors as a Non-Executive
Director with effect from 27th September 2012
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Mrs. K.U. Amarasinghe was appointed to the Board of Directors as a Non-Executive
Director with effect from 27th September 2012
Mr. I.C. Nanayakkara was appointed to the Board of Directors as an Executive
Chairman/Executive Director with effect from 01st March 2013 consequent to the
resignation of Mrs. R.L. Nanayakkara, Non-Executive Chairperson with effect from 28th
February 2013.
Mr. N. Fernando, Independent Non- Executive Director resigned from the Board of
Directors with effect from 1st October 2012.
Mr. P.R Saldin, Chief Executive Officer/Director was appointed as the Managing
Director/Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 11th July 2013.
Re-Election of Directors
In accordance with Article 23(2) of the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. W.D. Kapila Jayawardena, Non-Executive Director retires by rotation and being
eligible offers himself for re-election.

In accordance with Article 23(2) of the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mrs. K.U. Amarasinghe, Non-Executive Director retires by rotation and being eligible
offers herself for re-election.
In accordance with Article 23(2) of the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. I.C. Nanayakkara, Executive Chairman/Executive Director retires by rotation and
being eligible offers himself for re-election.
In accordance with Article 23(6) of the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. P.R. Saldin, Executive Director retires and being eligible offers himself for re-election.
In accordance with Article 23(6) of the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. R.P. Sugathadasa, Non-Executive Director retires and being eligible offers himself for
re-election.
In accordance with Section 210 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007
Mr. A.G. Weerasinghe, Independent Non-Executive Director retires and offers himself
for re-election. Special notice has been received pursuant to Sections 145 and 211 of
the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 of the intention to propose an ordinary resolution for
such re-election notwithstanding the age limit of 70 years stipulated by Section 210 of
the said Companies Act.
Board Committees
The Board has established the following Committees for better monitoring and guidance
of different aspects of operations and control.
Audit Committee
Mr. N. Fernando - Chairman (Resigned with effect from 1st October 2012)
Mr. A.G. Weerasinghe (Acting Chairman)
Mr. D.S.K. Amarasekera
The report of the Audit Committee is given on page 22.
Remuneration Committee
Mr. A.G. Weerasinghe - Chairman of the Committee
Mr. N. Fernando (Resigned with effect from 1st October 2012)
Mr. D.S.K. Amarasekera
The report of the Remuneration committee is given on page 23.
Interest Register
The Directors have made the declarations required by the Companies Act No. 7 of
2007. These have been entered into the Interest Register which is maintained by the
Company.
The Company carried out transactions in the ordinary course of business with entities
in which a Director of the Company is a Director. The transactions with entities where
a Director of the Company either has control or exercises significant influence have
been classified as related party transactions and disclosed in Note 45.1 to the Financial
Statements
The Directors have no direct or indirect interest in any other contract or proposed
contract with the Company.

Directors’ Shareholdings
The Directors interests in shares as at 31st March 2013 were as follows :
As at 	As at
31st March 2013 31st March 2012
Mr. I.C. Nanayakkara
(Appointed w.e.f. 1st March 2013)
Mrs. R.L. Nanayakkara
(Resigned w.e.f. 28th February 2013)
Mr. P. R. Saldin
Mr. N.M. Prakash
Mr. A.G. Weerasinghe
Mr. D.S.K. Amarasekera
Mr. S. Furkhan
Mr. R.P. Sugathadasa
Margin Trading
Mr. S.V. Somasunderam
Mr. W.D.K. Jayawardena
(Appointed w.e.f. 27th September 2012)
Mrs. K.U. Amarasinghe
(Appointed w.e.f. 27th September 2012)
Mr. N. Fernando
(Resigned w.e.f. 1st October 2012)

20,000,000

20,000,000

Nil

Nil

554,000
5,000,000
Nil
Nil
Nil

554,000
5,000,000
Nil
Nil
Nil

2,000,000
50,000,000
Nil

2,000,000
50,000,000
Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Remuneration of Directors
The remuneration of the Directors is disclosed in Note 12.

Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting will be held at Park Premier, Excel World, No. 338,
T.B. Jayah Mawatha, Colombo 10 on Twenty Fourth day of September 2013 at
11.30 a.m. The Notice of the Annual General Meeting is given on page no 121.
Auditors
In accordance with Section 154 (1) of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 a resolution
proposing the appointment of Messrs. KPMG, Chartered Accountants as Auditors of the
Company for the ensuing year will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.
In terms of Section 155 (a) of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 a resolution
authorizing the Directors to fix the remuneration of the Auditors Messrs. KPMG,
Chartered Accountants for the ensuing year will be proposed at the Annual General
Meeting.
The fees paid to Auditors are disclosed in Note 12 to the financial statements. As far
as the Directors are aware, the Auditors do not have any relationship (other than that
of an Auditor) with the Company or any of its subsidiaries other than those disclosed
above. The Auditors also do not have any interest in the Company or any of its group
Companies.
For and on behalf of the Board

I.C . Nanayakkara
Executive Chairman/Executive Director

P.R. Saldin
Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer

List of Major Shareholders
The list of 20 major shareholders and the percentage held by each as at 31st March
2013 and as at 31st March 2012 is given on page 30 of the Financial Statements.

Annual Report
The Board of Directors approved the financial statements on 30th July 2013.
The appropriate number of copies of this report will be submitted to Colombo Stock
Exchange and to the Sri Lanka Accounting and Auditing Standards Monitory Board on or
before 31st August 2013.

Colombo, 30th July 2013
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Accounting Policies
The accounting policies adopted in preparation of the financial statements, are given
on pages 37 to 54 There were changes in the accounting policies adopted in the year
under review.

S.F.L. SERVICES (PVT) LTD
(Formerly known as STANDARD FINANCE (PVT) LIMITED)
Secretaries
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Subsidiary/Associate and Joint Venture Companies and their Directors
The Directors of the Subsidiaries, Associate and Joint Venture Companies as at
31st March 2013 are given on page 118 of Financial Statements.

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
The responsibility of the Directors in relation to the Financial Statements for the year
ended 31st March 2013 which have been prepared and presented in conformity
with the requirements of the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, the Listing Rules of
the Colombo Stock Exchange and the Companies Act No.7 of 2007, is set out in the
following statement .
The responsibility of the Auditors in relation to the Financial Statements is set out in the
Report of the Auditors on page 31 of the Report. As per the provisions of the Companies
Act No. 7 of 2007, the Directors are required to prepare financial statements, for each
financial year and place before a general meeting which comprise:
An Income Statement, which presents a true and fair view of the profit and loss of
the Company and its subsidiaries for the financial year;

2

A Statement of changes in Equity which presents a true and fair view of the
changes in the Company’s and its subsidiaries retained earnings for the financial
year;

3

A Statement of Cash Flow which presents a true and fair view of the flow of cash
in and out of the business for the financial year; and

P.R. Saldin
Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer

4

A Balance Sheet, which presents a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and its subsidiaries as at the end of the financial year.

Colombo, 30th July 2013

The Directors are of the view that, in preparing these Financial Statements :
1

The appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied in a consistent
manner. Material deviations, if any have been disclosed and explained;

2

All applicable Accounting Standards, as relevant, have been followed.

3

Judgments and estimates have been made which are reasonable and prudent.

The Directors are also of the view that the Company has adequate resources to continue
in operation and have applied the going concern basis in preparing these Financial
Statements.
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The Board of Directors confirm that based on the information available the company
satisfies the insolvency test as and when required according to the Section 56(2) of the
Companies Act No. 7 of 2007.

1

and which comply with the requirements of the Act.
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Compliance Report
The Directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge, all taxes, duties and levies
payable by the Company and its subsidiaries, all contributions levies and taxes payable
on behalf of and in respect of the employees of the Company and its subsidiaries,
and all other known statutory dues as were due and payable by the Company and
its subsidiaries as at the Balance Sheet date have been paid or, where relevant
provided for.

Further, the Directors have a responsibility to ensure that the Company maintains
sufficient accounting records to disclose, with reasonable accuracy the financial position
of the Company, and to ensure that the financial statements presented comply with the
requirements of the Companies Act.
The Directors are also responsible for taking reasonable steps to safeguard the Assets
of the Company and in this regard to give proper consideration to the establishment of
appropriate internal control systems with a view to preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities.
The Directors are required to prepare the Financial Statements and to provide the
Auditors with every opportunity to take whatever steps and undertake whatever
inspections they may consider to be appropriate to enable them to give their
Audit Opinion.
The Directors are of the view that they have discharged their responsibilities as set out
in this statement.

By order of the Board

Share Information
Share Analysis as at 31st March 2013
RESIDENT
No. of shares

(%)

3,660,431

0.2

NON-RESIDENT
No. of No. of shares
shareholders
3
1,201

1

to

1000 shares

No. of
shareholders
4266

1001

to

10,000 shares

5653

15,241,429

0.82

10

10,001

to

100,000 shares

673

20,949,293

1.13

100,001 to 1,000,000 shares

151

49,098,287

		 over 1,000,001 shares

53
10,796

TOTAL

(%)

TOTAL
No. of shares

(%)

3,661,632

0.20

0.00

No. of
shareholders
4269

44,200

0.00

5663

15,285,629

0.82

10

519,853

0.03

683

21,469,146

1.16

2.64

10

4,242,501

0.23

161

53,340,788

2.87

1,745,961,533

93.86

6

20,281,272

1.09

59

1,766,242,805

94.95

1,834,910,973

98.65

39

25,089,027

1.35

10835

1,860,000,000

100

Categories of Shareholders
No. of shareholders
Individual
Institutional
Total

No. of shares

10,658

245,251,938

177

1,614,748,062

10,835

1,860,000,000

Public Holding
Public Holding as a percentage of the Issued Share Capital

426,187,187
22.91%

Share Price Information 	As at 31st March 2013

(Rs.)

High

4.50

Low

2.00

Close

3.30

As at 31st March 2012

20,000,000

20,000,000

Nil

Nil

554,000

554,000

5,000,000

5,000,000

Mr. A.G. Weerasinghe

Nil

Nil

Mr. D.S.K. Amarasekera

Nil

Nil

Mr. S. Furkhan

Nil

Nil

2,000,000

2,000,000

Mr. S.V. Somasunderam

50,000,000

50,000,000

Mr. W.D.K. Jayawardena

Nil

Nil

Mrs. K.U. Amarasinghe

Nil

Nil

Mr. I.C. Nanayakkara (Appointed w.e.f. 1st March 2013)
Mrs. R.L. Nanayakkara (Resigned w.e.f. 28th February 2013)
Mr. P. R. Saldin
Mr. N.M. Prakash

Mr. R.P. Sugathadasa - Margin Trading
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Browns Investments Plc Shareholdings of Directors

Share Information

List of 20 Major Shareholders
Name of Shareholder
Brown & Company Plc A/C No. 1

31.03.2013
No. of Shares
692,337,413

Environmental Resources Investments Plc
Lolc Investments Ltd.

37.22 Brown & Company Plc A/C No. 1

31.03.2012
No. of Shares
492,927,600

26.50

372,000,000

20.00 Taprobane Holdings PLC

485,318,800

26.09

244,927,500

13.17 Lolc Investments PLC

244,927,500

13.17

National Savings Bank

93,606,200

5.03 National Savings Bank

93,606,200

5.03

Seylan Bank Plc/Arrc Capital (Pvt) Ltd

87,436,000

4.70 Seylan Bank Plc/Arrc Capital (Pvt) Ltd

87,436,000

4.70

Mr. Shanker Varadananda Somasunderam

50,000,000

2.69 Mr. Shanker Varadananda Somasunderam

50,000,000

2.69

Seylan Bank PLC/Brown & Company PLC

24,688,800

1.33 National Development Bank Plc/Taprobane Holdings PLC

30,000,000

1.61

Ceylinco Insurance Plc A/C No 2 (General Fund)

20,000,000

1.08 Seylan Bank PLC/Brown & Company PLC

24,688,800

1.33

Mr. Ishara Chinthaka Nanayakkara

20,000,000

1.08 Lexinton Holdings (Pvt) Limited

22,492,300

1.21

Lanka Orix Leasing Company Plc

14,344,100

0.77 Mr. Ishara Chinthaka Nanayakkara

20,000,000

1.08

Finco Holdings (Private) Limited

12,800,416
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%

0.69 Ceylinco Insurance Plc A/C No 2 (General Fund)

20,000,000

1.08

Mr. Bhagwan Wassiamal Kundanmal

8,708,100

0.47 Dr. Waruni Udeshika Nihiluwa Gamage

17,244,400

0.93

Prime Lands (Pvt) Ltd

8,040,000

0.43 Finco Holdings (Private) Limited

16,000,000

0.86

Mr. Hamish Winston Mcdonald Woodward

7,968,161

0.43 Lanka Orix Leasing Company Plc

14,344,100

0.77

Dr. Ruwanpura Rohitha De Silva

7,334,614

0.39 Mr. Shantha Ranjith Senadheera

11,787,199

0.63

Mrs. Pubudhu Saranga Wijayakumari Rupasinghe

6,261,000

0.34 Prime Lands (Pvt) Ltd

10,000,000

0.54

Mr. Nithiabala Balasingam

5,194,900

0.28 Mr. Bhagwan Wassiamal Kundanmal

8,708,100

0.47

Mr. Lalith Prabash Hapangama

5,000,000

0.27 Mr. Hamish Winston Mcdonald Woodward

8,000,000

0.43

Mr. Nadarajah Murali Prakash

5,000,000

0.27 Mrs. Pubudhu Saranga Wijayakumari Rupasinghe

6,261,000

0.34

5,194,900
1,668,936,899

0.28
89.74

Mr. Hiran Arjuna Suren Madanayake
Total
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% Name of Shareholder

5,000,000
1,690,647,204

0.27 Mr. Nithiabala Balasingam
90.91 Total

Independent Auditor’s REport

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BROWNS INVESTMENTS PLC
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Browns Investments
PLC (“Company”), and the consolidated financial statements of the company and
its subsidiaries which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31st March,
2013, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity
and statement of cash flow for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes as set out on pages 37 to 116.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards. This responsibility
includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Opinion – Group
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position as at 31st March, 2013 and its financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended, in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, of the
Company and its subsidiaries dealt with thereby, so far as concerns the shareholders of
the Company.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
These financial statements also comply with the requirements of Sections 151(2) and
Sections 153(2) to 153(7) of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
30th July, 2013
Colombo
SM/fm

We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. We therefore
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Opinion - Company
In our opinion, so far as appears from our examination, the Company maintained proper
accounting records for the year ended 31st March, 2013 and the financial statements
give a true and fair view of the Company’s financial position as at 31st March, 2013
and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

BROWNS INVESTMENTS PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation.
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Scope of Audit and Basis of Opinion
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 		
	Group
For the year ended 31st March
Notes
2012/2013
2011/2012
In Rs.‘000s

Company
2012/2013
2011/2012

Revenue
5
2,624,821
2,056,549
71,168
210,286
Cost of Sales
6
(2,177,500)
(1,633,134)
Gross Profit
7
447,321
423,415
71,168
210,286
					
Other Income
8
431,416
282,453
492,555
179,084
Gain on Changes in Fair Value of Biological Assets
9
83,948
37,394
					
Distribution Expenses 		
(52,716)
(16,089)
Administrative Expenses 		
(311,578)
(186,649)
(27,842)
(48,169)
Other Operating Expenses 		
(409,037)
(409,037)
		 (364,294)
(611,775)
(27,842)
(457,206)
Results from Operating Activities 		
598,391
131,487
535,881
(67,836)
					
Finance Cost
10
(275,460)
(190,333)
(169,870)
(84,729)
Change in Fair Value of Investment Properties
18
(795)
250,000
9,000
Share of result of Equity Accounted Investees (Net of Tax)
24
(243,182)
(101,065)
Gain on Bargain Purchase
11
469
2,656,003
Profit Before Taxation
12
79,423
2,746,092
375,011
(152,565)
Income Tax Expense
13
(45,495)
(122,594)
(48,809)
Profit for the Year		
33,928
2,623,498
375,011
(201,374)
					
Profit Attributable to: 					
Equity holders of the Parent 		
(35,815)
2,565,533
375,011
(201,374)
Non-Controlling interest 		
69,743
57,965
		
33,928
2,623,498
375,011
(201,374)
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Earnings per Share 					
Basic
14
(0.02)
1.39
0.20
(0.11)
					
Diluted
14
(0.02)
1.39
0.20
(0.11)
Dividend Per Ordinary share (Rs.)

15

-

Figures in brackets indicate deductions
The Significant Accounting Policies and Notes as set out in Pages 37 to 116 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
Colombo
30th July 2013

0.10

-

0.10

STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	Group
For the year ended 31st March
Notes
2012/2013
2011/2012
In Rs.‘000s

Company
2012/2013
2011/2012

Profit for the Year 		
33,928
2,623,498
375,011
(201,374)
					
Other Comprehensive Income
Changes in Revaluation surplus 		
231,358
319,452
136,900
Unrealized Net change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets 		
(130,473)
(17,663)
(130,415)
(17,559)
Realized Gain/(Loss) on available-for-sale financial assets reclassified to
Statement of Comprehensive Income. 		
(56,752)		
(56,752)
Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on Post Employment Benefit Obligation 		
(11,676)
21,422
Deferred tax on revaluation 		
(7,383)
3,977
Tax on other comprehensive income 		
(3,810)
(3,039)
					
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year, Net of Tax		
78,016
267,397
6,485
(74,311)
					
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year, Net of Tax		111,944
2,890,895
381,496
(275,685)
Attributable to: 					
Equity holders of the Company 		
71,734
210,785
6,485
(74,311)
Non Controlling interest 		
6,282
56,612
		 78,016
267,397
6,485
(74,311)
Figures in brackets indicate deductions
The Significant Accounting Policies and Notes as set out in Pages 37 to 116 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
In Rs.‘000s 	Group
Notes
31st Mar 2013
31st Mar 2012

01st Apr 2011

31st Mar 2013

Company
31st Mar 2012

01st Apr 2011
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ASSETS 							
Non-Current Assets 							
Leasehold Property
16
134,718
138,903
143,087
Property, Plant and Equipment
17
2,881,570
2,314,008
873,840
605,817
677,585
358,497
Investment Property
18
3,927,256
3,799,597
49,597
135,000
Intangible Assets
19
49,887
48,445
2,864
1,189
Bearer Biological Assets
20
1,975,422
1,842,608
1,600,287
Consumable Biological Assets
21
1,567,671
1,514,295
1,630,000
Investment in Subsidiaries
22
1,572,962
1,251,687
Investment in Joint Venture
23
50,000
50,000
50,000
Investments in Equity Accounted Investees
24
1,158,101
1,350,728
1,054,600
1,190,088
1,190,088
897,174
Other Long Term Investments
25
1,003,349
946,581
920,840
987,939
934,388
911,832
Total Non-Current Assets 		
12,697,974
11,955,165
6,275,115
4,542,995
4,103,748
2,217,503
Current Assets 							
Inventories
26
454,965
324,189
189,900
Trade and Other Receivables
27
506,623
349,214
212,093
23,428
81,753
96,310
Loans to Related Parties
28
445,262
591,033
617,791
535,137
674,356
617,791
Amounts due from Related Parties
29
225,129
240,716
197,965
1,114,527
438,454
380,727
Short Term Investments
30
1,639,201
2,309,750
4,076,655
1,366,259
2,011,990
4,002,641
Cash at Bank and in Hand
31
268,450
397,794
537,085
2,896
38,360
3,734
Total Current Assets 		
3,539,630
4,212,696
5,831,489
3,042,247
3,244,913
5,101,203
Total Assets 		
16,237,604
16,167,861
12,106,604
7,585,242
7,348,661
7,318,706
						
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 							
Stated Capital
32
5,380,000
5,380,000
5,130,000
5,380,000
5,380,000
5,130,000
Capital Reserves
33
176,064
97,906
(121,233)
(212,780)
(219,265)
(144,954)
Revenue Reserves 		
5,097,667
5,132,683
2,879,304
1,343,549
968,538
1,471,705
Equity Attributable to Equity holders of the Company 		
10,653,731
10,610,589
7,888,071
6,510,769
6,129,273
6,456,751
Non Controlling Interest 		
2,000,346
2,021,917
1,772,007
Total Equity 		
12,654,077
12,632,506
9,660,078
6,510,769
6,129,273
6,456,751
							
Non Current Liabilities 							
Interest Bearing Borrowings
34
1,185,304
611,248
164,500
771,000
128,000
Finance Lease Obligations
35
82,047
85,059
88,724
Retirement Benefit Obligations
36
417,430
403,935
377,781
Deferred Tax Liability
37
295,084
281,713
258,658
Deferred Income
38
142,464
147,575
133,692
Loans from Related Parties
39
50,000
Total Non Current Liabilities		
2,172,329
1,529,530
1,023,355
771,000
128,000
							
Current Liabilities 							
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
40
525,580
435,282
301,274
1,852
40,168
44,859
Interest Bearing Borrowings due within one year
34
311,788
534,565
44,302
175,000
384,000
Finance Lease Obligations due within one year
35
3,005
6,058
5,844
Loans from Related Parties
41
50,000
597,401
771,058
541,401
709,634
Amounts due to Related Parties
42
280,805
247,666
243,435
74,772
77,011
105,817
Rescheduled Debentures 		
410
Income Tax Payable
43
47,306
66,868
15,914
25,180
48,808
1,645
Short Term Interest Bearing Borrowings 		
54,522
35,955
16,380
Bank Overdraft
31
138,192
82,030
24,554
26,669
Total Current Liabilities		
1,411,198
2,005,825
1,423,171
303,473
1,091,388
861,955
Total Equity & Liabilities		
16,237,604
16,167,861
12,106,604
7,585,242
7,348,661
7,318,706
							
Net Assets per Ordinary Share (Rs.)
44
5.73
5.70
4.36
3.50
3.30
3.57
Contingencies and Commitments
46
The Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 37 to 116 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
These Financial Statements are prepared and presented in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No.7 of 2007.
			
P.S. Goonawardena
Group Chief Financial Officer
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements.
Signed for and on behalf of the Board

I.C. Nanayakkara
Executive Chairman/Executive Director
Colombo
30th July 2013

P.R. Saldin
Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer

Equity Attributable to Equity holders of the Parent

5,130,000
250,000
5,380,000
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Figures in brackets indicate deductions

Profit for the year 			
Other Comprehensive Income 			
Dividend paid 			Balance as at 31st March 2013
		
5,380,000

Balance as at 1st April 2011
		
Issue of shares 			
Loss for the year 			
Other Comprehensive Income 			
Dividend Paid 			
Balance as at 31st March 2012 			

(144,954)
(74,311)
(219,265)
-		
136,900
(130,415)
136,900
(349,680)

-

375,011
1,343,549

1,471,705
(115,793)
(201,374)
(186,000)
968,538

375,011
6,485
6,510,769

6,456,751
134,207
(201,374)
(74,311)
(186,000)
6,129,273

Stated
Revaluation	Available for
Retained
Total
Non-Controlling
Total
Capital
Reserve
Sale Reserve	Earnings		
Interest	Equity
							
Balance as at 1st April 2011
5,130,000
23,721
(144,954)
2,879,304
7,888,071
1,772,007
9,660,078
Acquisition of Subsidiary
-		
180,737
180,737
Gain on further Acquisition
8,514
8,514
6,966
15,480
Adjustment due to changes in holdings
136
(6,578)
(6,442)
(3,090)
(9,532)
Dividend paid
(186,000)
(186,000)
(50,112)
(236,112)
Impact on SLFRS Adoption of Subsidiaries
26,601
(26,478)
123
123
Other Movements in Net Assets of Equity Accounted Investees
(3,370)
(3,370)
(3,370)
Profit for the Year
2,565,533
2,565,533
57,965
2,623,498
Other Comprehensive Income
266,817
(74,415)
18,383
210,785
56,612
267,397
Issue of Ordinary shares/Cost on Share Issue
250,000
(115,793)
134,207
134,207
Preference dividend
(832)
(832)
832
Balance as at 31st March 2012
5,380,000
317,275
(219,369)
5,132,683
10,610,589
2,021,917
12,632,506
							
Adjustment due to changes in holdings
(440)
(5,957)
(6,397)
(498)
(6,895)
Preference dividend
(832)
(832)
832
Cost on share issue
(1,399)
(1,399)
(203)
(1,602)
Realized Revaluation on Disposals
(3,476)
2,620
(856)
(822)
(1,678)
Dividend paid
(96,905)
(96,905)
Profit for the Year
(35,815)
(35,815)
69,743
33,928
Other Comprehensive Income
213,883
(130,473)
(11,676)
71,734
6,282
78,016
Other Movements in Net Assets of Equity Accounted Investees
(1,336)		
18,043
16,707 		
16,707
Balance as at 31st March 2013
5,380,000
525,906
(349,842)
5,097,667
10,653,731
2,000,346
12,654,077
							
Company 			
Stated
Revaluation	Available for
Retained
Total
			
Capital
Reserve
Sale Reserve	Earnings	Equity

Group

In Rs.‘000s

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
	Group
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In Rs.‘000s

2012/2013

Company
2011/2012

2012/2013

2011/2012

Cash Flows From Operating Activities					
Profit/(Loss) before Taxation
79,423
2,746,092
375,011
(152,565)
	Adjustments for :				
Gain in Fair Value of Investment Properties
795
(250,000)
(9,000)
Profit on Disposal of Short Term Investments
(2,122)
(52,217)
(2,122)
(52,217)
Provision for Retirement Benefit Obligations - Gratuity
65,658
39,121
Depreciation/Amortization
124,378
85,783
Amortization of Prepaid Lease Rent
4,185
4,184
Share of Profit/(Loss) of Equity Accounted Investees (Net of Tax)
243,182
101,065
Capital Grants Amortized
(4,682)
(5,349)
Interest Expense
275,460
190,333
169,870
84,729
Interest Income
(220,446)
(186,473)
(167,812)
(128,577)
Market Value Adjustment for Carrying Value of Short Term Investments
(153,640)
414,567
(156,561)
409,037
Negative Goodwill on Acquisition of Shares
(469)
(2,656,003)
Gain on Changes in fair value of Biological assets
(83,948)
(37,394)
Dividend Income
(41,867)
(29,365)
(51,867)
(29,365)
Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment
(642)
(1,254)
(167,517)
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes
285,265
363,090
(9,998)
131,042
						
Working Capital Changes				
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories
(130,776)
(134,289)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables
(177,135)
(145,003)
47,336
14,560
(Increase)/Decrease in Loans To Related Parties
145,771
26,758
139,219
(56,565)
(Increase)/Decrease in Amounts Due From Related Parties
15,587
(42,751)
(676,073)
(57,727)
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables
90,298
134,008
(38,316)
(4,691)
Increase/(Decrease) in Loans From Related Parties
(497,401)
(173,657)
(541,401)
(168,233)
Increase/(Decrease) in Amounts Due To Related Parties
33,139
4,231
(2,239)
(28,806)
Cash Generated From/(Used In) Operations
(235,252)
32,387
(1,081,472)
(170,420)
Income Tax/ESC/SRL Paid
(38,300)
(29,639)
(12,639)
Retiring Gratuity Paid
(52,163)
(40,021)
(1,645)
Interest Paid
(271,013)
(190,333)
(169,870)
(84,729)
Net Cash Generated From/(Used In) Operating Activities
(596,728)
(227,606)
(1,263,981)
(256,794)
						
Cash Flows From Investing Activities					
Acquisition of Subsidiaries
(1,147,376)
(276)
(1,203,287)
Acquisition of Investment Property
(2,454)
Investments in Intangible Assets
(1,754)
(1,189)
Investments in Equity Accounted Investees
(341,314)
(341,314)
Acquisition of Bearer Biological Assets-Net of Immature Grants
(112,069)
(111,900)
Acquisition and Construction of Property, Plant and Equipment
(647,319)
(620,371)
(70,814)
(319,088)
Capital Grants Received
398
936 		
Interest Income Received
220,446
180,434
167,812
130,677
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
9,665
1,512 		
Investments in Short Term Investments
(70,731)
(1,585,132)
(54,827)
(1,430,496)
Receipts from Withdrawal of Short Term Investments
717,681
3,350,045
675,302
3,273,471
Acquisition of Long Term Investments
(2,980)
(308,115)
(27)
(308,115)
Dividend Received
43,507
30,164
51,867
29,365
Net Cash Generated/(Used) in Investment Activities
154,390
(551,117)
767,848
(168,787)
						
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Repayment of Finance Lease Liabilities
(10,512)
(11,244)
Receipt from Issue of Ordinary Shares
284,850
250,000
Cost of issue of Shares
(382)
(115,793)		
(115,793)
Term and Other Loans Repaid
(236,622)
(73,881)
(153,900)
Term and Other Loans Received
587,900
716,186
587,900
512,000
Payment of Short Term Loans - Net of Receipts
18,567
19,575
Settlement of Rescheduled Debentures
(410)
Dividends Paid
(102,119)
(237,327)
(186,000)
Net Cash Flows Generated From/(Used In) Financing Activities
256,832
581,956
434,000
460,207
						
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
(185,506)
(196,767)
(62,133)
34,626
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of the Year
315,764
512,531
38,360
3,734
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of the Year
130,258
315,764
(23,773)
38,360
						
Note A : Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of the Year					
Cash in Hand and at Banks
Bank Overdrafts
			
The Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 37 to 116 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
Colombo
30th July 2013

268,450
(138,192)
130,258

397,794
(82,030)
315,764

2,896
(26,669)
(23,773)

38,360
38,360

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Standards (IFRSs), all existing/new Sri Lanka Accounting Standards were
prefixed as SLFRS and LKAS (referred to as ‘SLFRS’ in these Financial
Statements) to represent Sri Lanka Accounting Standards corresponding to
International Financial Reporting Standards and Sri Lanka Accounting Standards
corresponding to International Accounting Standards (IASs), respectively.
Accordingly, the Company adopted these new Sri Lanka Accounting Standards
(which are commonly known as SLFRSs) applicable for financial periods
commencing from January 1, 2012.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
Reporting Entity – Domicile and Legal Form
Browns Investments PLC, (“the Company”) is a public quoted company
incorporated on 10th November’2008 under the Companies Act No.07 of
2007 and domiciled in Sri Lanka.
The Registered Office of the Company is located at 481, T.B.Jayah Mawatha,
Colombo 10 and the Business Office is located at No. 34, Mohamed Macan
Marker Mawatha, Colombo 03.

These Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 are the first
Financial Statements the Group prepared in accordance with SLFRS and Sri
Lanka Accounting Standard – SLFRS 1 on ‘First-time Adoption of Sri Lanka
Accounting Standards’ has been applied.

Browns Investment PLC became the holding company of the Group during the
financial year ended 31st March 2010.
Ordinary shares of the Company are listed on the Diri Savi Board of the
Colombo Stock Exchange

An explanation of how the transition to SLFRSs has affected the reported
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Group
is provided in Note 4 on pages 55 to 63. The Group did not adopt any
inappropriate accounting treatments which are not complying with the
requirements of the SLFRSs and other laws and regulations governing the
preparation and presentation of Financial Statements.

The staff strength of the Company as at 31st March 2013 was four (three as
at 31st March 2012).

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

Consolidated financial statements
The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013, comprise “the
Company” referring to Browns Investments PLC as the holding Company
and “the Group” referring to the companies whose accounts have been
consolidated therein.
Principal Activities and Nature of Operations
There were no significant changes in the nature of the principal activities of
the Company and the group during the financial year under review. Principal
activities of the group are described in detail in the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” pages 14 to 17 the Annual Report.

• a Statement of Comprehensive Income providing the information on the
financial performance of the Company for the year under review
• a Statement of Financial Position providing the information on the financial
position of the Company as at the year-end
• a Statement of Changes in Equity depicting all changes in shareholders’
funds during the year under review of the Company
• a Statement of Cash Flows providing the information to the users, on the
ability of the Company to generate cash and cash equivalents and the
needs of entities to utilise those cash flows and

Financial Period
The financial period of the company and its Group represents twelve months
period, 01st April 2012 to 31st March 2013.
Responsibility for Financial Statements
The responsibility of the Directors in relation to the financial statements is set
out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibility report in the Annual Report.

1.7.

Date of Authorization for Issue
The Financial Statements of Browns Investments PLC., for the year ended 31st
March, 2013 (including comparatives) were authorized for issue in accordance
with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 30th July 2013.
BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of Compliance
The Financial Statements of the Group have been prepared and presented
in accordance with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards promulgated by The
Institute of Chartered Accountant of Sri Lanka and in compliance with the
requirements of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 and amendments thereto,
For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2012 the Group
prepared their Financial Statements in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting
Standards which were in effect up to that date. Following the convergence
of Sri Lanka Accounting Standards with the International Financial Reporting

Responsibility for Financial Statements
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the
Financial Statements of the Company as per the provisions of the Companies
Act No. 07 of 2007 and in accordance with new Sri Lanka Accounting
Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants.
These Financial Statements include the following components:

Immediate and ultimate Parent Enterprise
The company is a subsidiary of Brown & Company PLC which holds 38.68%
of issued ordinary shares of Browns Investments PLC., In the opinion of the
Directors, the company’s ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party
as at the date of Financial Position was Lanka Orix Leasing Company PLC
incorporated and domiciled in Sri Lanka.

1.6.

2.
2.1

2.2

• Notes to the Financial Statements comprising Accounting Policies and other
explanatory information
2.3

Basis of Measurement
The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with
the historical cost conversion, except for the following material items in the
statement of financial position,
• Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value
• Consumable Biological (timber stocks) assets are measured at fair value
less cost to sell
• Bearer Biological assets namely Rubber and Coconut are measured at fair
value less cost to sell
• Liability for defined benefit obligations is recognized as the present value
of the defined benefit obligation plus unrecognized actuarial gains, less
unrecognized past service cost and unrecognized actuarial losses.
•		Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value
• Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value
• Lands and buildings are measured at the revalued amounts
•

Investment properties are measured at fair value
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4

2.5

2.6

No adjustments being made for inflationary factors affecting the Financial
Statements,

Goodwill on Business Combination

3.1.11

41

Functional and Presentation Currency
Items included in the Financial Statements of the group are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates
(the Functional Currency). These Financial Statements are presented in Sri
Lankan Rupees, the Group’s Functional and Presentation Currency. There was
no change in the group’s Presentation and Functional Currency during the year
under review.

Gain on Bargain Purchase on Business Combination

3.1.12

41

Deferred Acquisition Cost

3.16.b

53

Retirement Benefit Obligation

3.4.2.2

49

3.6.2

50

Presentation of Financial Statements
The assets and liabilities of the Group presented in its Statement of Financial
Position are grouped by nature and listed in an order that reflects their relative
liquidity and maturity pattern.

Page 38
BROWNS INVESTMENTS PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013

Leasehold Right to Bare Land

3.2.6.c

44

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

3.2.8

45

Useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment

3.2.1

42

3.2.4.c

44

Useful lives of Intangible Assets

Changes to the Estimates
The Company’s Joint Venture’s Sub-subsidiaries is using a material value of
fully-depreciated assets in commercial operations. This indicates objective
evidence that those estimates were in error in terms of LKAS 8. The Plant
& Machinery and Motor Vehicles are identified as the class of assets which
contributes to a major part of fully- depreciated assets.

Materiality and Aggregation
Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the Financial
Statements. Items of dissimilar nature or function are presented separately
unless they are immaterial as permitted by the Sri Lanka Accounting StandardLKAS 1 on ‘Presentation of Financial Statements.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the statement of financial position, only when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously.
Income and expenses are not offset in the income statement unless required
or permitted by any accounting standard or interpretation, and as specifically
disclosed in the accounting policies.

2.7

Deferred Taxation

Significant Accounting judgments, Estimates and Assumptions
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with SLFRSs requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Hence, actual experience and results may differ from these
judgments and assumptions.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimates are revised, if the revision affects only that period and any future
periods affected.
The most significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in
applying accounting policies that have most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the Financial Statements of the Group is in the following notes;

Critical Accounting Estimate/Judgment

The Company’s Joint Venture’s Sub-subsidiaries (Maturata Plantations Ltd and
Pussellawa Plantations Ltd) revisited the useful lives residual values of freehold
plant & machinery and motor vehicles and adjusted prospectively.
2.8

Comparative Information
The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Group with
those of the previous financial year in accordance with LKAS 01 Presentation
of Financial Statements, except those which had to be changed as a result of
application of the new Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLFRS/LKAS). Further,
comparative year’s Information and Phrases have been re-arranged, reclassified
whenever necessary, to comply with the current year’s presentation.

2.9	Going Concern
The management has made an assessment of its ability to continue as a
going concern and is satisfied that it has the resources to continue in business
for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is not aware of any
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the Financial Statements continue to
be prepared on a going concern basis.
2.10

New Accounting Standards issued but not Effective at Reporting Date
Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the
group’s financial statements are listed below. This listing of standards and
interpretations issued are those that the company reasonably expects to have
an impact on disclosures, financial positions or performance when applied at
a future date. The Group intends to adopt these standards when they become
effective.

Accounting
Standard

Disclosure reference
Note

Page

Bearer Biological Assets – Rubber & Coconut

20

75-77

Consumable Biological Assets - Timber

21

Determination in Fair Value of Investment
Properties

Name of the Standard

Effective Date

SLFRS 9

Financial Instruments Classification and
Measurement

1st January 2015

78-79

SLFRS 10

Consolidated Financial Statements

1st January 2014

18

74

SLFRS11

Joint Arrangements

1st January 2014

SLFRS 12

Disclosure of Interest in other entities

1st January 2014

Financial Instruments- Fair Value Disclosure

50

112-114

SLFRS 13

Fair value Measurement

1st January 2015

Revaluation of Lands & Buildings

17

69-73

ICASL has not been finalized as of the date of auditor’s report, Company’s Joint
Venture’s Sub-subsidiaries have not been complied with the SORP issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka.

None of these is expected to have a significant effect on the Financial
Statements of the Group. Therefore, extent of the impact has not been
determined.

c)

d)

SLFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements
SLFRS 10 replaces the portion of LKAS 27 Consolidated and separate
financial statements, that addresses the accounting for consolidated financial
statements. It also includes the issues raised in Standing Interpretations
Committee (SIC) 12 Consolidation Special Purpose Entities. SLFRS 10
establishes a single control model that applies to all entities including
special purpose entities. The changes introduced by SLFRS 10 will require
management to exercise significant judgment to determine which entities are
controlled, and therefore are required to be consolidated by a parent, compared
with the requirements that were in LKAS 27. This standard becomes effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
SLFRS 11 - Joint Arrangements
SLFRS 11 replaces LKAS 31 Interests in joint ventures and SIC on Jointlycontrolled entities and Non-monetary contributions by ventures. SLFRS 11
removes the option to account for Jointly Controlled Entities (JCEs) using
proportionate consolidation. Instead, JCEs that meet the definition of a joint
venture must be accounted for using the equity method. The application of this
new standard will impact the financial position of the Group. This is due to the
cessation proportionate consolidating of joint ventures being changed to equity
accounting. This standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2014.
SLFRS 12 - Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
SLFRS 12 includes all of the disclosures that were previously in LKAS 27
related to consolidated financial statements, as well as all of the disclosures
that were previously included in LKAS 31 and LKAS 28. These disclosures
relate to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates
and structured entities. A number of new disclosures are also required. This
standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014.

e)

SLFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement
SLFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance under SLFRS for all fair value
measurements. SLFRS 13 does not state when an entity is required to use
fair value, but rather provides guidance on how to measure fair value under
SLFRS when fair value is required or permitted. The Company is currently
assessing the impact that this standard will have on the financial position and
performance. This standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2014.

2.11

Withdrawal of UITF Rulings
The Urgent Issue Task Force (UITF) rulings issued prior to 1 January 2012
have been superseded by the Sri Lanka Accounting Framework with effect
from 1 January 2012. Consequently it is now required to treat transactions
which any of UITF rulings applied, in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting
Framework effective from 1 January 2012. Since the SORP issued by the

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all
periods presented in these Financial Statements and in preparing the opening
SLFRS Statement of Financial Position at 1st April 2011 for the purposes of
the transition to SLFRSs, unless otherwise indicated.
The accounting policies of the company have been applied consistently by
Group entities where applicable and deviations, if any, have been disclosed
accordingly.

3.1

Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements (referred to as the ‘group’) comprise the
financial statements of the company and its subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities. The financial statements of the subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities are prepared for the same reporting period as the
parent company, using consistent accounting policies in compliance with the
Group accounting policies unless otherwise stated.
All intra-Group balances, income and expenses, unrealised gains and losses
resulting from intra-Group transactions and dividends are eliminated in full.
Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interest even
if that results in a deficit balance. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.
If the group losses control over a subsidiary, it:
• Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary
• Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest
• Derecognises the cumulative transaction differences, recorded in equity
• Recognises the fair value of consideration received
• Recognises the fair value of any investment retained
• Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss
• Reclassify the parent’s share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate
The consolidated financial statements of Browns Investments PLC., as at and
for the year ended 31 March 2013 comprise the company, its subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entities. (together referred to as the ‘group’).

3.1.1 Business Combinations
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method in
accordance with the SLFRS 3. - Business Combinations. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred,
measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree. For each business combination, the group elects
whether it measures the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
Other cost related to acquisition are expensed and included in administrative
expenses.
When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and
liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance
with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as
at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts by the acquiree.
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b)

SLFRS 9 - Financial Instruments
SLFRS 9 as issued reflects the replacement of LKAS 39 and applies to
classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities as
defined in LKAS 39. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2015. The adoption of SLFRS 9 will have an effect on the
classification and measurement of the Company’s financial assets, but will
potentially have no impact on classification and measurements of financial
liabilities.
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a)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to
fair value at the acquisition date through profit or loss.
After the control of an entity is obtained, changes in ownership interest that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted as equity transactions and gain or
loss from these changes are not recognised in Income Statement.
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration which is deemed to be an asset or
liability, will be recognised in accordance with LKAS 39 either in profit or loss or
as a change to other comprehensive income.
3.1.1.1	Acquisitions on or after 01 April 2011
For acquisitions on or after 01 April 2011, the Group measures goodwill as
the fair value of the consideration transferred including the recognized amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree, less the net recognized amount
(generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed,
all measured as of the acquisition date. When the excess is negative, a bargain
purchase gain is recognized immediately in profit or loss.
The Group elects on a transaction-by-transaction basis whether to measure
non-controlling interest at its fair value, or at its proportionate share of the
recognized amount of the identifiable net assets, at the acquisition date.
Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity
securities, that the Group incurs in connection with a business combination are
expensed as incurred.

BROWNS INVESTMENTS PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013

Page 40

3.1.1.2	Acquisitions prior to 01 April 2011
As part of its transition to SLFRSs, the Group elected to restate only those
business combinations that occurred on or after 01 April 2011. In respect of
acquisitions prior to 01 April 2011, goodwill represents the amount recognized
under the Group’s previous accounting framework, SLASs.
3.1.2. Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group. Control exists when the
company has the power, directly or indirectly to govern the financial and
operating policies of an enterprise so as to obtain benefits from its activities
which is evident when the group controls the composition of the board of
directors of the entity or holds more than 50% of the issued shares of the
entity or 50% of the voting rights of the entity or entitled to receive more than
half of every dividend from shares carrying unlimited right to participate in
distribution of profits or capital.
The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control effectively commences until the
date that control effectively ceases. The subsidiaries are disclosed in the Note
20 to the financial statements.
The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed when necessary
to align them with the policies adopted by the Group. If a member of the
group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated
financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances,
appropriate adjustments are made to its financial statements in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.
3.1.3 Non-controlling interests
Non-controlling Interests is the equity in a subsidiary not attributable, directly or
indirectly, to the parent are presented in the Consolidated Balance Sheet within

Equity, separately from the Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent
(Company).
The group applies a policy of treating transactions with Non-Controlling interest
as transactions with parties external to the group.
3.1.4	Acquisition of Non-controlling interests
Subsequent to the acquisition of control, any further acquisition of net assets
from non-controlling interests is accounted for as transactions with owners in
their capacity as owners. Therefore no goodwill is recognized as a result of
such transactions.
Any difference between the amount by which the minority interests is adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received shall be recognized
directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the parent.
3.1.5 Loss of control
The parent can lose control of a subsidiary with or without a change in absolute
or relative ownership levels. Upon the loss of control, the Group derecognises
the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-controlling interests and
the other components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit
arising on the loss of control is recognized in the income statement.
If the Group retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest
is measured at fair value at the date that control is lost. Subsequently it is
accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or as other financial asset
depending on the level of influence retained.
3.1.6	Associates - Equity Accounted Investees
Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but
not control, over the financial and operating activities. Significant influence is
presumed to exist when the Group holds between 20 and 50 percent of the
voting power of another entity.
Associates are accounted for using the equity method (equity accounted
investees) and are initially recognized at cost. The Group’s investment in
associate includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated
impairment losses.
The Consolidated Financial Statements include the Group’s share of the income
and expenses and equity movements of equity accounted investees, after
adjustments to align the accounting policies with those of the Group, from
the date that significant influence commences until the date that significant
influence ceases.
When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an equity accounted
investee, the carrying amount of that interest (including any long-term
investments) is reduced to nil and the recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has made
payments on behalf of the investee. Associate Companies of the Group which
have been accounted for under the equity method of accounting are disclosed
under Note 24 to these Financial Statements.
3.1.7 Jointly-Controlled Entities
Joint ventures are those entities over whose activities the Group has joint
control, established by contractual agreement and requiring unanimous consent
for strategic financial and operating decisions.
Jointly-controlled entities are accounted for using proportionate consolidation
method, from the date that joint control commences until the date that joint
control ceases. The group combines its share of the joint ventures’ individual

3.1.8 Reporting Date
All the Group’s Subsidiaries, Associate Companies and joint venture companies
have a common financial year end which ends on 31st March.
3.1.9 Balances and transactions eliminated on Consolidation
Intragroup balances and transactions, including income, expenses and
dividends, are eliminated in full. Profits and losses resulting from intragroup
transactions that are recognized in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets,
are eliminated in full in preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Unrealized gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted investees and
jointly controlled entities are eliminated against the investment to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the investee.
3.1.10 Cost of Acquisition
The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of
exchange.
3.1.11	Goodwill on Acquisition
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of any acquisition of a subsidiary or
an associate over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired.
The Company will test the goodwill for impairment annually and assess for any
indication of impairment to ensure that its carrying amount does not exceed
the recoverable amount. If an impairment loss is identified, it is recognized
immediately to the Income Statement. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination.
The impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets pro-rata to the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Where goodwill forms part of a cashgenerating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the
operation.
Carrying amount of the goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiaries and
joint ventures is presented as an intangible and the goodwill on an acquisition
of an equity accounted investment is included in the carrying value of the
investment.
3.1.12	Gain on Bargain Purchase (Negative Goodwill)
If the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the acquisition of the entity, the
Group will reassess the measurement of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities and the measurement of the cost and recognize the difference
immediately in the Consolidated Income Statement.

3.2.1.2 Basis of Measurement
Cost
Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment loss. Cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed
assets includes the cost of materials and direct labor, any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended
use, the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site
on which they are located, and capitalized borrowing costs for long-term
construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.
When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the group derecognises the replaced part, and recognizes the new
part with its own associated useful life and depreciation. Likewise, when a
major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount
of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria
are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income as incurred.
The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of the asset
after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition
criteria for a provision are met.
Revaluation
Assets are measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation on the assets
and impairment losses recognised after the date of the revaluation. Valuations
are performed with sufficient frequency to ensure that the fair value of a
revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying amount.
Any revaluation surplus is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity in the asset revaluation reserve, except to the extent
that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised
in the other comprehensive income, in which case the increase is recognised in
the other comprehensive income. A revaluation deficit is recognised in the other
comprehensive income, except to the extent that it offsets an existing surplus
on the same assets recognised in the assets revaluation reserve.
An annual transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to retained earnings is
made for the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying
amount of the assets and depreciation based on the assets original cost.
Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated
against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated
to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve
relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred to retained earnings.
3.2.1.3 Subsequent Cost
The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant & equipment is
recognized in the carrying amount of the item. If it is probable that the future
economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the group and its cost
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of those parts that are replaced
is derecognised in accordance with the derecognition policy given below. The
costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant & equipment are recognized
in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred.
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Jointly-controlled entities of the Group which have been accounted for under
the proportionate consolidation method of accounting are disclosed in Note 23
to these Financial Statements.

3.2	Assets and Bases of Their Valuation
3.2.1 Property, Plant and Equipment
3.2.1.1 Basis of Recognition
Property, plant and equipment are recognized if it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the group and cost of
the asset can be reliably measured.
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income and expenses, assets and liabilities and cash flows on a line-by-line
basis with similar items in the group’s financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.2.1.4 Derecognition
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially
recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of
comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised.
The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively to the financial
statements, to increase the relevance and reliability of information provided in
financial statements for decision makers if appropriate;
3.2.1.5 Depreciation
Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Significant
components of individual assets are assessed and if a component has a useful
life that is different from the remainder of that asset, that component is
depreciated separately.
Depreciation is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of each component of an item
of property, plant and equipment other than freehold land. Assets held under
finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their
useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Group will obtain ownership
by the end of the lease term.
Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use and ceases at the
earlier of the date that the asset is classified as held for sale and the date that
the asset is de-recognized.
The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative year are as follows:
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Property, Plant & Equipment

No. of Years Range

Rate Range

Buildings

20 to 50 years

50 % to 5 %

Plant & Machinery

5 to 30 years

3.33% to 20%

Motor Vehicles

1 to 15 years

6.66% to 100%

Tools & Equipments

8 to 40 years

2.5% to 12.50%

Computers

4 to 8 years

12.50% to 25%

Furniture & Fittings

5 to 20 years

5% to 20%

Ergonomic Equipment

25 years

4%

Water, Sanitations & Others

20 years

5%

Roads & Bridges

50 years

2%

Penstock Pipeline

20 years

5%

Security Fences

3 years

33.33%

Power/Electricity Supply

131/3 years

7.5%

Air Conditioners

5 years

20%

Generator

8 years

12.5%

Cutlery, Crockery & Glassware

5 years

20%

Linen

3 years

33.33%

Sewage System

20 years

5%

The cost of areas coming into bearing are transferred to mature plantations and
depreciated as follows.
No depreciation is provided for immature plantations.

Bearer Biological Assets

No. of Years Range

Rate Range

Tea

30 to 33.33 years

3% to 3.33%

Mixed/Other Crops

10 to 15 years

6.66% to 10%

	Amortization
The leasehold rights are being amortized in equal amounts over the shorter of
lease term and the expected useful life of the assets as follows.
lass of Asset

No. of Years Range

Rate Range

Bare land

53 years

1.89%

Mature Plantations – Tea

30 years

3.33%

Other Crops

15 years

6.67%

Buildings

25 years

4%

Machinery

15 years

6.67%

Water & sanitation

15 to 20 years

6.67% to 5%

Other Vested Assets

15 to 30 years

6.67% to 3.33%

Permanent Land Development

53 years

1.89%

Improvements to Lands

30 years

3.33%

3.2.2 Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell. Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale only
when the sale is highly probable and the asset or disposal group is available
for immediate sale in its present condition. In the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income of the reporting period, and of the comparable period
of the previous year, income and expenses from discontinued operations are
reported separately from income and expenses from continuing operations.
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for
sale are not depreciated or amortized.
3.2.3 Biological Assets
Biological assets are classified as mature biological assets and immature
biological assets. Mature biological assets are those that have attained
harvestable specifications or are able to sustain regular harvests. Immature
biological assets are those that have not yet attained harvestable
specifications. Tea, rubber, coconut, timber, other plantations and nurseries are
classified as biological assets.
The biological assets are further classified as bearer biological assets and
consumables biological assets. Bearer biological assets includes tea, rubber and
coconut trees, those that are not intended to be sold or harvested, however,
used to grow for harvesting agricultural produce from such biological assets.
Consumable biological assets includes managed timber own by the company
(Eucalyptus Torariyana, Albezzia, Graveelia, Eucalyptus Grandis, Astonia, Pinus,
Toona, Mahogany, Teak, Jak, Rubber, Nadun, Mango, Pellen, Hora, Domba,
Lunumidella, Wal Del and Mara on the plantations have been taken into
consideration in this valuation of timber trees) those that are to be harvested
as agricultural produce or sold as biological assets.
The entity recognizes the biological assets when, and only when, the entity
controls the assets as a result of past event, it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the assets will flow to the entity and the fair value or
cost of the assets can be measured reliably.

a)

Limited Life Land Development Cost on Bearer Biological Assets at Cost
(New/Re-Planting)
The total cost of land preparation, rehabilitation, new planting, replanting, crop
diversification, inter-planting and fertilizing etc, incurred between the time of
planting and harvesting (When the planted area attains maturity) are classified
as immature plantations. These immature plantations are shown at direct costs
plus attributable overheads, including interest (borrowing cost) attributable to
long-term loans used for financing immature plantations.
Attributable overheads incurred on the plantation are apportioned based on the
labour days spent on respective replanting and new planting and capitalized on
the immature areas. The remaining non attributable overhead is expensed in
the accounting period in which it is incurred.
The expenditure incurred on bearer biological assets (tea) fields, which come
into bearing during the year, has been transferred to mature bearer biological
assets and depreciated over their useful life in accordance with the LKAS16 –
Property, Plant and Equipment.

b)

Infilling Costs
The land development costs incurred in the form of infilling have been
capitalized to the relevant mature field where infilling results in an increase
in the economic life of the relevant field beyond its pre-infilling standard of
performance. Infilling costs so capitalized are depreciated over the newly
assessed remaining useful life of the relevant mature plantation or the
unexpired lease period, whichever is lower.
Infilling cost that are not capitalized have been charged to the statement of
comprehensive income in the year in which they are incurred.

c)	Growing Crop Nurseries
Nursery cost includes the cost of direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of directly attributable overheads.
3.2.3.2 Bearer Biological Assets – At Fair Value
The Group recognizes the Rubber and Coconut plantations at fair value less
estimated point-of-sale-of-costs, in accordance with LKAS 41- Agriculture. Pointof-sales-costs include all the costs that would be necessary to sell the assets,
including costs necessary to get the assets to market. In respect of Rubber
and Coconut Plants having below six years of age as at the date of financial
position, have been taken at cost. The fair value of rubber and coconut are
measured using DCF Method based on forecasted future cash flows.
The Group has engaged an Independent Chartered Valuation Surveyor Mr.
K.T.D. Tissera in determining the fair value of Rubber and Coconut Bearer

3.2.3.3 Consumable Biological Assets
Consumable biological asset is stated at fair value less estimated point-of-saleof-costs in terms of LKAS 41 – Agriculture. Point-of-sales-costs include all the
costs that would be necessary to sell the assets, including costs necessary to
get the assets to market.
The company has engaged an Independent Chartered Valuation Surveyor Mr.
K.T.D. Tissera in determining the fair value of managed Timber Plantation.
The valuer has valued the Timber Plantation per tree valuation basis by using
available log prices in city centers less point-of-sale-costs. The timber plants
having less than three years old have not been taken in to the valuation and
hence, the cost of such plants has been added to the valuation. All other
assumptions are given in Note 21. The Group measures the Timber Plantation
at fair value less estimated-point-of-sale-costs as at each date of Statement
of Financial Position. The gain or loss on changes in fair value of Timber
Plantation is recognized in the Statement of comprehensive income.
The Main Variables in DCF Model Concerns
Variable

Comments

Currency Valuation

Rs.

Timber Content

Estimate based on physical verification of girth, height
and considering the growth of each species in different
geographical regions.

Economic Useful Life
(Harvesting Period)

Estimate based on the normal life span of each species.

Selling Price

Estimate based on prevailing Sri Lankan market price.
Factor all the conditions to be fulfilled in bringing the trees
into saleable condition.

Discount Rate

Future cash flows are discounted at 12 % (Not adjusted
for inflation)

3.2.3.4 Growing Crop Nurseries
Nursery cost includes the cost of direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of directly attributable overheads.
3.2.3.5 Borrowing Cost
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset, which takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale, are capitalized as a part of the asset.
Borrowing costs that are not capitalized are recognized as expenses in the
period in which they are incurred and charged to the Income Statement.
The amounts of the borrowing costs which are eligible for capitalization are
determined in accordance with LKAS 23 - ‘Borrowing Costs’.
Borrowing costs incurred in respect of specific loans that are utilized for field
development activities have been capitalized as a part of the cost of the
relevant immature plantation. The capitalization will cease when the crops are
ready for commercial harvest.
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3.2.3.1Bearer Biological Assets – At Cost
The Group recognizes Tea and Other Crops except for Rubber and Coconut,
at cost in accordance with the new ruling issued by the Institute of Chartered
accountants of Sri Lanka dated 2nd March 2012, due to the impracticability of
carrying out a proper fair valuation. New ruling provides the option to measure
bearer biological assets using LKAS16 – Property, Plant and Equipment.
The Group measures Tea and Other Crops at their cost less any accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses at the end of the financial
period.

Biological Assets. The valuer has valued the latex component of Rubber, and
also Coconut using the forecasted crop, prices and cost of production based on
past statistics. The scrap value, being the timber component of trees is valued
by using the available log prices in city centers less point-of-sale-costs. All
other assumptions are given in Note 20. The Group measured the Rubber and
Coconut plantations at fair value less estimated-point-of-sale-costs as at each
date of Statement of Financial Position and the gain or loss on changes in fair
value is recognized in the Statement of comprehensive income.
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Nursery cost includes the cost of direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of directly attributable overheads, less provision for
overgrown plants.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Expenditure incurred on capital work-in-progress for permanent nature or for
the purpose of increasing the earning capacity of the business has been treated
as capital expenditure.

The amount so capitalized and the capitalization rates are disclosed in the
Notes to the Financial Statements.
Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset are recognized in profit or loss using the
effective interest method.
3.2.3.6 Permanent Land Development Costs
Permanent land development costs are those costs incurred making significant
infrastructure development and building new access roads on leasehold lands.
These costs have been capitalized and amortized over the remaining lease
period.
3.2.4 Intangible Assets
Intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical
substance held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for
rental or for administrative purpose.

Capital work–in-progress is transferred to the respective asset accounts at the
time of first utilization or at the time the asset is commissioned.
3.2.6 Leases
a)
Finance Leases
Property, Plant and Equipment on finance leases, which effectively transfer to
the company substantially the entire risk and rewards incidental to ownership
of the leased items, are disclosed as finance leases at their cash price and
depreciated over the period the company is expected to benefit from the use of
the leased assets.
The corresponding principal amount payable to the lessor is shown as a
liability.
The finance charges allocated to future periods are separately disclosed in Note
35 to the financial statements.

An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits
that are attributable to the assets will flow to the entity and the cost of the
assets can be measured reliably in accordance with LKAS 38 - ‘Intangible
Assets’.
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured as initial recognition at
cost. Following initial recognition intangible assets are carried at cost less
any accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. The
useful life of intangible assets is assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite useful life are amortized over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at each
financial year end. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash generating unit level.

BROWNS INVESTMENTS PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013

Page 44

a)

b)

Subsequent Expenditure
Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalized only when it
increases the future economic benefits embodied these assets. All other
expenditure is expensed when incurred.
De-recognition
Intangible assets are de-recognized on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use. The gain or loss arising from de-recognition
of intangible assets are measured as difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset.

c)	Amortization
Amortization is recognized in the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of intangible assets, other than goodwill, from the
date that they are available for use.
The estimated useful life of each intangible asset is as follows;
Computer Software

3 to 5 years

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.
3.2.5 Capital Work – In – Progress
The cost of capital work-in-progress is the cost of purchase or construction
together with any related expenses thereon.

The interest element of the rental obligation applicable to each financial year
is charged to the statement of comprehensive income over the period of the
lease so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.
The cost of improvements to or on leased property is capitalized, and
depreciated over the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful lives
of the improvements, whichever is shorter.
b)

Operating Leases
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and
benefits of ownership over the leased term are classified as operating leases.
Lease payments paid under operating leases are recognized as an expense in
the statement of comprehensive income.

c)

Leasehold Rights to Bare Land of JEDB/SLSPC Estate Assets and
Immovable (JEDB/SLSPC) Estates Assets on Finance Lease
The institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka has issued a statement of
recommended practice (SORP) with effect from 01st January, 2012) for right
– to - use of land on lease on 19th December, 2012. Since the SORP issued
by the ICASL has not been finalized, the company have not compiled with the
SORP issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka.
As the current practice, the company followed the “urgent issue task force”
(UITF) ruling issued prior to 01st January, 2012 which has been superseded
by the Sri Lanka Accounting framework with effect from 01st January, 2012.

3.2.7 Investment Properties
3.2.7.1 Basis of Recognition
Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital
appreciation or for both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
3.2.7.2 Basis of Measurement
Fair value Model
Investment properties are initially recognized at cost except for the leasehold
properties are recognized at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition the
investment properties are stated at fair values, which reflect market conditions
at the Balance Sheet date. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
are included in the Income Statement in the year in which they arise.

lives or that are not yet available for use, recoverable amounts are estimated
at each reporting date or more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired.

Where Group companies occupy a significant portion of the investment
property of a subsidiary, such investment properties are treated as property,
plant and equipment in the Consolidated Financial Statements, and accounted
for as per LKAS 16- Property, Plant and Equipment.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the greater of
its value in use and its fair value, less costs to sell. Where the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risk specific to the asset. These calculations are collaborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices or other available fair value indicators.
A cash generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates
cash flows that are largely independent from other assets and groups.

3.2.7.3 De-recognition
Investment properties are de-recognized when either they have been disposed
of or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses
on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognized in the
Income Statement in the year of retirement or disposal.
3.2.7.4 Subsequent Transfers to/from Investment Property
Transfers are made to investment property when, and only when, there is a
change in use, evidenced by the end of owner occupation, commencement
of an operating lease to another party or completion of construction or
development.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses of
continuing operations are recognized in the statement of comprehensive
income in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset, except for property previously revalued where the revaluation
was taken to equity. In this case the impairment is also recognized in equity
upto the amount of any previous revaluation. Impairment losses recognized in
respect of cash-generating unit are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount
of the group of other assets in the unit on pro rata basis.

Transfers are made from investment property when, and only when, there
is a change in use, evidenced by commencement of owner occupation or
commencement of development with a view to sale.
For a transfer from investment property to owner occupied property or
inventories, the deemed cost of property for subsequent accounting is its fair
value at the date of change in use. If the property occupied by the Company
as an owner occupied property becomes an investment property, the Company,
accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property,
plant and equipment up to the date of change in use.

3.2.7.5 Determining Fair Value
External and independent valuers, having appropriate recognized professional
qualifications and recent experience in the location and category of property
being valued, values the investment property portfolio every 3 year. In
financial periods within that period the fair value is determined by the board of
directors.
The fair values are based on market values, being the estimated amount for
which a property could be exchanged on the date of the valuation between
a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper
marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably.
3.2.7.6 Reclassification to investment property
When the use of a property changes from owner-occupied to investment
property, the property is re-measured to fair value and reclassified as
investment property. Any gain arising on re-measurement is recognized in profit
or loss to the extent that it reverses a previous impairment loss on the specific
property, with any remaining gain recognized and presented in the revaluation
reserve in equity. Any loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.
3.2.8 Impairment of Assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that
an asset may be impaired. If such indication exists or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required the Group makes an estimate of the assets
recoverable amount. For goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite

That increased amount cannot “exceed” the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which
case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.
3.3 Financial Instruments
3.3.1 Non derivative financial instruments
a)
Recognition
The Group initially recognizes loans and advances, deposits, debt securities
issued and subordinated liabilities on the date at which they are originated.
All the financial assets and liabilities other than regular way purchases and
sales are recognized on the trade at which the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.
b)

De-recognition
The Group/Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group/
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset. Any interest
in transferred financial assets that qualify for de-recognition that is created or
retained by the Group/Company is recognized as a separate asset or liability in
the statement of financial position. On de-recognition of a financial asset, the
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For a transfer from inventories to investment property, any difference between
the fair value of the property at that date and its previous carrying amount
is recognized in the Income Statement. When the Company completes the
construction or development of a self-constructed investment property, any
difference between the fair value of the property at that date and its previous
carrying amount is recognized in the Income Statement.
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An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other
assets, impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each
reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer
exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortization, if no impairment loss has been recognized.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount
allocated to the portion of the asset transferred), and the sum of (i) the
consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability
assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in
other comprehensive income is recognized in profit or loss.

observable markets. When transaction price provides the best evidence of
fair value at initial recognition, the financial instrument is initially measured
at the transaction price and any difference between this price and the value
initially obtained from a valuation model is subsequently recognized directly to
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The Group/Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets
recognized on its statement of financial position, but retains either all or
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a portion
of them. If all or substantially all risks and rewards are retained, then the
transferred assets are not derecognised.

Assets are measured at a bid price; liabilities are measured at an asking price.
Fair values reflect the credit risk of the instrument and include adjustments to
take account of the credit risk of the Group entity and the counterparty where
appropriate.

In transactions in which the Group/Company neither retains nor transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a financial asset and it
retains control over the asset, the Group/Company continues to recognize the
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement, determined by the extent to
which it is exposed to changes in the value of the transferred asset.
The Group/Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual
obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire.
c)

Offsetting
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position when, and only when, the Group has a legal
right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Level 1 – Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market of an
identical instrument.
Level 2 – Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly
(i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices), this category included
instruments valued using: quoted market prices in active markets similar
instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets are
considered less than active: or other valuation techniques where all significant
inputs are directly observable from market data.
Level 3 – Valuation techniques use significant unobservable inputs. This
category includes all instruments where the valuation technique includes inputs
not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant
effect on the instrument’s valuation.

Fair value measurement
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability
settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction
on the measurement date.

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities that are traded in active
markets are based on quoted market prices or dealer price quotations. For all
other financial instruments the Group determines fair values using valuation
techniques
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This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for
similar instruments where significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions
are required to reflect differences between the instruments.

When available, the Group measures the fair value of an instrument using
quoted prices in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available and represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
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d)	Amortized cost measurement
The amortized cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the
financial asset or liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective
interest method of any difference between the initial amount recognized and
the maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairment.

Valuation of Financial Instruments
The Group measures the fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that
reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.

If a market for a financial instrument is not active, the Group establishes
fair value using a valuation technique. Valuation techniques include using
recent arm’s length transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties (if
available), reference to the current fair value of other instruments that are
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analyses and other equity pricing
models.

Valuation techniques include net present value and discounted cash flow
models, comparison to similar instruments for which market observable prices
exist, other equity pricing models and other valuation models. Assumptions and
inputs used in valuation technique include risk free and bench mark interest
rates, credit spreads and other premium used in estimating discount rates,
bond and other equity prices, foreign currency exchange rates, equity and
equity index prices and expected price volatilities and correlations.

e)

The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of market inputs, relies
as little as possible on estimates specific to the Group, incorporates all factors
that market participants would consider in setting a price, and is consistent
with accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments.
The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial
recognition is the transaction price, i.e. the fair value of the consideration given
or received, unless the fair value of that instrument is evidenced by comparison
with other observable current market transactions in the same instrument
or based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from

The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value determination
that reflects the price of the financial instruments at the reporting date that
would have been determined by market participants acting at arm’s length.
The Group widely recognized valuation models for determining the fair value of
common and more simple financial instruments. Observable prices and model
inputs are usually available in the market for listed debt and equity securities.
Availability of observable market inputs reduces the need of management
judgment and estimation and also reduces the uncertainty associated with
determination of fair values. Availability of observable market prices and inputs
varies depending on the products and markets are is prone to changes based
on specific events and general conditions in the financial markets.
The table below shows the different basis used in assessing the fair value of
financial instruments,

In assessing collective impairment the Group uses statistical modeling of
historical trends of the probability of default, timing of recoveries and the
amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgment as to whether
current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely
to be greater or less than suggested by historical modeling, Default rates, loss
rates and the expected timing of future recoveries are regularly taken into
account to ensure that they remain appropriate.

Fair value
hierarchy

Financial Assets
Fair value through profit or loss
- Trading equity shares

Valued using market
prices

Level 1

Impairment losses on assets carried at amortized cost are measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective
interest rate. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss and reflected in
an allowance account against loans and advances. Interest on impaired assets
continues to be recognized through the unwinding of the discount. When a
subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the
decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

Loans and receivables
Loans & Advances

Stated at amortized cost

Staff loans

Stated at amortized cost

Level 3
Level 3

Loan given to employees at below
market rate will be identified at market
rate by discounting the loan at market
rate. The group companies used 19%25% rate for this purpose.
- Repo investments

Stated at amortized cost

Level 2

- Commercial papers

Stated at amortized cost

Level 2

Held to Maturity

No investment has been
classified at held to
maturity

Impairment losses on available-for-sale investment securities are recognized
by transferring the cumulative loss that has been recognized in other
comprehensive income to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. The
cumulative loss that is reclassified from other comprehensive income to profit
or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost, net of any principal
repayment and amortization, and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognized in profit or loss.

Available for sale instruments
- Treasury Bonds
In valuing the Bonds at market rates the
bid quotes available in the market.
- Treasury Bills

Level 1
Valued using market
yields

In valuing the Bonds at market rates the
bid quotes available in the market.

Level 1

Financial Liabilities
Other Financial Liabilities
Stated at amortized cost
f)

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an impaired available-for-sale
debt security increases and the increase can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss,
the impairment loss is reversed, with the amount of the reversal recognized
in profit or loss. However, any subsequent recovery in the fair value of an
impaired available-for-sale equity security is recognized in other comprehensive
income.

Valued using market
yields

3.3.2 Financial Assets
Financial assets are within the scope of LKAS 39 are classified appropriately as
Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), loans and receivables (R&R), held to
maturity (HTM), available-for-sale (AFS) at its initial recognition.
All the financial assets are recognized at fair value at its initial recognition.

Level 3

Identification and measurement of impairment
At each reporting date the Group assesses whether there is objective evidence
that financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial assets is (are) impaired when
objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset(s), and that the loss event has an impact on the future
cash flows of the asset(s) that can be estimated reliably.
Objective evidence that financial assets (including equity securities) are
impaired can include significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer,
default or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Group on terms that the Group would not otherwise consider, indications that a
borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active market
for a security, or other observable data relating to a group of assets such as
adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers in the group of
economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the group. In addition, for
an investment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair
value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.

a)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset is classified at fair value through profit or loss if it is classified
as held for trading or is designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial
assets are designated at fair value through profit or loss if the Group manages
such investments and makes purchase and sale decisions based on their
fair value in accordance with the Group’s documented risk management or
investment strategy. Upon initial recognition, transaction costs are recognized
in profit or loss as incurred.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value,
and subsequent therein are recognized in profit or loss.

b)

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Such assets are recognized initially at
fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment losses.
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Fair value basis and
assumptions
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Instrument Category

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the manufacturing stocks, provision for slow moving inventories is made
when the holding period exceeds 365 days, and the sale of the inventories is
no longer probable.

Loans and receivables of the Group comprise of the following,
Rental Receivable on Operating Leases
Leases where the group as the lessor effectively retains substantially all the
risk and rewards incidental to the ownership are classified as operating leases.
Lease rentals from operating leases are recognized as income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
Trade Receivables
Trade and other receivables are stated at the amounts they are estimated
to realize, net of provisions for bad and doubtful receivables. A provision for
doubtful debts is made where as there is objective evidence that the Company
will not be able to recover all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. Bad debts are written-off when identified.
c)

The cost incurred in bringing inventories to its present location and condition is
accounted using the following cost formula:
	Agricultural Produce harvested from Biological Assets
Agricultural produce harvested from an entity’s Biological Assets is measured
at its fair value less cost to sell at the point of harvest. Such measurement
is deemed to be the cost at the time of transferring the harvested crop to
inventories.
Finished/Semi finished Agricultural Produce of Biological Assets
Finished and Semi Finished Agricultural Produce are valued adding the cost
of conversion depending on the existing state of conversion as at the date
of financial position and thereafter vale at the lower of cost or net realizable
value.

Held-to-maturity financial assets
If the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold debt securities to
maturity, then such financial assets are classified as held-to-maturity. Held-tomaturity financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition held to- maturity
financial assets are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment losses.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price at which stocks can be sold
in the ordinary course of business after allowing for cost of realization and/or
cost of conversion from their existing state to saleable condition.
Input material, Spares and Consumables
At actual cost on weighted average basis.

Any sale or reclassification of a more than insignificant amount of heldto-maturity investments not close to their maturity would result in the
reclassification of all held-to-maturity investments as available-for-sale, and
prevent the Group from classifying investment securities as held-to-maturity for
the current and the following two financial years.
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d)	Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are
designated as available for- sale and that are not classified in any of the
previous categories. The Group’s investments in certain equity securities are
classified as available-for-sale financial assets.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at fair value and changes
therein, other than impairment losses are recognized in other comprehensive
income and presented within equity in the fair value reserve. When an
investment is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss in other comprehensive
income is transferred to profit or loss.
3.3.2.1 Current Assets
Assets classified as current assets in the Statement of Financial Position are
those expected to realize during the normal operating cycle of business or
within one year from the Statement of Financial Position date, whichever is
longer and cash balances. Assets other than current assets are those which
the Group/Company intends to hold beyond the one year period from the
Statement of Financial Position date.
a)

Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
The cost of inventories is based on the first-in first-out principle, and includes
expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion
costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and
condition.
In the case of manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost includes an
appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

Finished Goods and Work-In-Progress
First in First out (FIFO) basis
Certified Emission Reduction
Carbon credit units as at the balance sheet date have been valued at their
estimated net realizable value as inventories and disclosed in the financial
statements as Certified Emission Reduction.
b)

Other Receivables
Other receivable balances are stated at estimated amounts receivable after
providing for doubtful receivables.

c)

Short Term Investments
Short term investments are measured at fair value since their carrying values
are almost equal to its fair value.

d)

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and cash at banks and
other highly liquid financial assets which are held for the purpose of meeting
short-term cash commitments with original maturities of less than three months
which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in their fair value.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management are included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.

3.3.3 Financial Liabilities
The Group initially recognizes debt securities and Loans & Borrowings on the
date that they are originated. All other financial liabilities are recognized at
initially on the trade date, which is the date that the Company becomes party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expired.

Employee Benefits. However, under the Payment of Gratuity Act No.12 1983,
the liability to an employee arises only on completion of 5 years of continued
service.

The Group classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into the other financial
liabilities category. Such financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value
plus any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition,
these financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using effective interest
rate method.

3.3.3.2 Provisions
Provisions are made for all obligations existing as at the date of Statement of
Financial Position when it is probable that such an obligation will result in an
outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the quantum of
the outflow. All contingent liabilities are disclosed as a note to the Financial
Statements unless the outflow of resources is remote. Contingent assets are
disclosed, where inflow of economic benefit is probable.

10.5% per annum
- For Staff
- For Workers

7.5 % per annum
15 % once in two years

iii)
Retirement Age
		

- Workers
- Staff

60 years
60 years

iv)
v)

Provident Fund (EPF), Ceylon Plantation Provident Society (CPPS) and Estate
Staff Provident Society (ESPS)
The Group contributes 12% on the salary of each employee to the above
mentioned funds.
	Employees’ Trust Fund (ETF)
The Group contributes 3% of the salary of each employee to the Employees’
Trust Fund.
3.4.2.2 Defined Benefit Plan – Gratuity
F L C Holdings PLC
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined
contribution plan. The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit
pension plans of Joint Ventures Subsidiary mentioned above is calculated by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return
for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to
determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service costs are deducted.
The calculation is performed every two years by a qualified actuary using
the projected unit credit valuation method as recommended by LKAS 19 on

Rs.380/-

When the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of the increased
benefit related to past service by employees is recognized in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits become vested.
To the extent that the benefits vest immediately, the expense is recognized
immediately in profit or loss.

3.4 Other Liabilities and Provisions
3.4.1	General
Liabilities classified as current liabilities on the statement of financial position
are those which fall due for payment on demand or within one year from the
Statement of Financial Position date. Non-current liabilities are those balances
that fall due for payment after one year from the Statement of Financial
Position date. All known liabilities have been accounted for in preparing
these Financial Statements. Provisions and liabilities are recognized when the
company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation.
3.4.2	Employee Benefits
3.4.2.1 Defined Contribution Plans – Provident and Trust Fund
A Defined Contribution Plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an
entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to
Defined Contribution Plans are recognized as an employee benefit expense in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the periods during which services
are rendered by employees.

The Group will continue as a going concern
Daily Wage Rate 		

The Group recognizes all actuarial gains and losses arising from the defined
benefit plan in other comprehensive income (OCI). This retirement benefit
obligation is not externally funded.
Other Components of the Group
Sub subsidiary of the Group measured the present value of the retirement
benefits of gratuity which is recommended by LKAS 19 using formula method.
The key assumptions used for the calculations are as follows;
i)
ii)
iii)

Rate of Discount
Rate of Salary and Wage Increase
Retirement Age

10.50% per annum
12% per annum
55 years

3.4.2.3 Short-Term Employee Benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted
basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is
recognized for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus if
the company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount
as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be
estimated reliably.
3.5	Grants and Subsidies
Government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be compiled with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as income over
the period necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs
that it is intended to compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, it is
recognised as deferred income and released to income in equal amounts over
the expected useful life of the related asset.
Where the Group receives non-monitory grants, the asset and the grant
are recorded gross at nominal amounts and released to the statement
of comprehensive income over the expected useful life and pattern of
consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset by equal annual
installments. Where loans or similar assistance are provided by governments
or related institutions with an interest rate below the current applicable market
rate, the effect of this favourable interest is regarded as additional government
grant.
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3.3.3.1	Accounts Payables and Accrued Expenses
Trade and other payables are stated at cost.

i)
Rate of Discount
ii)
Rate of Salary Increase
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Other financial liabilities comprise of Loans & Borrowings, bank overdraft and
debentures issued.

The key assumptions used by the actuary for actuarial valuation as at 31st
march, 2013 include the followings.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.6

Grants related to property, plant and equipment other than grants received
for biological assets are initially deferred and allocated to the statement of
comprehensive income on a systematic basis over the useful life of the related
property, plant and equipment.

tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be realized.

Government grant related to the Biological Assets which are measured at fair
value less point sale cost is directly charged to the carrying value of such assets
in accordance with the applicable financial framework.

The net increase in the carrying amount of deferred tax liability net of deferred
tax asset is recognized as deferred tax asset is recognized as deferred tax
expense and conversely any net decrease is recognized as reversal to deferred
tax expense, in the income statement.

Tax Expense
Tax expense comprises of current, deferred tax and other statutory taxes.
Income tax expense is recognized in income statement except to the extent
that it relates to items recognized directly in the statement changes in equity.

3.6.1 Current Tax
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income
or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
Current tax payable also includes any tax liability arising from the tax on
dividend income.
The provision for income tax is based on the elements of income and
expenditure as reported in the Financial Statements and computed in
accordance with the provisions of the Inland Revenue Act. No 10 of 2006 and
subsequent amendments thereto.
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the Commissioner
General of Inland Revenue.
3.6.2 Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized for:
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• Temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in
a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss;
• Temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that they will not
reverse in the foreseeable future; and
• Taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.
• Taxable temporary differences arising on subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures who have not distributed their entire profits to the parent or
investor.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to
temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

3.6.3 Companies Enjoying Tax Holidays
Group companies enjoying a tax exemption period shall only recognize
deferred tax in their financial statements for temporary differences, where
reversals of such differences extend beyond the tax exemption period.
Deferred Tax shall not be considered nor provided for assets/liabilities for
which tax impacts and reversals take place within the tax exemption period.
There will be no tax implications that take place after the expiration of the tax
exemption period for such assets.
Where a Company is entitled to claim the total value or any part of expenditure
made during the tax holiday period, as deductions for tax purposes after the
tax holiday period, such an entity will treat such amount of expenditure as
part of the tax base throughout the tax holiday period for the purpose of
recognizing deferred tax.
3.6.4 Withholding Tax on Dividends
Dividend distributed out of taxable profit of the local companies attracts a 10%
deduction at source and is not available for set off against the tax liability of
the Company. Withholding tax that arises from the distribution of dividends
by the Group is recognized at the same time as the liability to pay the related
dividend is recognized.
3.6.5	Economic Service Charge (ESC)
As per the provisions of Economic Service Charge Act No. 13 of 2006
amendments thereto, ESC is payable on the liable turnover at specified rates.
ESC is deductible from the income tax liability. Any unclaimed amount can
be carried forward and set off against the income tax payable in the five
subsequent years as per the relevant provision in the Act.
3.6.6 Nation Building Tax (NBT)
As per the provisions of the Nation Building Tax Act, No. 9 of 2009 and the
subsequent amendments thereto, Nation Building Tax should be payable at the
rate of 2% with effect from 1 January 2011 on the liable turnover as per the
relevant provisions of the Act.
3.6.7 Sales Taxes
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of sales tax
except for the following;
• Sales tax incurred on a purchase of a assets or services is not recoverable
from the taxation authority, in which case the sales tax is recognized as
part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item
as applicable; and

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes
levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax
entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis
or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

• Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax
included.

A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax losses, tax credits and
deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized. Deferred

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation
authority is included as part of other receivables or other payables in the
balance sheet.

The corresponding principal amount payable to the lessor is shown as a
liability. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and
reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on
the outstanding balance of the liability. The interest payable over the period of
the lease is transferred to an interest in suspense account. The interest element
of the rental obligations pertaining to each financial year is charged to the
Income Statement over the period of lease.
3.7.1 Lease Payments
Payments made under operating leases are recognized in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are
recognized as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the
lease.

c)

Sale and Leaseback Transactions
Any excess of sales proceeds over the carrying amount of an asset in respect of
a sale and leaseback transaction that results in a finance lease is deferred and
amortized over the lease term.

d)

Interest Income
Interest income is recognized as the interest accrued on a time basis (taking
into account the effective yield on the asset) unless collectability is in doubt.

e)

Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on
the date the entity’s right to receive payment is established.

f)	Gains Arising from Changes in Fair Value of Biological Assets
Gains or losses arising on initial recognition of biological assets at fair
value less estimated point of sale costs are recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income. Gains or losses arising on change in fair value due to
subsequent measurements are recognized in the statement of comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise.
g)

Sale of Electrical Energy
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the company and the revenue and associated costs
incurred can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable net of trade discounts and sales taxes.

h)

Revenue from Accommodation sales and Services charge
Revenue from accommodation sales is recognized for the rooms occupied on a
daily basis, together with outlet sales and other income from hotel operations.

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between
the finance expense and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance
expense is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
3.8 Revenue
3.8.1 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group, and the revenue and associated costs incurred
or to be incurred can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and
value added taxes, net of sales within the Group.
a)

Sale of Goods
Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured
at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns,
trade discounts and volume rebates. Revenue is recognized when persuasive
evidence exists, usually in the form of an executed sales agreement, that
the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
customer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and
possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing
management involvement with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably.
If it is probable that discounts will be granted and the amount can be
measured reliably, then the discount is recognized as a reduction of revenue as
the sales are recognized. The timing of the transfer of risks and rewards varies
depending on the individual terms of the sales agreement.

b)	Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Property Plant and Equipment
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and other non-current assets
held by the Group have been accounted for in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income, after deducting from the net sales proceeds on disposal of the carrying
amount of such assets and related selling expenses. On disposal of revalued
property, plant and equipment, amount remaining in revaluation reserve
relating to that asset is transferred directly to Retained Earnings.

90% of Service Charge collected from guests is distributed among the
employees, retaining 10% of such service charge collected for recovery of
breakages of cutlery, crockery, glassware and stainless steel items. Any balance
amount of the retention after recovery of actual breakages is redistributed
among employees at the end of each financial year.
i)

Rental Income
Rental income from investment property is recognized in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives granted are
recognized as an integral part of the total rental income, over the term of the
lease. Rental income from subleased property is recognized as other income.

j)

CER Income
CER income is recognized on accrual basis.

k)	Amortization of Government Grants Received
An unconditional government grant related to a biological asset is recognized
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as other income when the grant
becomes receivable.
Other government grants are recognized initially as deferred income at fair
value when there is reasonable assurance that they will be received and the
Group will comply with the conditions associated with the grant and are then
recognize in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as other income on a
systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognized in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income as other income on a systematic basis in
the same periods in which the expenses are recognized.
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Finance Leases
Property and Equipment on finance leases, which effectively transfer to the
Group substantially the entire risk and rewards incidental to ownership of the
leased items, are disclosed as finance leases at their cash price and depreciated
over the period the Group is expected to benefit from the use of the leased
assets.
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3.7

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The immediate family member is defined as spouse or dependent. Dependent
is defined as anyone who depends on the respective Director for more than
50% of his/her financial needs.

Gains and losses arising from incidental activities to main revenue generating
activities and those arising from a group of similar transactions which are not
material, are aggregated, reported and presented on a net basis.
3.8.2	Expenses Recognition
Expenses are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on the
basis of a direct association between the cost incurred and the earning of
specific items of income. All expenditure incurred in the running of the business
and in maintaining the property, plant & equipment in a state of efficiency has
been charged to income in arriving at the profit for the year.

3.11

For the purpose of presentation of the Statement of Comprehensive Income
the Directors are of the opinion that function of expenses method presents
fairly the elements of the company’s performance and hence such presentation
method is adopted.

Accordingly, the segment comprises of Investments, Porcelain, Leisure, Rubber,
Tea, Hydro power and Energy and others are described in Note 49.
Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to
a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.
Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to
acquire segment assets that are expected to be used for more than one period.

Preliminary and pre-operational expenditure is recognized in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
Repairs and renewals are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income
in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.
3.8.3 The Group & Company Profits are stated after:
• Providing for all impairment losses and depreciation of property, plant and
equipment.
• Charging all expenses incurred in the day-to-day operations of the business
and in maintaining the property, plant and equipment in a state of
efficiency.
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3.8.4	Earnings per Share
Earnings per Share represent basic and diluted earnings per share data for
its ordinary shares. Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group & Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
year. Diluted earnings per share is determined by adjusting the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.
3.9

Statement of Cash Flow
The Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared using the ‘Indirect Method’
of preparing Cash Flows in accordance with the LKAS 7 - ‘Statement of Cash
Flow’.

3.10 Related Party Disclosures
3.10.1 Transactions with Related Parties
The Company carries out transactions in the ordinary course of its business with
parties who are defined as related parties in Sri Lanka Accounting Standard 24.
The Pricing applicable to such transactions is based on the assessment of the
risk and pricing model of the Company and is comparable with what is applied
to transactions between the Company and its unrelated Customers.
3.10.2 Transactions with Key Management Personnel
According to Sri Lanka Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party Disclosures”,
Key management personnel, are those having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity. Accordingly, the
Board of Directors (including executive and non-executive Directors), personnel
hold designation of Divisional General Manager and above positions and their
immediate family member have been classified as Key Management Personnel
of the Company.

Segment Reporting
An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business
activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including
revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other
components. All operating segments operating results are reviewed regularly
by Group Board of Directors to make decisions about resources to be allocated
to the segment and to assess its performance, and for which discrete financial
information is available.

Expenses that cannot be directly identified to a particular segment are allocated
on bases decided by the management and applied consistently throughout the
year.
3.12	Events after the Reporting Date
All material post Balance Sheet events have been considered and where
appropriate adjustments or disclosures have been made in the respective Notes
to the Financial Statements
3.13

Commitments and Contingencies
All discernible risks are accounted for in determining the amount of all known
liabilities. Contingent Liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will
be confirmed only by uncertain future events or present obligations where the
transfer of economic benefit is not probable or cannot be reliably measured.
Contingent Liabilities are not recognized in the Balance Sheet but are disclosed
unless they are remote.

3.14 Financial Risk Management
3.14.1 Overview
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial
instruments:
• Credit risk
• Liquidity risk
• Market risk
• Operational risk
This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the
above risks, the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and
managing risk, and the Group’s management of capital.
Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these consolidated
financial statements
3.14.2 Risk management framework
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. Risk management
policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and the Company’s activities.

3.15

The Group uses the maturity analysis all the financial instruments to manage
the liquidity risk.

Accordingly, the company has prepared these financial statements which
comply with SLFRS/LKAS applicable for periods ending on or after 31st March,
2013, together with the comparative period data as at and for the year ended
31st March, 2012 as described in the accounting policies. In preparing these
financial statements, the company’s opening statement of financial position
was prepared as at 01st April, 2011, which is the company’s date of transition
to SLFRS/LKAS. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the
company in terms of the new financial reporting framework.

	Exposure to Liquidity Risk
The Group relies on deposits from customers and issued debt securities such as
debentures as its primary sources of funding. Deposits which consist most of
short term maturity in nature increases the liquidity risk for the financial service
sector and hence the Group actively manages this risk through maintaining
competitive pricing and constant monitoring of market trends.
Management of Liquidity Risk
The Group/Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far
as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when due without incurring unacceptable losses or risking financial position
of the Group/Company while maintaining regulatory requirements and debt
covenants agreed with the fund providers. The Group/Company treasury
manages the liquidity position as per the treasury policies and procedures.
Details of the financial assets and liabilities are given Note 112 to 115 to
these financial statements.

3.16	Exemptions Applied
SLFRS 1 –First time Adoption of Sri Lanka Accounting Standards allows first
time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain
SLFRS/LKAS.
There was no requirement to make use of any such exemptions.
Optional exemptions the Group has opted to apply:
a)

3.14.5 Market risk
The Group exposes to the market risk due to changes in market risk such as
Foreign exchange rates, Interest rate, and equity prices.
Group expose to foreign currency is mainly due to the loans and borrowings
obtained. The Group manages its exposure to the foreign exchange rates by
entering in to forward rate contracts with the banks. In this way the Group
eliminates substantial exposure on foreign currency risk.
The Group ensures the mix of variable and fixed rate borrowings to manage
the any exposure due to interest rate movement in the market. These are
monitored by the Group treasury division.

3.14.6 Capital Management
The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital investment on a month
basis. This review is mainly carried out through Return on investment analysis
prepared on a quarterly basis. The plan forecasts are also reviewed on a
monthly basis to ensure that targets are met in order to manage the capital
invested on the group companies.

The company does not subject to any externally impose capital requirements.
However companies within the group have such requirement based on the
industry in which such company established. The group companies which

SLFRS 3 - Business Combinations
This has not been applied to acquisitions of subsidiaries, which are considered
businesses for SLFRS/LKAS, or of interests in associates and joint ventures
that occurred before 1 April 2011. The Group has not applied LKAS 21
retrospectively to fair value adjustments and goodwill from business
combinations that occurred before the date of transition to SLFRS/LKAS. Such
fair value adjustments and goodwill are treated as assets and liabilities of the
parent rather than as assets and liabilities of the acquiree. Therefore, those
assets and liabilities are already expressed in the functional currency of the
parent or are non-monetary foreign currency items and no further translation
differences occur.
Use of this exemption means that the SLAS carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities, which are required to be recognised under SLFRS/LKAS, are
stated at their deemed cost at the date of the acquisition. After the date of
the acquisition, measurement is in accordance with SLFRS/LKAS. Assets and
liabilities that do not qualify for recognition under SLFRS/LKAS are excluded
from the opening SLFRS/LKAS statement of financial position.

The Group investment in quoted equity shares are always subjected to change
in equity prices. The Group manages this risk mainly by diversifying its
investment portfolio.

The Board of Directors also decides and monitors the level of dividends to
ordinary shareholders.

First Time Adoption of SLFRS and LKAS
These financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2013, are the
first set of financial statements that the company has prepared in accordance
with SLFRS and LKAS. For the period upto and including the year ended 31st
March, 2012, the company prepared its financial statements in accordance
with local generally accepted accounting practice (SLAS).

SLFRS 1 also requires that the SLAS carrying amount of goodwill must be
used in the opening SLFRS/LKAS statement of financial position (apart from
adjustments for goodwill impairment and recognition or derecognition of
intangible assets). In accordance with SLFRS 1, the Group has tested goodwill
for impairment at the date of transition to SLFRS/LKAS.
b)

Fair value of revaluation as deemed cost
Freehold land and buildings, other than investment property, were carried in
the statement of financial position prepared in accordance with SLAS on the
basis of valuations performed prior to 31 March 2012. The Group has elected
to regard those values as deemed cost at the date of the revaluation since they
were broadly comparable to fair value.
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3.14.4 Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the
obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset.

require externally imposed capital will monitor such requirement on a regular
basis and report to respective legal authority in order to ensure compliance
with such regulatory requirement.
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3.14.3 Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group/Company if a customer or
counterparty to financial instruments fails to meet its contractual obligations.
Credit risk is mainly arising from Group/Company’s receivable from customers.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

c)

d)

Investment in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates
The Group has measured its investments in each subsidiary, joint venture and
associate at deemed cost, which is the carrying amount as per SLAS at the
date of transition 1 April 2011.

m)

Designation of previously recognized financial instruments - Unquoted
equity instruments
The Group has designated unquoted equity instruments held as at 1 April 2011
as available-for-sale investments.

a)

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions
Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions at 1 April 2011
and at 31 March 2012 are consistent with those made for the same dates in
accordance with SLAS effective up to 31 March 2012 (after adjustments to
reflect any differences in accounting policies). The estimates used by the Group
to present these amounts in accordance with SLFRS/LKAS effective from 1
April 2012 reflect conditions at 1 April 2011, the date of transition to SLFRS/
LKAS and as of 31 March 2012.

b)

Non-controlling interests
The requirement of SLFRS 3 is that total comprehensive income is attributed to
the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling interests even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. The Group applies
above requirement prospectively from the date of transition to SLFRS/LKAS.

Mandatory exception applicable to the Group:

Optional exemptions which the Group has opted not to apply:
e)

Borrowing Costs
In the Group the treatment of borrowing costs were already aligned as per
SLFRS/LKAS.

f)	Employee benefits (LKAS 19)
SLAS’s and the SLFRS/LKAS were already aligned as regards to these
transactions.
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Optional exemptions not applicable to the Group:
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Severe hyperinflation
The Group does not operate in a hyperinflationary economy.

Mandatory exceptions not applicable to the Group:

g)	Assets and liabilities of subsidiary, associates and joint ventures
The subsidiary, associate and joint ventures in the Group have transited from
SLAS to SLFRS/LKAS simultaneously with the parent Company.

c)

Derecognising of financial assets and financial liabilities
Derecognition requirements in SLFRS 9 requires prospective application for
transactions occurring on or after the date of transition.

h)

Transfers of assets from customers as per IFRIC 18
The Group does not have these types of arrangements as at the date of
transition.

d)

i)

Compounded Financial instruments
The Group does not have these types of financial instruments as at the date of
transition.

Hedge accounting
The Group has not entered into any hedging relationships. The standard states
that hedging relationships of a type that does not qualify for hedge accounting
in accordance with LKAS 39 should not be reflected in the opening SLFRS/
LKAS statement of financial position.

j)

Decommissioning liabilities included in the cost of property, plant and
equipment
The Group does not have any decommissioning liabilities relating to property,
plant and equipment.

k)

Financial assets or intangible assets accounted for under IFRIC 12
The Group has not entered into agreements within the scope of IFRIC 12.

l)	Extinguishing Financial liabilities with equity instruments
The Group has not used equity instruments to extinguish financial liabilities and
the provisions in IFRIC 19 extinguishing financial liabilities are not applicable to
the Group.

	Explanations for transition to SLFRS/LKASs
In preparing SLFRS/LKAS statement of financial position for previously
reported financial periods, required adjustments have been made in accordance
with the respective SLFRS/LKASs. The effect of the transition from SLASs
to SLFRS/LKASs has been presented in the reconciliation statements and
accompanying notes to the material reconciliation items in Note 4 in these
financial statements.

RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2012
In Rs.‘000s

04. 	EXPLANATION TO THE TRANSITION OF LKAS/SLFRS
As stated in note 2.1, these are the Group’s first consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with SLFRSs.
The accounting policies set out in note 3 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013, the comparative information presented in
these financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012 and in the preparation of an opening SLFRS statement of financial position as at 1 April 2011 (the Group’s date of
transition).
In preparing its opening SLFRS statement of financial position, the Group has adjusted amounts reported previously in financial statements prepared in accordance with SLASs
(previous Accounting Standards-SLAS). An explanation of how the transition from previous SLASs to SLFRSs has affected is set out in the following tables and the remeasurements
are explained in the accompanying notes.
RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2012
	Group
Company
			Effect of			Effect of
		
Notes	As per
Transition to 	As per	As per
Transition to	As per
			
SLAS LKAS/SLFRS &
LKAS/SLFRS
SLAS LKAS/SLFRS &
LKAS/SLFRS
				Remeasurement			Remeasurement
34,822
(46,332)
(11,510)

2,056,549
212,386
(2,100)
(1,633,134)			
423,415
212,386
(2,100)

210,286
210,286

Other Income
(C)
317,127
			 752,052

2,720
2,720

319,847
743,262

Selling and Distribution Expenses 		
(16,089)
Administrative Expenses
(D)
(209,365)
Other Expenses
(E)
(471,401)
			 (696,855)

22,716
62,364
85,080

(16,089)
(186,649)
(409,037)
(611,775)

- 		
(48,169)
(471,401)
62,364
(519,570)
62,364

(48,169)
(409,037)
(457,206)

Results from Operating Activities 		
Finance Cost 		
Change in Fair Value of Investment Properties 		
Share of Results of
Equity Accounted Investees (Net of Tax)
(F)
Gain/(Loss) on change in Fair Value of Timber Stocks
(C)
Gain on Bargain purchase (Negative Goodwill) 		
Profit Before Tax 		
Tax Expense
(H)
Profit for the Year 		

55,197
(190,331)
250,000

76,290
-

131,487
(190,333)
250,000

(128,100)		
(84,729)
- 		

(67,836)
(84,729)
-

(103,401)
(14,952)
2,671,483
2,667,996
(79,608)
2,588,388

2,336
14,952
(15,480)
78,098
(42,986)
35,112

(101,065)
- 		
- 		
2,656,003			
2,746,092
(212,829)
62,364
(122,594)
(48,809)
2,623,498
(261,638)
62,364

(152,565)
(48,809)
(201,374)

Profit Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 		
Non Controlling interest
			

2,525,048
63,340
2,588,388

(40,485)
5,375
(35,110)

2,565,533
57,965
2,623,498

(201,374)
(201,374)

-

(310,203)
17,663

310,203
(17,663)

-

(17,559)

(17,559)

-

56,752

(56,752)

-

(56,752)

(56,752)

2,588,388

(21,422)
(13,226)
3,039
(267,397)
(232,285)

Other Comprehensive Income
Revaluation surplus 		
Net change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets 		
Net change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
reclassified to statement of comprehensive income		
Actuarial Gain/(Losses) on Post Employment
Benefit Obligation		
Deferred tax on revaluation 		
Income tax on other comprehensive income 		
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year		
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year		

179,084
179,084
391,470		389,370

(261,638)		
- 		
(261,638)
60,264

21,422
13,226			
(3,039)
267,397
(74,311)
2,890,895
(14,047)

(74,311)
(275,685)
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2,021,727
(1,586,802)
434,925
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Revenue
(A)
Cost of Sales
(B)
Gross Profit 		

RECONCILIATION OF EQUITY AS AT 31ST MARCH 2012
In Rs.‘000s

04 	EXPLANATION TO THE TRANSITION OF LKAS/SLFRS (Contd...)
	Group
Company
			Effect of			Effect of
		
Notes	As per
Transition to 	As per	As per
Transition to	As per
			
SLAS LKAS/SLFRS &
LKAS/SLFRS
SLAS LKAS/SLFRS &
LKAS/SLFRS
				Remeasurement			Remeasurement
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Leasehold Property
Property, Plant and Equipment
(I)
Investment Properties 		
Intangible Assets and Goodwill 		
Bearer Biological Assets
(J)
Consumer Biological Assets
(K)
Investment in Subsidiaries 		
Investment in Joint Venture 		
Investments in Equity Accounted Investees
(L)
Other Long Term Investments
(M)
Total Non-Current Assets

138,903
3,310,578
3,799,597
48,444
2,062,608
1,233,436
1,208,082
11,801,648

(996,570)
1,842,608
(548,313)
117,292
(261,501)
153,516

138,903
2,314,008
3,799,597
48,445
1,842,608
1,514,295
1,350,728
946,581
11,955,165

677,585
1,251,687
50,000
1,190,088
1,207,082
4,376,442

(272,694)
(272,694)

677,585
1,251,687
50,000
1,190,088
934,388
4,103,748

Current Assets
Inventories
(N)
Trade and Other Receivables
(O)
Loans to Related Parties 		
Amounts due from Related Parties 		
Short Term Investments
Cash at Bank and in Hand
(R)
Total Current Assets
Total Assets

346,983
367,605
592,125
239,267
2,312,302
393,229
4,251,511
16,053,159

(22,794)
(18,391)
(1,092)
1,449
(2,552)
4,565
(38,815)
114,701

324,189
349,214
591,033
240,716
2,309,750
397,794
4,212,696
16,167,861

81,753
674,356
438,454
2,011,990
38,360
3,244,913 		
7,621,355
(272,694)

81,753
674,356
438,454
2,011,990
38,360
3,244,913
7,348,661

Stated Capital 		
Capital Reserves 		
Revenue Reserves 		
Equity Attributable to Equity holders of the Company
Non Controlling Interest 		
Total Equity

5,380,000
244,274
5,256,476
10,880,750
1,878,916
12,759,666

(146,368)
(123,793)
(270,161)
143,001
(127,160)

5,380,000
97,906
5,132,683
10,610,589
2,021,917
12,632,506

5,380,000
219,265
1,021,967
53,429
6,401,967
(272,694)
- 		
6,401,967
(272,694)

5,380,000
(219,265)
968,538
6,129,273
6,129,273

Non Current Liabilities
Interest Bearing Borrowings 		
Finance Lease Obligations 		
Retirement Benefit Obligations 		
Deferred Tax Liability
(P)
Deferred Income
(Q)
			

611,248
85,059
402,696
16,246
178,883
1,294,132

1,239
265,467
(31,308)
235,398

611,248
85,059
403,935
281,713
147,575
1,529,530

128,000
128,000

-

128,000
128,000

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
(R)
Interest Bearing Borrowings due within one year
(R)
Finance Lease Obligations due within one year
(R)
Loans from Related Parties
(R)
Amounts due to Related Parties
(R)
Income Tax Payable 		
Short Term Interest Bearing Borrowings
(R)
Bank Overdraft 		
		
			

467,090
494,916
4,988
541,401
216,506
66,884
125,603
81,973
1,999,361
16,053,159

(31,808)
39,649
1,070
56,000
31,160
(16)
(89,648)
57
6,464
114,701

435,282
534,565
6,058
597,401
247,666
66,868
35,955
82,030
2,005,825
16,167,861

40,168
384,000
541,401
77,011
48,808
1,091,388
7,621,355

(272,694)

40,168
384,000
541,401
77,011
48,808
1,091,388
7,348,661
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EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

RECONCILIATION OF EQUITY AS AT 31ST MARCH 2011
In Rs.‘000s

	Group

Company

143,087
1,981,629
49,597
2,863
1,714,342
1,029,538
1,056,785
5,977,841

(1,107,789)
1,600,287
(84,342)
25,062
(135,945)
297,273

143,087
873,840
49,597
2,864
1,600,287
1,630,000
1,054,600
920,840
6,275,115

358,497
50,000
897,174
1,056,785
2,362,456

(144,953)
(144,953)

358,497
50,000
897,174
911,832
2,217,503

Current Assets
Inventories
(N)
Trade and Other Receivables
(O)
Loans to Related Parties 		
Amounts due from Related Parties 		
Short Term Investments 		
Cash at Bank and in Hand 		
Total Current Assets 		
Total Assets 		

215,415
221,102
617,791
194,497
4,088,451
537,084
5,874,340
11,852,181

(25,515)
(9,009)
(3,468)
(11,796)
(42,851)
254,432

189,900
212,093
617,791
197,965
4,076,655
537,085
5,831,489
12,106,604

96,311
617,791
380,727
4,000,539
3,734
5,099,102
7,461,558

2,102
2,102
(142,851)

96,310
617,791
380,727
4,002,641
3,734
5,101,203
7,318,706

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Stated Capital 		
Capital Reserves 		
Revenue Reserves 		
Equity Attributable to Equity holders of the Company
Non Controlling Interest 		
Total Equity 		

5,130,000
46,180
2,921,072
8,097,252
1,506,283
9,603,535

(167,413)
(41,768)
(209,181)
(265,724)
56,543

5,130,000
(121,233)
2,879,304
7,888,071
1,772,007
9,660,078

5,130,000
(144,954)
1,469,605
(2,100)
6,599,605
(142,851)
- 		
6,599,605 		

5,130,000
(144,954)
1,471,705
6,456,751
6,456,751

Non Current Liabilities 						
Interest Bearing Borrowings 		
164,500
164,500
Finance Lease Obligations 		
88,724
88,724
Retirement Benefit Obligations 		
377,781
377,781
Deferred Tax Liability
(P)
33,284
225,374
258,658
Deferred Income
(Q)
157,727
(24,035)
133,692
			
822,016
201,339
1,023,355
- 		
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 		
Interest Bearing Borrowings due within one year
Finance Lease Obligations due within one year 		
Loans from Related Parties 		
Amounts due to Related Parties 		
Rescheduled Debentures 		
Income Tax Payable 		
Short Term Interest Bearing Borrowings 		
Bank Overdraft 		
			
			

301,274
44,302
5,844
771,058
246,894
410
15,914
16,380
24,554
1,426,630
11,852,181

(3,459)
(3,459)
254,423

301,274
44,302
5,844
771,058
243,435
410
15,914
16,380
24,554
1,423,171
12,106,604

44,858
709,633
105,817
1,645
861,953
7,461,558

(142,851)

44,859
709,634
105,817
1,645
861,953
7,318,706
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ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Leasehold Property 		
Property, Plant and Equipment
(I)
Investment Properties 		
Intangible Assets and Goodwill 		
Bearer Biological Assets
(J)
Consumer Biological Assets
(K)
Investment in Subsidiaries 		
Investment in Joint Venture 		
Investments in Equity Accounted Investees
(L)
Other Long Term Investments
(M)
Total Non-Current Assets 		
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			Effect of			Effect of
		
Notes	As per
Transition to 	As per	As per
Transition to	As per
			
SLAS LKAS/SLFRS &
LKAS/SLFRS
SLAS LKAS/SLFRS &
LKAS/SLFRS
				Remeasurement			Remeasurement

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
04 	EXPLANATION TO THE TRANSITION OF LKAS/SLFRS (Contd...)
Notes to the Reconciliation of Equity as at 1st April 2011, 31st March 2012 and Total Comprehensive Income (“C I”) for the year ended 31st March 2012
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME STATEMENT
(A) Revenue
		 Profit & loss of the perennial crop has been recognised in the financial period of harvesting in terms of SLAS 32-Plantation. Thus the unsold stocks were treated as a part of
revenue. The scope of revenue recognition was changed to LKAS 18. Accordingly, the revenue is recognised based on the date of auction where the recognition criteria’s are
met and therefore the quantity which is sold at auction is treated as the sales.
		

The revenue will be recognised when the criteria for sale of goods is met under the relevant agreement. Accordingly an adjustment is made in order to comply with the
requirement under SLFRS in order to recognise such revenue.

		

Interest income is recognized using the EIR method in accordance with LKAS 39 and difference has been reversed from Revenue and recorded as gain to the previous financial
year (Retained Earnings).

		
			
			
		
		
		

Removal of unsold produce stock which was part of the Revenue
Accounted for previous year stocks sold during the year
Impact on remeasurement of Income of Financial instruments

Group
Company
CI for year ended CI for year ended
31st March 2012 31st March 2012
(136,702)
173,623
(2,100)

(2,100)

(B) Cost of sales
1. Matching the Cost of Sales Against Revenue
		 Recognition of the cost of sales has been changed simultaneous to the changes to the revenue recognition. Thus, cost of sales consists with the costs that are directly
attributable to goods sold. Cost of opening stocks and the closing stocks were adjusted to the cost of production in arriving this. Further, the measurement of unsold tea and
rubber stocks have been changed, in terms of LKAS 2 and LKAS 41. Please refer Note 4(N) for changes in valuation method of inventory.
2. Decrease in depreciation/amortization due to fair valuation of bearer biological assets, rubber and coconut.
		 Depreciation and amortization charged under SLAS on Rubber and Coconut was reversed in adopting fair value of bearer biological assets, rubber and coconut under LKAS 41.
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3. Classification of Actuarial Gain under OCI of Defined Benefit Plan
		 Gain on actuarial valuation of retirement benefit obligation reclassified from cost of sale to OCI for the year ended 31st March, 2011 with compliance to both LKAS 19 and
group accounting policy.
			
			
			
		
		
		
		
		

Opening produce stock at Lower of deemed cost or NRV
Closing produce stock at Lower of deemed cost or NRV
Reversal of Dep./Ammr. Charges during the year ended 31st March 2012 for Rubber and Coconut due to Fair Value
Transfer of Actuarial Gain to OCI for the Year ended 31st March 2012
Reclassification of expenses recognition of Subsidiaries

Group
Company
CI for year ended CI for year ended
31st March 2012 31st March 2012
(154,280)
122,631
14,582
(21,454)
(7,811)

(C) Other Income
1. Sale of trees
		 Proceeds from sale of trees recognized under other income transferred to respective bearer biological assets measured at fair value under LKAS 41.
		
2. Interest Income
		 Loans granted to employees below the market rates are measured at fair value as per LKAS 39 and the increase is added to other income.
3.	Gain on Money Market Investments
		 The impact in fair valuation of investments as per LKAS 39 is recognized under other income.

-

04 	EXPLANATION TO THE TRANSITION OF LKAS/SLFRS (Contd...)
4.	Gain/(Loss) on Changes in Fair Value of Biological Assets
		 Rubber, Coconut and timber plantations are recognized at fair valuation in accordance with LKAS 41. The gain/(loss) on changes in fair value during the year is recognized
accordingly.
			
			
			
		
		
		
		
		

Reversal of Proceeds from Sale of Trees
Increase in Interest Income due to measurement at Market Rate
Gain on Money Market Investments
Gain/(Loss) on Fair Valuation of Bearer Biological Assets
Gain/(Loss) on Fair Valuation of Consumable Biological Assets

Group
Company
CI for year ended CI for year ended
31st March 2012 31st March 2012
(42,780)
47
2,224
146,674
(94,329)

-

(D)	Administration Expenses
		 In accordance to SLFRS 1 (Para 30), A sub-subsidiary of the Company (MDPL), use fair value as deemed cost as at transition date. Fair value of the above plant and
equipment has been ascertained by Independent valuation carried by Incorporated valuer and consultant using open market value method of valuation as at 1st April 2011.
As a result of fair valuation, recognized depreciation base of previous financial frame work has been reduced by Rs.9Mn.
			
			
			
		
		
		

Amortization of pre paid staff cost
Derecognition of loss on fair value of Money Market Securities
Depreciation impact on Re-valuation

Group
Company
CI for year ended CI for year ended
31st March 2012 31st March 2012
(13)
7,422
8,858

-

(E) Other Expenses
		 Transactive on cost of Equity transaction
		 In accordance with LKAS 32-” Financial Instrument presentation “Transaction costs of equity was recognised to equity statement. However, which cost recorded under Other
expenses as per previous financial frame work.

			
			
			
		
		

Cost on Share issue Classified as Equity Transaction
Gain/(Loss) on Available for Sale financial assets fair valuation

Group
Company
CI for year ended CI for year ended
31st March 2012 31st March 2012
115,793
(53,429)

115,793
(53,429)

(F) Share of Profit/(Loss) of Equity Accounted Investees (Net of Tax)
		 This represents the Group’s share of the adjustments to the profits of the equity accounted investees on adoption of the SLFRSs.
			
			
			
		

Change in associate profit due to adoption of SLFRS

Group
Company
CI for year ended CI for year ended
31st March 2012 31st March 2012
2,336

-
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Gain/(Loss) on Fair valuation of Asset Available for sale assets
In Accordance with LKAS 39, Gain or loss from Assets available for sale recorded in the other Comprehensive income. However, in accordance with previous financial from
work gain from fair valuation of respective assets recorded under other expenses.
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04 	EXPLANATION TO THE TRANSITION OF LKAS/SLFRS (Contd...)
(G)	Gain on Bargain Purchase (Negative Goodwill)
Group
Company
CI for year ended CI for year ended
31st March 2012 31st March 2012

			
			
			
		

Gain on Bargain Purchase (Negative Goodwill) previously recognized in the
Income Statement transferred to the Statement of Changes in Equity

15,480

-

(H) Taxation
		 The deferred tax effect arises due to the increase of the taxable temporary difference as a result of fair valuation of biological assets.
Group
Company
CI for year ended CI for year ended
31st March 2012 31st March 2012

			
			
			
		
		

Differed tax impact on SLFRS Adoption
Remeasurement of unrecognised deferred tax expenses

(1,520)
(35,413)

-

		
		 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME STATEMENT
According to SLAS, the Group has accounted for long term investments and measured at cost. However, in accordance with LKAS 39 - Financial instruments these assets
treated as Assets Available for sale and as at transition date recognized at fair value and Gain or loss on fair valuation record as Assets Available for sale reserve in equity
statement.
Value on disposal of assets treated as Assets Available for sale was transferred from Equity statement to Profit and loss account.
The Group has measured certain items of Property, plant and equipment at fair valued during the year 2011/12. According to SLFRS these equity transactions recorded in
other comprehensive income statement.
		
		 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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(I) Property, Plant and Equipment
		The Group elected to apply the optional exemption to use the deemed cost for certain assets under property plant & equipment under First time adoption of SLFRS 1.
Transfer to Bearer Biological Assets previously recognized in Property, Plant and Equipment under SLAS.
Re-classify Land Development Cost under Property, Plant and Equipment.
			
Group
Company
			As At 31st March	As At 1st April	As At 31st March	As At 1st April
			
2012
2011
2012
2011
Immovable(JEDB/SLSPC)Assets on Finance Lease(Other than Bare Land)
Transfer of Land Development Cost
Immature/Mature Plantations reclassified under Bearer Biological Assets
Impact on Fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment
Transfer to Consumer Biological Assets

(64,954)
15,200
(923,832)
(18,584)
-

(70,422)
15,011
(807,662)
(244,714)

-

-

04 	EXPLANATION TO THE TRANSITION OF LKAS/SLFRS (Contd...)
(J)
		
		
		

Bearer Biological Assets
Tea, Rubber, Coconut and Other Crops are categorized under Bearer Biological Assets.
Tea and Other Crops are recorded at cost due to practical difficulties to adopt fair value model. Rubber and Coconut Crops are recorded at fair value as per LKAS 41.
The components of Bearer Biological Assets previously recognized under Property, Plant and Equipment and Timber Stocks are transferred to Bearer Biological Assets.

		

Nurseries of Tea, Rubber and Other Crops were previously classified as inventory under SLAS which has to be re-classified under Bearer/Consumable Biological Assets as per
LKAS 41.

			
Group
Company
			As At 31st March	As At 1st April	As At 31st March	As At 1st April
			
2012
2011
2012
2011
Transfer of value of timber component from Consumable to Bearer Biological Assets - Rubber
Transfer of value of timber component from Consumer to Bearer Biological Assets - Coconut
Land Development Cost
Immovable (JEDB/SLSPC) Mature/Immature Plantations reclassified under
Bearer Biological Assets
Mature/Immature Plantations reclassified under Bearer Biological Assets
Growing Crop Nurseries’ reclassified under Biological Assets
Impact on Fair Valuation of Bearer Biological Assets
Reversal of Depreciation/Amortization charged on Mature Plantations - Rubber and Coconut
Reversal of Grant Received on Rubber Replanting

457,105
8,361
(15,200)

436,460
(15,011)

-

-

65,733
934,987
8,166
400,247
11,544
(28,335)

69,431
807,662
5,640
305,621
11,544
(21,062)

-

-

(K) Consumer Biological Assets
		 Timber component of rubber trees were initially recorded under consumable biological assets after fair valuation in terms of LKAS 41. Due to fair valuation of latex and timber
of Rubber trees, the timber component of rubber trees was reclassified under bearer biological assets (rubber) in terms of LKAS 41.
			
Group
Company
			As At 31st March	As At 1st April	As At 31st March	As At 1st April
			
2012
2011
2012
2011
(435,929)
351,587

-

-

Page 61

(548,313)
-

(L) Investments in Equity Accounted Investees
		 Investment in equity accounted investees were fair valued as of transition to SLFRS date (1/4/2011) as allowed by SLFRS 1-First time adoption of Sri Lanka Accounting
standards. The fair value of those investments as at 1/4/2011 shall be considered deemed cost thereafter of that investment.
			
Group
Company
			As At 31st March	As At 1st April	As At 31st March	As At 1st April
			
2012
2011
2012
2011
Revaluation of Property plant and equipment owned by
Investments in Equity Accounted Investees
Deferred tax on Revaluation
Other Changes in Associates

91,001
3,548
-

25,062

-

-
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04 	EXPLANATION TO THE TRANSITION OF LKAS/SLFRS (Contd...)
(M) Other Long Term Investments
		 Under previous SLAS, the Group and Company accounted for the long term investments measured at cost. Under SLFRS/LKAS,the Group and Company have designated such
investments as available for sale Investments. LKAS 3/SLFRS requires available for sale investments measured at Fair Value. Difference between the fair value under SLFRS/
LKAS and carrying value under previous SLAS has been recognised as separate component of Equity.
			
Group
Company
			As At 31st March	As At 1st April	As At 31st March	As At 1st April
			
2012
2011
2012
2011
Fair Value change on assets available for sale assets
Share advance reclassified under Long term Investments.

(272,694)
15,151

(144,953)
(272,694)
9,009 		

(144,953)

(N) Inventories
		 The produce stock of biological assets i.e. tea and rubber were valued at their estimated realizable values, net of direct selling expenses as per SLAS 32. With the adoption
of SLFRS, the agricultural products that are harvested from biological assets i.e. green leaf and latex are required to measure at its fair value less cost to sell at the point of
harvest. Therefore, it is scoped under LKAS 2 and its fair value is the cost at the date of at the date of applying this standard. The cost of semi-finished and finished products
are estimated through attributing the direct manufacturing cost into the fair value of biological product’s cost of conversion, depending on the existing state of conversion as
at the date of financial position. Subsequently, the measurement of inventory is carried at the lower of cost and estimated net realizable value in accordance with LKAS 2.
			
Group
Company
			As At 31st March	As At 1st April	As At 31st March	As At 1st April
			
2012
2011
2012
2011
Removal of produce stock valuation as per SLAS
Inclusion of produce stock valuation as per SLFRS
Growing Crop Nurseries’ reclassified under Biological Assets

(134,472)
120,401
(8,723)

(168,600)
149,258
(6,172)

-

-

(O) Trade & Other Receivable
			
Group
Company
			As At 31st March	As At 1st April	As At 31st March	As At 1st April
			
2012
2011
2012
2011

BROWNS INVESTMENTS PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013

Page 62

Share advance reclassified under Long term Investments.

(15,151)

(9,009)

-

-

(P) Deferred tax Liability
		 The deferred tax effect arises due to the increase of the taxable temporary difference mainly as a result of fair valuation of biological assets. The liability as at 1 April 2011
and 31 March 2012 has been increased as analysed below.
		

This measurement effects on the net assets in the Statement of Financial Position as at 1 April 2011, 31 March 2012 and CI for the year ended 31 March 2012 as follows

			
Group
Company
			As At 31st March	As At 1st April	As At 31st March	As At 1st April
			
2012
2011
2012
2011
Unutilised Tax Losses
Employee benefits
Property, Plant & Equipment
Bearer Biological Assets
Consumer Biological Assets

(80,261)
(54,803)
99,396
149,031
151,429

(69,365)
(54,843)
58,403
128,178
163,000

-

-

04 	EXPLANATION TO THE TRANSITION OF LKAS/SLFRS (Contd...)
(Q) Differed Income		
		 Grants relating to replanting of biological assets was recognised as deferred income in order to amortised over the us full life under SLAS. Under LKAS 24 grant related to
immature plantations are deducted from the carrying value of the immature plantations since immature plantations is carried at cost.
			
Group
Company
			As At 31st March	As At 1st April	As At 31st March	As At 1st April
			
2012
2011
2012
2011
Reversal grant received on timber plantations
Reversal grant received on Immature Rubber plantations

(2,973)
(28,334)

(2,973)
(21,061)

-

-

(R) Other
		
The effect of Transition, other than above, relate to reclassification of balances to be in compliance with SLFRS/LKAS		
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(S) Statement of Cash Flows
		
The transition from SLAS to SLFRS/LKAS has no t had a material impact on the statement of cash flows

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

	Group
		
2013
In Rs.‘000s
5

Revenue
Total Revenue
Less: Inter Group Revenue
		
5.1

Industry Segment (Revenue)
Investments
Tea
Rubber
Hydro Power
Leisure
Porcelain
Construction
Others
		

2012

2,709,691
(84,870)
2,624,821

2,124,664
(68,115)
2,056,549

71,168
71,168

210,286
210,286

61,168
1,324,288
346,793
14,120
140,267
678,687
40,290
19,208
2,624,821

210,286
1,090,843
440,441
19,952
71,272
190,396
23,209
10,150
2,056,549

71,168
71,168

210,286
210,286

1,225,093
200,879
17,199
65,907
643,529
18,450
6,443
2,177,500

1,162,175
219,381
16,914
28,512
174,010
22,560
9,582
1,633,134

-

-

61,168
99,195
145,914
(3,079)
74,360
35,158
21,840
12,765
447,321

210,286
(71,332)
221,068
3,038
42,760
16,385
649
561
423,415

71,168
71,168

210,286
210,286

4,682
642
220,446
153,640
52,006
431,416

5,349
1,254
186,473
89,377
282,453

167,517
167,812
156,561
665
492,555

128,577
50,507
179,084

29,488
54,460
83,948

149,244
(111,850)
37,394

-

-

6
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Cost of Sales
Industry Segment (Cost of Sales)
Investments
Tea
Rubber
Hydro Power
Leisure
Porcelain
Construction
Others
		

2012

Company
2013

7 	Gross Profit
Industry Segment (Gross Profit)
Investments
Tea
Rubber
Hydro Power
Leisure
Porcelain
Construction
Others
		
8

Other Income
Amortization of Capital Grants
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
Interest Income
Market Value Adjustments for Carrying Value of Short Term Investments
Others
		
9	Gain/(Loss) on Changes in Fair Value of Biological Assets
Bearer Biological Assets
Consumable Biological Assets
		

	Group
		
2013
In Rs.‘000s
10

Finance Costs
Lease Interest
Foreign Exchange loss
Bank guarantee commission
Interest on Term Loans
		
Less : Finance Costs capitalized during the Year
		
11 	Gain on Bargain Purchase
Ceylon Estate Teas (Pvt) Ltd [Note 11.1]
Excel Global Holdings (Pvt) Ltd
Taprobane Capital (Pvt) Ltd
		

2012

Company
2013

2012

12,702
4,216
986
275,491
293,395
(17,935)
275,460

14,500
34,360
156,771
205,631
(15,298)
190,333

169,870
169,870
169,870

84,729
84,729
84,729

469
469

2,607,597
48,406
2,656,003

-

-

11.1	Acquisitions of Ceylon Estate Teas (Pvt) Ltd
The Free Lanka Management Company (Pvt) Ltd, Joint Venture’s Subsidiary has acquired 99.99% of the voting shares of Ceylon Estate Teas (Pvt) Ltd during the financial year
ended 31st March 2013.
A cash consideration of Rs.45.5Mn was paid to the existing shareholders. The carrying value of the net assets of Ceylon Estate Teas (Pvt) Ltd., as at the acquisition date was
Rs.47.2Mn. The difference between the consideration and the carrying value of the interest acquired of Rs.1.7Mn has been recognized to Statement of Comprehensive Income as
Gain on Bargain Purchase. The Group has recorded respective portion in accordance with Proportionate consolidation.
	Group
		
In Rs.‘000s

2013

Company
2012

2013

2012

13

Income Tax Expense
Current Income Tax Expense
10% Withholding Tax on Dividend from Associate/Subsidiary Companies
Income Tax Over/Under Provision
Deferred Tax Expense/(Reversal)
		
Deferred Tax Expenses
Income Statement
Deferred Tax Expense/(Income)
Deferred Tax Charge/(Reversal)
Other Comprehensive Income
Deferred Tax Expense arising on Revaluation of Property, plant and Equipment to Fair Value
		

35,255
2,920
307
7,013
45,495

74,487
3,390
10,864
33,853
122,594

-

48,809
48,809

7,013
7,013

33,853
33,853

-

-

(7,383)
(7,383)

3,977
3,977

-

-
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Profit Before Taxation
Profit before tax is stated after charging all expenses including the following:
Directors’ Emoluments
15,334
10,614
2,084
2,400
	Auditors’ Remuneration				
Audit Service
4,218
3,761
250
248
Depreciation/Amortization
139,906
85,783
Staff Costs
Salaries & Wages
970,325
784,026
2,187
1,453
Defined Contribution Plan Costs - EPF, ETF, CPPS and ESPS
123,099
108,673
328
218
Defined Benefit Plan Costs - Gratuity
50,780
39,075
Mark to Market Loss
409,037
409,037
Management Fees
5,600
5,600
5,600
5,600
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13.1

Numerical Reconciliation between the Tax Expense(Income) and the Product of Accounting Profit/(Loss).
Numerical reconciliation between the Tax Expense/(Income) and the product of Accounting Profit/(Loss) multiplied by the applicable tax rate disclosing also the basis on which
the applicable tax rate is computed are given below.

	Group
		
2013
In Rs.‘000s

2012

Company
2013

2012

Accounting Profit/(Loss) before Taxation
79,423
2,746,092
375,011
(152,565)
Less:
IFRS Adjustments
(66,700)
Exempt Income
(4,696)
(536)
(169,639)
(84,073)
(Gain)/Loss on Change in Fair Value of Biological Assets
(83,947)
(37,394)
Other Exempt Income
(75,881)
(80,984)
(51,867)
(Income)/Loss exempt from taxation according to Sec.17 A by Inland Revenue Act as amended
483
1,189
Income exempt from taxation according to BOI Act Sec.
		
(84,618)
2,561,668
153,505
(236,638)
					
Aggregate Disallowable Expenses
252,403
652,383
(157,529)
410,952
Aggregate Allowable Expenses
(203,333)
(525,535)
(1,733)
Aggregate Non-business Income
28,664
(32,064)
Aggregate Interest Income
79,190
139,375
Aggregate Interest Income considered separately
(74,408)
Aggregate Loss from the business
158,323
5757
Aggregate Exempt Income
(2,450,987)
Aggregate Deductions under Section 32
(37,389)
(22,977)
Taxable Income
118,832
321,863
174,314
					
Tax Expense at Special Rate @ 10%/15%
13,651
Tax Expense at Special Rate @ 12%
7,071
1,928
Tax Expense at Normal Rate @ 28%/35%
28,184
58,907
48,409
Dividend Tax on Dividend received from Subsidiaries
2,920
3,390
		
38,175
77,877
48,409
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The Group tax expense is based on the Taxable Profits of the individual companies within the Group. At present, tax laws of Sri Lanka do not provide for Group Taxation.

	Group
		
2013
In Rs.‘000s
13.2

Tax Losses Carried Forward
Tax Losses Brought Forward
Adjustments on Finalization of Tax Liability
Adjustment on Disposal of Joint Venture
Utilization of Tax Losses
		
Tax Losses for the Year
		
14	Earnings per Ordinary Share
	Amounts used as the Numerator
Net Profit Attributable to Ordinary Shareholders
	Amount used as the Denominator
Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares in Issue (Nos.)
Basic Earnings per Ordinary Share (Rs.)
Diluted Earnings per Ordinary Share (Rs.)

2012

Company
2013

2012

548,587
520,746
(14,202)
1,055,131
186,046
1,241,177

481,248
1,138
(22,575)
459,811
88,776
548,587

-

-

(35,815)

2,565,533

375,011

(201,374)

1,860,000

1,847,500

1,860,000

1,847,500

(0.02)
(0.02)

1.39
1.39

0.20
0.20

(0.11)
(0.11)

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year. Number of ordinary shares for the year 2011/2012 has been adjusted to reflect the increase in number of shares consequent to the IPO on 26th July 2011.

Number of Ordinary Shares in Issue (Nos.)
Dividend per Ordinary Share (Rs.)

Interim
Final - proposed

Company
2013

2012

-

186,000
-

-

186,000
-

1,860,000
-

1,860,000
0.10

1,860,000
-

1,860,000
0.10
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15
Dividend Paid
		
		

2012
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	Group
		
2013
In Rs.‘000s
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16

LEASEHOLD PROPERTY
Lease agreements of all JEDB/SLSPC estates handed over to the Company’s Joint Venture’s Sub-subsidiaries have been executed to date. All of these lease are retroactive to
15th June 1992, the date of formation of the Company’s Joint Venture’s Sub-subsidiaries. The leasehold rights to the bare land on all of these estates have been taken into the
books of the Company’s Joint Venture’s Sub-subsidiaries on 15th June’1992, immediately after formation of the Company’s Joint Venture’s Sub-subsidiaries, in terms of the ruling
obtained from the Urgent Issue Task Force (UITF) of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. For this purpose, Board of the Company’s Joint Venture’s Sub-subsidiaries
decided at its meetings that lease bare land would be revalued at the value established for this land by Valuation Specialist Dr. Wickramasinghe just prior to the formation of
the Company’s Joint Venture’s Sub-subsidiaries . The value as at 15th June’1992 was taken in to the books of Company’s Joint Venture’s Sub-subsidiaries namely Maturata
Plantations Limited and Pussellawa Plantations Limited, and the amortization of the leasehold rights up to 31st March 2013 are as follows.
Leasehold Rights to Bare Land of JEDB/SLSPC Estate Assets and Immovable (JEDB/SLSPC) Estates Assets on Finance Lease obtained on a long term basis by the Company’s
Joint Venture’s Sub-subsidiaries, are stated at the recorded carrying values as at the effective date of Sri Lanka Accounting Standard (LKAS) No.17 – Leases, in line with Ruling
of the Urgent Issues Task Force of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. Such carrying amounts are amortized over the remaining Lease term or useful life of such
asset whichever is shorter.
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka has issued a Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) (with effect from 01st January 2012) for Right-to-use of Land on
Lease on 19th December, 2012. Since the SORP issued by the ICASL has not been finalized as of the date of Auditor’s Report, Company’s Joint Venture’s Sub-subsidiaries have
not been complied with the SORP issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka.
Therefore, respective Leasehold Right to bear lands are accounted as the existing practice of “Urgent Issue Task Force (UITF) rulings” issued prior to 01st January, 2012 which
has been superseded by the Sri Lanka Accounting Framework with effect from 01st January, 2012 Company’s Joint Venture’s Sub-subsidiaries.

		Group
Company
		As At	As At	As At	As At	As At	As At
		
31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011 31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011
In Rs.‘000s
16.1 Capitalized Value (15th June’1992)
175,500
175,500
175,500
							
a)
Leasehold Rights Acquired/Revalued
186,945
186,945
186,945
Balance as at 31st March
186,945
186,945
186,945
							
b)	Accumulated Amortization
Accumulated Amortization at the beginning of the Year
48,042
43,858
39,674
Add : Amount amortized during the Year
4,185
4,184
4,184
Accumulated Amortization at the end of the Year
52,227
48,042
43,858
-
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c)

134,718

138,903

143,087

-

-

-

The Leasehold Right to Bare Land of JEDB/SLSPC Estates is being amortized by equal amounts over a 53 year period and the unexpired period of the lease as at the Balance
Sheet date is 32.5 years.
16.2

BROWNS INVESTMENTS PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013

Total Net Carrying Value

Maturata Plantations Ltd
Since the fair value of revalued assets differs materially from its carrying amount, the Board of Directors of Maturata Plantations Limited, a Company’s Joint Venture’s Subsubsidiaries, on 20th December 2005 has decided a further revaluation to be carried out as at 31st December 2005. The net amounts have been restated to the new valuation
carried out by an independent and qualified valuer, Mr.K.Auther Perera. The values of Bare land which was not subjected to a land survey has been based on the current freehold
bare land values which varies from District to District and estate to estate depending on demand. The freehold values have been converted into leasehold value depending on the
balance period of the lease. The revised UITF ruling does not permit further revaluation of Leasehold lands.

16.2.1 Carrying Value of Revalued Leasehold Property of Maturata Plantations Limited (MPL) at Cost Model - Group
The carrying value of Leasehold Right to bare land of JEDB/SLSPC Estates of the MPL that would have been included in the financial statements as at 31st March, 2013 had the
asset been carried at initial valuation less accumulated amortization is as follows:
Leasehold Right to Bare Land of JEDB/SLSPC Estates
		Group
Company
		As At	As At	As At	As At	As At	As At
		
31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011 31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011
In Rs.‘000s
a)
Revaluation as at 22nd June 1992
89,896
89,896
89,896
		
89,896
89,896
89,896
							
b)
Accumulated Amortization as at 01st April
33,543
31,847
30,151
Add :
1,696
1,696
1,696
Accumulated Amortization as at 31st March
35,239
33,543
31,847
							
c)
Written Down Value as at 31st March
54,657
56,353
58,049
16.3

Land Acquired/in the Process of being Acquired by the Government & Divested as at 31st March 2013
Maturata Plantations Limited
The Government of Sri Lanka has acquired a total land extent of 223.1445 hectares and also in the process of being acquired a further total land extent of 877.3567 hectares
The Land divested at the year end totaling to 822.00 hectares.
Pussellawa Plantations Ltd
The Government of Sri Lanka has acquired a total land extent of 82.50 hectares and also in the process of being acquired a further total land extent of 7.02 hectares.
The Land divested at the year end totaling to 89.52 hectares.
No adjustments have been made to the records in respect of the lands acquired as the compensations receivable on the major acquisition are not known and the transactions
pertaining to those acquisitions have been incomplete as at 31st March, 2013.

17

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

		Group
Company
		As At	As At	As At	As At	As At	As At
		
31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011 31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011
In Rs.‘000s
Property, Plant and Equipment Note 17.1 & 17.3
Capital Work-In-Progress Note 17.4
		

2,256,349
625,221
2,881,570

2,245,519
68,489
2,314,008

853,503
20,337
873,840

605,817
605,817

677,585
677,585

358,497
358,497
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Pussellawa Plantations Ltd filed a fundamental rights case against the Minister of Lands and Land Development at Supreme Courts stating that the Gazette notification is illegal,
Null and void which is pending as at the date of statement of financial position. No adjustments have been made to the written down book value in respect of the acquisitions
referred above as the compensation is receivable by the company on the land acquired as per the Lease Agreement.

Page 69

Government has acquired 50.3285 Hect of Pitipana Estate, Homagama under the Section 2 of the Urban Development Authority [Special Projects] act through section 38[a] for
town development by Extra Ordinary Gazette notification no.1539/9 dated 03rd March 2008.
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68,611

As at 31st March 2013

20,269

25,110

As at 31st March 2012

As at 31st March 2011

358,497

857,878

921,891

-

921,891

857,878
23,011
167,002
(126,000)
722,319

712,318
9,310
(2,737)
3,428
158,866

147,789
11,976
(894)
(5)

191,387

477,008

477,694

81,193

583,632

549,062

81,284

98,444

96,005

33,367
128,686
49,345
19,051
44,884
14,429
(913)
(1,434)
(1,285)
1,121
(11,047)			
40,086
173,257
62,861

517,780

510,375
11,131
(3,731)
5

Furniture and
Office
Equipment

8,301

23,266

36,324

33,403

497

5,041

4,838

91,953
2,298
5,694
1,097
(2,928)
932
68
- 		
95,651
3,463

129,054

92,269

166,923

158,446

16,103
34,609
12
50,724

209,170

128,277
7,339
183,026
6,023
648
26,391
- 		
(6,679)
(247)
- 		
1,433
314
-

Freehold
Other
Motor
Computer
Tangible
Vehicles	Equipment 	Assets

853,503

2,245,519

2,256,349

373,172
124,066
(3,841)
(1,434)
(1,273)
(11,047)
479,643

2,735,992

2,618,691
90,587
163,271
(2,737)
(7,820)
(126,000)
-

Total

Freehold Land
Freehold Building
		

		
		
		

136,900
136,900

Browns
Investment
PLC

Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment
Lands owned by Browns Investments PLC, were revalued by an independent Valuer, W.M Chandrasena, Incorporated valuer.
Property, Plant and Equipment owned by Royal Fernwood Porcelain Ltd., a Sub-Subsidiary of the company, were revalued by an independent Valuer, Mr. A.Y. Daniel and sons, Chartered Valuation Surveyor.
The Revaluation Surplus recorded by the Subsidiaries and Sub-subsidiaries of the Company as at 31st March 2013 was as follows.

30,102
(3,731)
26,371

Royal
Fernwood
Porcelain Ltd

167,002
(3,731)
163,271

Total

These Immovable/Movable assets vested in the Company’s Joint Venture’s Sub-subsidiaries by Gazette Notification on the date of formation of the Company’s Joint Venture’s Sub-Subsidiaries and all the investments made in the tangible assets
by the Company’s Joint Venture’s Sub-subsidiaries since their formation have been classified as above. The assets taken over by way of finance leases by the Company’s Joint Venture’s Subsidiaries are set out in Note 17.2.
* Details of assets on finance lease described in Note No. 17.2.

15,010

As at 31st March 2013

51,420
4,302
(2,121)
53,601

71,689
2,097
(5,175)

Assets on 				
Finance
Freehold
Freehold
Plant and
Lease*
Land
Buildings
Machinery

Cost/Valuation
As at 1st April 2012
Additions
Revaluation
Written off
Disposals
Transfer to Investment Property
Transfers

	Accumulated Depreciation
As at 1st April 2012
Charge for the period
Disposals
Written off
Transfers
Revaluation Transfer
As at 31st March 2013

17.1

17
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd...)
		
		
		
In Rs.‘000s
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1,868

855

30,949

7,609

4,473

137

348

Permanent 		
Land
Roads
Development
and Bridges
361

Other
Vested
Assets
46,843

Total

143
8
151

151
8
159

84
92
100

Amortization
As at 01st April 2011
Charges for the Year
As at 31st March 2012

As at 01st April 2012
Charge for the year
As at 31st March 2013

As at 31st march 2013
As at 31st march 2012
As at 01st April 2011

581
643
705

1,225
62
1,287

1,163
62
1,225

1,868
1,868
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243
243

As at 01st April 2012
As at 31st March 2013
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265
293
321

562
28
590

534
28
562

855
855

5,279
6,517
7,755

24,432
1,238
25,670

23,194
1,238
24,432

30,949
30,949

-

7,609
7,609

7,609
7,609

7,609
7,609

41
32
165

4,441
(9)
4,432

4,308
133
4,441

4,473
4,473

84
87
89

50
3
53

48
2
50

137
137

109
121
133

227
12
239

215
12
227

348
348

-

361
361

361
361

361
361

6,443
7,785
9,268

39,058
1,342
40,400

37,575
1,483
39,058

46,843
46,843

Cost/Valuation										
As at 01st April 2011
243
1,868
855
30,949
7,609
4,473
137
348
361
46,843
As at 31st March 2012
243
1,868
855
30,949
7,609
4,473
137
348
361
46,843

243

Vested 						
Unimproved
Improvements
Vested 			
Water
Land
To Land
Plantations
Buildings
Machinery
Sanitation

Capitalized Value (15th/22nd June 1992)

		
		
		
In Rs.‘000s

17.2.1 Immovable (JEDB/SLSPC) Assets on Finance Lease (Other than Bare Land) - Group										
As more fully explained in Note 17, Company’s Joint venture’s subsidiary owns JEDB/SLSPC estate lease deeds have been executed to date. In terms of the ruling of the UITF of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka, all immovable
assets in the JEDP/SLSPC estates under finance leases have been taken into the books of the Company’s Subsidiaries retroactive to 15th/22nd June 1992. For this purpose, the Board of Company’s Subsidiaries decided at their meetings,
that these assets be revalued at their book values as they appear in the books of the JEDP/SLSPC, on the day immediately preceding the date of formation of the Company’s Subsidiaries. These assets are taken into the Statement of Financial
Position of Company’s Joint Venture’s Subsidiaries as at 15th/22nd June 1992 and depreciated as follows:
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In Rs.‘000s
17
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (contd…)
17.2.2 Assets on Finance Lease (Other than Immovable (JEDB/SLSPC asset on finance lease) - Group
	Assets on Finance Leases
		

Plant and
Machinery

Motor
Vehicles

As at 1st April 2012
Additions
Disposals
Transferred In/(Out)
As at 31st March 2013

7,352
15,534
2,097 		
(3,427)
(1,434)
6,022
14,100

As at 1st April 2012
Transferred In/(Out)
On Disposals
Charge for the Year
As at 31st March 2013

1,691
(1,117)
353
923

As at 31st March 2013
As at 31st March 2012
As at 01st April 2011

5,099
5,661
10,510

Leasehold
Buildings
1,646
1,646

Leasehold
Computers

Total

314
(314)
-

24,846
2,097
(5,175)
21,768

10,603 		
68
(936)		
(68)
- 			
2,058
549 		
11,725
549
-

12,362
(2,121)
2,960
13,201

2,375
4,931
5,332

1,097
1,646
-

246
-

8,567
12,484
15,842

Total Carrying Value of Leasehold Assets
As at 31st March 2013					
As at 31st March 2012					
As at 01st April 2011					

15,010
20,269
25,110

Land and Buildings - Company
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Owner

Location

Extent
Land
A-R-P

Browns Investments PLC

Panadura

0-1-39

Browns Investments PLC

Battaramulla

0-1-25

Browns Investments PLC

Malabe

0-2-6

Browns Investments PLC

Trincomalee

5-0-1

Browns Investments PLC

Moratuwa

1.-2-6

Browns Investments PLC

Avissawella

2.-3.-38

Browns Investments PLC

Kosgoda

0.-0.-35

Browns Investments PLC
Browns Investments PLC
Browns Investments PLC

Kosgoda
Colombo
Kosgoda

5.-1-0
0-0-28
0-3-15.5

Buildings
Sq. Ft.

Effective Date of
Valuation

Method of
Valuation

31st March, 2013 Open Market
Value Method
31st March, 2013 Open Market
Value Method
31st March, 2013 Open Market
Value Method
31st March, 2013 Open Market
Value Method
31st March, 2013 Open Market
Value Method
20,073 31st March, 2013 Open Market
Value Method
31st March, 2013 Open Market
Value Method
Cost
Cost
Cost

Assets pledged as collaterals.
Assets pledged as collaterals for loan disclosure in the Note 47 the financial statements.

Value
2013

Property Valuer

Qualification

2012

39,000

37,005 Mr. W.M. Chandrasena

195,000

165,564 Mr. W.M. Chandrasena

161,000

108,155 Mr. W.M. Chandrasena

65,000

45,000 Mr. W.M. Chandrasena

78,000

74,780 Mr. W.M. Chandrasena

63,523

- Ms. A.Y. Daniel & Son

4,285

-

605,808

141,610
93,599
11,872
677,585

Chartered Valuation
Surveyor
Chartered Valuation
Surveyor
Chartered Valuation
Surveyor
Chartered Valuation
Surveyor
Chartered Valuation
Surveyor
Chartered Valuation
Surveyor

In Rs.‘000s
17.3
Company
							
Furniture
Other
		
Land and
Plant and
Motor
and
Tangible
Cost
Buildings
Machinery
Vehicles	Equipment
Computers
Fittings	Assets
As at 1st April
Additions
Revaluations
Disposals
Transfer to Investment Properties
As at 31st March 2013

-

-

-

-

9
9

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

As at 31st March 2013

605,808

-

-

-

-

9

-

605,817

As at 31st March 2012

677,585

-

-

-

-

-

-

677,585

As at 31st March 2011

358,467 							

358,467

Accumulated Depreciation
As at 1st April
On Disposals
Charge for the Year
As at 31st March 2013

677,585
70,806
136,900
(153,483)
(126,000)
605,808

Total
677,585
70,815
136,900
(153,483)
(126,000)
605,817

Capital Work-In-Progress
Balance as at 1st April 		
Adjustment on Disposal on Joint Venture 		
Additions during the Year 		
Amount Capitalized during the Year 		
Balance as at 31st March 		

68,489
580,304
(23,572)
625,221

20,337
67,832
(19,680)
68,489

47,378
(21,510)
16,948
(22,479)
20,337

-

-

-

Class of Asset-wise Break-up 							
Buildings 		
524,743
22,704
4,942
Plant and Machinery 		
1,430
4,760
Water Sanitation 		
96,346
106
106
Roads and Bridges 		
3,842
4,619
4,170
Hydro Power 		
39,260
6,254
Others 		
290
370
105
			
625,221
68,489
20,337
-

-
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Group
Company
		As At	As At	As At	As At	As At	As At
		
31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011 31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011
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In Rs.‘000s
		Group
Company
			As At 	As At 	As At	As At 	As At 	As At
			 31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011 31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011
18

Investment Property
Land and Building
Fair Value as at 01st April
Add : Additions
Transferred From Freehold Land
On acquisition of Subsidiary
Less : Disposals
Change in Fair Value during the Year
Fair Value as at 31st March

Summery of Investment Properties
Land
Buildings
		

3,799,597
2,454
126,000
(795)
3,927,256

49,597
3,500,000
250,000
3,799,597

49,597
49,597

126,000
9,000
135,000

-

-

3,577,256
350,000
3,927,256

3,449,597
350,000
3,799,597

49,597
49,597

135,000
135,000

-

-
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Investment Properties of the Group include followings;
18.1

Leasehold land at Excel World
The Company’s Sub-subsidiary, Millennium Developments (Pvt) Ltd (A subsidiary of Excel Global Holdings (Pvt) Ltd) has Leasehold rights to this property bearing plan no 784A,
No 338,T.B Jayah Mawatha, Colombo 10. The Property has land extent of 897 perches. The property was valued by Independent Valuer Mr.K.T.D.Tissera, a member of the
Institute of Valuer of Sri Lanka in determined the fair value as at 1st April 2012 and 31st March 2013 to be Rs.3,750Mn and 3,718Mn respectively. The resulting loss for the
year Rs.35Mn has been recognized in the Income Statement. Rental Income of Rs.82.3Mn has been earned from this investment Property by MDPL during the year ended 31st
March 2013.

18.2

Property owned by F L C Properties (Pvt) Ltd (Formerly knows as Free Lanka Capital Properties (Pvt) Ltd.
Property owned by F L C Properties (Pvt) Ltd a fully owned subsidiary of the company having a land extent of 49.50 porches bearing Assessment No. 19, Dudley Senanayake
Mawatha, Colombo 08. The Group has adopted Fair Value Model for Investment Property as per the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard (LKAS) 40. The group has engaged an
Independent Valuer Mr.W. M .Chandrasena, a member of the Institute of Valuers of Sri Lanka in determine the fair value as at 31st March’ 2013 of the said Investment Property
which amounted to Rs.272Mn.

18.3

Property owned by Brown Investments PLC (BI PLC)
Property owned by Browns Investments PLC having a land extent of 28.07 perches bearing Assessment No. 30, Havelock Road, Colombo 05. The Group has adopted Fair Value
Model for Investment Property as per the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard (LKAS) 40. The group has engaged an Independent Valuer Mr.W. M. Chandrasena, a member of the
Institute of Valuers of Sri Lanka in determine the fair value as at 31st March’ 2013 of the said Investment Property which amounted to Rs.135Mn. Rental Income of Rs.0.7Mn
has been earned from this investment Property by BIPLC during the year ended 31st March 2013.

	Excel world Property
FLC Property
Havelock Road Property
			As At 	As At 	As At	As At 	As At 	As At
			 31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011 31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011
Rental Income
Direct Operating Expenses
		

82,342
(31,946)
50,396

61,957
(43,204)
18,753

-

-

660
660

-

		Group
Company
			As At 	As At 	As At	As At 	As At 	As At
			 31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011 31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011
19

Intangible Assets and Goodwill
Goodwill Note 19.1
Other Intangible Assets Note 19.2
		

48,445
1,442
49,887

48,445
48,445

2,864
2,864

1,189
1,189

-

-

19.1	Goodwill
Opening balance as at 1st April
Add : Acquisition of Ajax Engineers (Pvt) Ltd
Acquisition of Excel Restaurants (Pvt) Ltd
Balance as at 31st March

48,445
48,445

2,864
25,057
20,524
48,445

2,864
2,864

-

-

-

In Rs.‘000s
		Group
Company
			As At 	As At 	As At	As At 	As At 	As At
			 31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011 31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011
19.2

Other Intangible Assets
Opening balance as at 1st April						
Add : Addition during the Year
1,754
1,501
Less : Amortization for the Year
(312)
(312)
Balance as at 31st March
1442
1,189
-

20
BEARER BIOLOGICAL ASSETS - GROUP
20.1.1	At Cost
		
		
20.1.1.1 On Finance Lease
Revaluation as at 22nd June 1992
Add : Transfer of Immature Plantations
Balance as at 31st March

Tea

As At 31st Mar 2013 	As At 31st Mar 2012
Others
Total
Tea
Others

-

Total

101,538
101,538

101,538
101,538

-

101,538
101,538

Amortization
Balance as at 01st April
Amortization for the year
Balance as at 31st March

61,872
3,344
65,216

-

61,872
3,344
65,216

58,516
3,357
61,873

-

58,516
3,357
61,873

Written Down Value as at 31st March

36,322

-

36,322

39,665

-

39,665

20.1.1.2 Investments after Formation of the Company
Immature Plantations
Balance as at 01st April
91,278
Additions
30,330
Transfer Out
(19,299)
Written off		
Balance as at 31st March
102,309

3,765
12,446
(406)
15,805

95,043
107,200
1,593
42,776
36,841
2,306
(19,299)
(52,763)
(134)
(406)			
118,114
91,278
3,765

108,793
39,147
(52,897)
95,043

Mature Plantations
Balance as at 01st April
Transfer In
Balance as at 31st March

327,393
19,299
346,692

956
956

328,349
19,299
347,648

274,629
52,763
327,392

821
134
955

275,450
52,897
328,347
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-

Depreciation
Balance as at 01st April
Charge for the year
Balance as at 31st March

73,467
10,204
83,671

194
229
423

73,661
10,433
84,094

64,438
9,029
73,467

170
25
195

64,608
9,054
73,662

365,330

16,338

381,668

345,203

4,525

349,728

3,995
(128)
3,867

2,024
(1,690)
334

6,019
(1,818)
4,201

2,567
1,428
3,995

745
1,278
2,023

3,312
2,706
6,018
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101,538
101,538

Written Down Value as at 31st March
20.1.1.3 Growing Crop Nurseries
Balance as at 01st April
Increase/(Decrease)
Balance as at 31st March

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In Rs.‘000s
20
BEARER BIOLOGICAL ASSETS - GROUP (Contd…)
20.1.2	At Fair Value
		
		
20.1.2.1 On Finance Lease
Balance as at 1st April
Decrease due to sale
Decrease due to harvesting Reversal of depreciation
Gain/(Loss)on Fair Valuation
Fair value as at 31st March
20.1.2.2 Investments after formation of the company
Balance as at 1st April
Additions
Grant Received on Immature Rubber
Gain/(Loss) on Fair valuation
Carrying value as at 31st March
20.1.2.3 Growing Crop Nurseries
Balance as at 01st April
Increase/Decrease
Balance as at 31st March

Total

431,496
(25,808)
(12,955)
392,733

7,099
334
7,433

438,595
(25,808)
(12,621)
400,166

379,026
(24,700)
77,170
431,496

6,863
238
7,101

385,889
(24,700)
77,408
438,597

998,619
106,330
(2,900)
40,982
1,143,031

7,832
44
(217)
7,659

1,006,451
106,374
(2,900)
40,765
1,150,690

838,529
98,243
(7,272)
69,119
998,619

7,573
113
148
7,834

846,102
98,356
(7,272)
69,267
1,006,453

2,326
(179)		
2,147
-

2,326
(179)
2,147

-

2,146
229
2,375

1,538,139

15,092

1,553,231

1,432,262

14,935

1,447,197

Total Carrying value as at 31st March
1,943,658
31,764
1,975,422
		
Total Carrying value as at 01st April 2011				

1,821,125

21,483

1,842,608

1,582,863

17,424

1,600,287

148,859

385

149,244

20.1.2.4 Gain/Loss on Fair Value of Biological Assets
20.1.2.5
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As At 31st Mar 2013 	As At 31st Mar 2012
Coconut
Total
Rubber
Coconut

2,146
229
2,375

Carrying Value of Rubber & Coconut as at 31st March
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Rubber

29,275

213

29,488

The carrying value of Rubber and Coconut as at year/period end has been computed as follows.

		
		
Carrying Value of Rubber/Coconut as per the
		 Valuation Report as at 31st March
Add : Cost of Immature Rubber and Coconut Plants below
		 harvesting stage as at 31st March, 2013 not
		 considered for Valuation
Growing Crop Nurseries
Carrying Value of Rubber/Coconut Assets as at 31st March

Rubber

As At 31st Mar 2013 	As At 31st Mar 2012
Coconut
Total
Rubber
Coconut

Total

1,058,847

15,092

1,073,939

1,055,344

13,806

1,069,150

476,918
2,374
1,538,139

15,092

476,918
2,374
1,553,231

374,772
2,146
1,432,262

1,129
14,935

375,901
2,146
1,447,197

Maturata Plantations Ltd/Pussellawa Plantations Ltd
20.2

Borrowing Costs amounting to Rs 17,936/= (Previous Year - Rs 15,299/=) incurred on borrowings obtained to meet expenses relating to bearer biological Assets have been
capitalized.

20.3

Capitalization of borrowing costs will cease when the bearer biological Assets are ready for bearing.

20.4

Bearer biological assets, namely Rubber and Coconut plantations are recognized at its fair value less cost to sell under LKAS 41 - Agriculture. However the Company’s Subsidiary
measures Tea and Other Bearer Biological Assets at cost using LKAS 16 - Property Plant & Equipment in accordance with the new ruling issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Sri Lanka dated 2nd March 2012, due to the impracticability of carrying out proper fair valuation.

In Rs.‘000s
20.5

Rubber and Coconut plantations as at 31st March 2013 of the company’s Subsidiary was valued by Mr K.T.D. Tissera, an independent Chartered Valuation Surveyor as per the
Valuation Report dated 15th April 2013 having separately valued latex/crop and timber components based on the physically verified statistics on a field by field basis. Rubber
and Coconut plantations were retrospectively valued as at 31st March 2012 and 31st March 2011 by the same Chartered valuation Surveyor on a field by field basis.

20.6

The valuation has been prepared in respect of each estate separately for the latex/nuts and the timber component of the Rubber/Coconut plantation.

20.7

The Rubber and Coconut plants having below six years of age as at the date of financial position have been taken at cost.

20.8

The valuer has valued the latex/nuts component of Rubber, and Coconut using the forecasted crop, prices and cost of production based on past statistics on the basis of net
present value of expected future cash flows using a discount rate of 20% per annum (i.e. 8% Risk Free Rate plus 4% Risk Premium plus 8% Inflation). The scrap value, being the
timber component of trees is valued by using the available log prices in city centres less point-of-sale-costs on the basis of net present value of expected future cash flows using a
discount rate of 12% per annum.

20.9

In valuing the Rubber and Coconut plantations, under-mentioned factors have been taken into consideration.
1 The present age of trees and yields of each separate field.
2 Maturity age of the trees.
3 Number of years remaining to harvest.
5 Past prices of latex and Coconut for forecasting future price trend and the current market price of timber as per the available log prices in city centres less point-of-sale-costs to
determine the value of timber component.
6 Field level cost to determine the cost of production of latex and Coconut.
7 Annual yield level is estimated and derived based on last year yield.

20.10 The significant assumptions used in the valuation of Rubber and Coconut plantations are as follows:
a) Future cash flows of timber component of Rubber and Coconut are determined by references to current timber prices without considering the inflationary effect.
b) The on-going cost of growing trees which are deducted in determining the net cash flows are constant in real terms.
c) Rubber/Coconut Plants have been valued working out the period that would take for those trees to be harvested.
d) Due consideration has been given for cost of felling and transport.

		
Rubber

Variance

Variance

-10%
(105,884,817)

+10%
105,884,817

Sensitivity Variation on Discount Rate
Values as appearing in the Statement of Financial Position are very sensitive to changes of the discount rate applied. Simulations made for rubber show that a rise or decrease by
1% of the estimated future discount rate has the following effect on the net present value of biological assets:
		
	As at 31st March 2013
		
Rubber

Variance

Variance

-1%
50,796,440

+1%
(46,408,963)
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	As at 31st March 2013
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20.11 Sensitivity Analysis - Group
Sensitivity Variation on Sales Price
Values as appearing in the Statement of Financial Position are very sensitive to price changes with regard to the average sales prices applied. Simulations made for rubber show
that a rise or decrease by 10% of the estimated future selling price has the following effect on the net present value of biological assets:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In Rs.‘000s
21

CONSUMABLE BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (TIMBER)

Group
Company
			As At 	As At 	As At 	As At
			
31st Mar 2013
31st Mar 2012
31st Mar 2013
31st Mar 2012
Balance as at 1st April
Increase due to New Planting
Sale of Trees
Increase/Decrease in Growing Crop Nursery
			
Gain/(Loss) on Fair Valuation
			

1,514,295
10,572
(12,960)
(40)
1,511,867
55,804
1,567,671

1,630,000
11,631
(18,080)
24
1,623,576
(109,281)
1,514,295

-

-

1,550,854

1,481,676

-

-

16,301
516
1,567,671

32,063
556
1,514,295

-

-

The carrying value of Consumable Biological Assets as at year end has been computed as follows.
Carrying Value as per the Valuation Report as at 31st March
Add: Cost of Timber Plants below three years of age as at 31.03.2013
		 not considered for Valuation
Growing Crop Nurseries
Carrying Value of Timber Stocks as at 31st March

21.1	Group
Maturata Plantations Ltd/Pussellawa Plantations Ltd
The Consumable Biological Assets as at 31st March 2013 of the entity was valued by Mr K.T D Tissera, an independent Chartered Valuation Surveyor as per the Valuation Report
dated 24th April 2013 prepared on the physically verified timber statistics provided by the company on a tree by tree basis. The timber trees were valued as at 31st March 2012
by the same Chartered valuation Surveyor on a tree by tree basis as per the timber statistics provided by the company. The value of trees transferred after three years, from
cost to fair value have been valued on field/block basis by discounting the value of expected timber content of trees at the time of harvest. It is expected that only 60% of the
presently available trees will remain on the field at the time of final harvest.
The entity has valued the Consumable Biological Assets consist of trees over 3 years of age, which have been properly establish in the field at fair value less estimated point-ofsale-costs. The direct cost attributable to new/re-planting pertaining to trees having three years or less have been added to the Consumable Biological Assets.
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In valuing the Consumable Biological Assets, under-mentioned factors have been taken into consideration.
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Timber Trees namely Eucalyptus Torariyana, Albezzia, Graveelia, Eucalyptus Grandis, Astonia, Pinus, Toona, Mahogany, Teak, Jack, Turpentine, Nadun, Mango, Pellen, Hora,
Lunumidella, Mara etc. available on the plantations have been taken into consideration in this valuation of Timber Trees.

3 Annual marginal increase in timber content.

1 The present age of trees
2 Maturity age of the tree.
Maturity of the tree is based on the variety of the species of the tree.
4 Number of years to harvest.
5 Timber content of harvestable trees on maturity.
6 Timber Plants having below three years of age have not been taken into the valuation.
7 The timber content of immature trees at an estimated future harvestable year.
8 The current price of species of timber per cubic foot at the relevant year.
Trees have been valued as per the current timber prices in the domestic market based on the price list of the State Timber Corporation and prices of timber trees sold by estates
and prices of logs and sawn timber in the popular timber traders in Sri Lanka.

In Rs.‘000s
The fair value is determined on the basis of net present value of expected future cash flows using a discount rate of 12% per annum. The significant assumptions used in the
valuation of Consumable Biological Assets are as follows:
a) Future cash flows are determined by references to current timber prices without considering the inflationary effect.
b) The on-going cost of growing trees which are deducted in determining the net cash flows are constant in real terms.
c) Timber Trees that have not come up to a harvestable size are valued working out the period that would take for those trees to grow up to a harvestable size.
d) The Present Value of the Trees is worked out based on the projected size and the estimated number of years it would take to reach that size. This is worked out on the basis
of an annual marginal increase of Timber content which normally ranges from 0.50 to 1.50 cm per year for trees of diameter girth over 10 cm.
e) The value of each matured species of timber is worked out on the price of a cubic foot of timber in the market of the species and the available cubic content of timber in the
tree.
f) Due consideration has been given for cost of felling, transport, sawing, cost to sell including obtaining of approval for felling.
21.2	Gain/(Loss) Arising from Changes in Fair Value Less Cost to Sell
Managed trees include commercial timber plantations cultivated in estates. The cost of immature trees is treated at approximate fair value particularly on the ground of little
biological transformation has taken place and impact of the biological transformation on price is not material. When such Plantations become mature, the additional investments
since taken over to bring them to maturity are transferred from Immature to Mature.
The fair value of managed trees was ascertained since the LKAS 41 is only applicable for managed agricultural activity in terms of the ruling issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Sri Lanka. The valuation was carried by using Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) methods. In ascertaining the fair value of timber a physical verification was carried out
covering all the estates.
The valuations, as presented in the external valuation models based on net present values, take into account the long-term exploitation of the timber plantation. Because of the
inherent uncertainty associated with the valuation at fair value of the biological assets due to the volatility of the variables, their carrying value may differ from their realizable
value. The Board of Directors retains their view that commodity markets are inherently volatile and that long-term price projections are highly unpredictable. Hence, the sensitivity
analysis regarding selling price and discount rate variations as included in this note allows every investor to reasonably challenge the financial impact of the assumptions used in
the LKAS 41 against his own assumptions.
The biological assets of company is cultivated in leased lands. When measuring the fair value of the biological assets it was assumed that these concessions can and will be
renewed at normal circumstances. Timber content expects to be realized in future and is included in the calculation of the fair value that takes into account the age of the timber
plants and not the expiration date of the lease.

		
	As at 31st March 2013
		
Managed Timber

Variance

Variance

-10%
(155,085,357)

+10%
155,085,357

Sensitivity Variation on Discount Rate
Values as appearing in the Statement of Financial Position are very sensitive to changes of the discount rate applied. Simulations made for timber show that a rise or decrease by
1% of the estimated future discount rate has the following effect on the net present value of biological assets:
		
	As at 31st March 2013
		
Managed Timber

Variance

Variance

-1%
91,212,356

+1%
(76,843,732)
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Sensitivity Analysis-Group
Sensitivity Variation on Sales Price
Values as appearing in the Statement of Financial Position are very sensitive to price changes with regard to the average sales prices applied. Simulations made for timber show
that a rise or decrease by 10% of the estimated future selling price has the following effect on the net present value of biological assets:
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21.3

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In Rs.‘000s
22

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY

				Group
Company
Carrying
Carrying
						
Value
Value
		
No. of Shares		 Effective Holding %
Effective Holding % As at 31st Mar 	As at 31st Mar
		
2013
2012
2013
2012
2013
2012
2013
2012
Excel Global Holdings (Pvt) Ltd (EGHL)
53,448,329 53,448,329
100
100
100
100
888,387
Samudra Beach Resorts (Pvt) Ltd (SBRL) 332,127,500 1,000,000
100
100
100
100
331,275
Taprobane Capital (Pvt) Ltd (TCPL)
18,200,002 18,200,002
100
100
100
100
182,000
Ajax Engineers (Pvt) Ltd (AEX)
239,694
239,694
51
51
51
51
100,000
Royal Fernwood Porcelain Ltd (RFPL)
68,557,692 68,557,692
76
76
17
17
71,300
								
1,572,962
23

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
F L C Joint Venture Co. (Pvt) Ltd (Formerly known as Free Lanka Capital (Pvt) Ltd)					
50,000
								
50,000

50,000
50,000

The summarized financial statements of F L C Joint Venture Co. (Pvt) Ltd is as follows:
	Group Share of;							
2013

2012

Non Current Assets							
748,600
Current Assets							
135,332
Total Assets							
883,932
Non Current Liabilities							
Current Liabilities							
(671,646)
Net Assets							
212,286
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For the year ended 31st March							
Group Share of;
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888,387
10,000
182,000
100,000
71,300
1,251,687

2013

Revenue							
149,520
Other Income							
100
Expenses							
(1,189)
Profit before Taxation							
148,431
Taxation							
(28)
Profit after Taxation							
148,403

748,600
748,600
(664,716)
83,884
2012
(1,481)
(1,481)
(1,481)

In Rs.‘000s
24

INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEES

			Group
Company
	Group
No. of Shares	Effective Holding %	Effective Holding %
		
2013
2012
2013
2012
2013
2012

Carrying
Value
2013

Carrying
Value
2012

Carrying
Value
2011

Melfort Green Teas (Pvt) Ltd (MGTPL)
650,000
650,000
12.68
12.68
5,293
4,109
3,493
LOLC Leisure Ltd (LOLCLL)
404,749,800 404,749,800
30
30
30
30 1,146,580 1,322,285 920,309
Taprobane Plantation Ltd (TPL)
22,500
22,500
45
45
45
45
2,228
5,094
Rain Forest Eco Lodge (Pvt) Ltd (RFELPL)
6,399,375
6,399,375
5.46
15,240
Virginia International Investments Ltd (VIIL)
800,000
800,000
40
40
40
40
4,000
4,000
Taprobane Capital (Pvt) Ltd (TCPL)							
- 130,798
								
1,158,101 1,350,728 1,054,600

TCPL*

MGTPL

LOLCLL

TPL

RFELL

Equity Value of Investment as at 1st April 2011		 130,802
Investment made during the year		
23,802
Share of Profit/(Loss) of Associate Company Net of Tax		 (80,204)
Share of Other Comprehensive Income of
		
equity accounted investments		Dividend Received		Other Equity Movements		Transferred to Investment in Subsidiary at Fair Value		 (74,400)
Equity Value of Investment as at 31st March 2012		
-

3,493
410
206

920,308
337,291
(25,206)

23
5,071

17,470
(932)

- 1,054,603
4,000 382,996
- (101,065)

94,548
(4,656)
4,109 1,322,285

5,094

1,298
15,240

94,548
(3,358)
(74,400)
4,000 1,350,728

4,109 1,322,285
301
883 (241,653)
55,128
11,475
(655)
5,293 1,146,580

5,094
(1,866)
(1,000)
2,228

15,240
(546)
(14,694)
-

4,000 1,350,728
301
- (243,182)
55,128
11,475
(1,655)
(14,694)
4,000 1,158,101

Equity Value of Investment as at 1st April 2012		
Investment made during the year		
Share of Profit/(Loss) of Associate Company after Tax		
Share of Other Comprehensive Income of equity accounted investments		
Adjustment over effective holding		
Dividend Received		
Transfer to long term Investments at Fair Value		
Equity Value of Investment as at 31st March 2013		
*TCPL become a subsidiary of Browns Investments PLC during the year 2012.

-

VIIL

Total
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Group Share of Net Assets of Equity Accounted Investees		

848,774
48,400
897,174
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Investments in Equity Accounted Investees
Company
LOLC Leisure Ltd (LOLCLL)
404,749,800 404,749,800
30
30
30
30 1,186,065 1,186,065
Taprobane Plantation Ltd (TPL)
22,500
22,500
45
45
45
45
23
23
Virginia International Investments Ltd (VIIL)
800,000
800,000
40
40
40
40
4,000
4,000
Taprobane Capital (Pvt) Ltd							
								
1,190,088 1,190,088

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In Rs.‘000s
24

INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEES (Contd…)
Summarized Financial Information of Equity Accounted Investees

		
Revenue
Cost of Sales
Gross Profit
Other Income
Expenses
Profit/(Loss) before Taxation
Income Tax Expenses
Profit/(Loss) after Taxation

For the year ended 31st March 2013
MGTPL

LOLCLL

40,648
(28,779)
11,869
964
(5,663)
7,170
(901)
6,269

902,674
(109,294)
793,380
61,163
(1,914,137)
(1,059,594)
(44,633)
(1,104,227)

TPL

RFELL

VIIL

112,867
593
(80,193)
(340)
32,674
253
- 		
(36,630)
(2,988)
(3,956)
(2,735)
(504)
(4,460)
(2,735)

-

Summarized Financial Information of Equity Accounted InvesteesFor the year ended 31st March 2012
		
Revenue
Cost of Sales
Gross Profit
Other Income
Expenses
Profit/(Loss) before Taxation
Income Tax Expenses
Profit/(Loss) after Taxation

MGTPL

LOLCLL

TPL

RFELL

VIIL

31,931
(24,624)
7,307
905
(4,659)
3,553
(314)
3,239

686,668
(73,677)
612,991
372,142
(1,283,306)
(298,173)
24,331
(273,842)

78,894
(43,406)
35,488
72
(22,093)
13,467
(3,778)
9,689

213
(147)
66
1,017
(9,193)
(8,110)
(126)
(8,236)

-

MGTPL

LOLCLL

TPL

RFELL

VIIL

15,676
1,209
16,885
(600)
(4,884)
11,401

5,851,582
444,855
6,296,437
(250,879)
(592,329)
5,453,229

531
28,053
28,584
(24,013)
4,571

11,046
96,704
107,750
(22,794)
(11,484)
73,472

10,000
10,000
10,000

MGTPL

LOLCLL

TPL

RFELL

VIIL**

9,236
2,741
11,977
(249)
(2,877)
8,851

6,086,998
1,762,559
7,849,557
(1,379,781)
(496,720)
5,973,056

303
20,559
20,862
(11,335)
9,527

12320
93,107
105,427
(22,308)
(6,919)
76,200

10,000
10,000
10,000

	As at 31st March 2013
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Non Current Assets
Current Assets
Total Assets
Non Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Net Assets
	As at 31st March 2012
		
Non Current Assets
Current Assets
Total Assets
Non Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Net Assets

During the period under review LOLC Leisure Limited (Equity accounted investee of the Browns Investments PLC) negatively contributed Rs.242Mn to the Group due the buildings
under redevelopment in Palm Garden Hotel PLC that were subject to accelerated depreciation over three years, third year being 2013/14, was fully depreciated in the current
year due to change in estimate as a result of the revised development and the LOLC Leisure Group recognized a loss of Rs.970Mn consequently.
** Virginia International Investments Ltd (VIIL) has not commenced commercial operation during the year under review.

In Rs.‘000s
25

LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

407,267
539,314
946,581

354,612
566,228
920,840

343,904
644,035
987,939

406,267
528,121
934,388

354,612
557,220
911,832

			2013
			Nos

No of Shares
2012
Nos

2011
Nos

2013

Value
2012

2011

	Group
25.1 Quoted investments
Sierra Cables PLC		32,210,943
32,202,953
29,816,800
70,864
Commercial Leasing & Finance PLC		 40,000,000
40,000,000
200,000
Taprobane Holdings PLC		 16,766,667
16,766,667
73,756
Agstar Fertilizer PLC				
1,825,000
						344,620

106,667
200,000
100,600
407,267

201,494
153,118
354,612

	Group
25.2 Un-Quoted investments
Sierra Constructions (Pvt) Ltd		 12,490,253
12,490,253
12,490,253
335,605
Sierra Holdings (Pvt) Ltd		
4,519,892
4,519,892
4,519,892
308,430
Rain Forest Eco Lodge (Pvt) Ltd		
14,694
						658,729

299,938
228,183
11,193
539,314

337,377
219,843
9,008
566,228

Company
Quoted investments
Sierra Cables PLC		32,210,943
32,202,953
29,816,800
70,864
Commercial Leasing & Finance PLC		 40,000,000
40,000,000
200,000
Taprobane Holdings PLC		 16,600,000
16,600,000
73,040
Agstar Fertilizer PLC		
1,825,000
						343,904

106,667
200,000
99,600
406,267

201,494
153,118
354,612

Company
Un-Quoted investments
Sierra Constructions (Pvt) Ltd		 12,490,253
12,490,253
12,490,253
335,605
Sierra Holdings (Pvt) Ltd		
4,519,892
4,519,892
4,519,892
308,430
						644,035

299,938
228,183
528,121

337,377
219,843
557,220

25.3

25.4
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Quoted investments Note 25.1 & 25.3		344,620
Un-Quoted investments Note 25.2 & 25.4		658,729
			
1,003,349
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	Group
Company
			As At	As At	As At	As At	As At	As At
			 31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011 31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011
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In Rs.‘000s
	Group
Company
			As At	As At	As At	As At	As At	As At
			 31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011 31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011
26

INVENTORIES
Raw Material 		
127,306
98,783
Work-in-Progress		
35,578
22,517
Finished Goods		
109,071
22,791
Input Material		
15,392
21,542
Harvested Crop							-Tea		
139,281
106,247
122,791
-Rubber		
12,299
14,145
26,188
-Coconut		
100
115
555
-Others		
677
Spares and Consumables		
15,538
71,165
7,608
Certified Emission Reduction		
529
6,116
11,216
Goods in Transit		
6,107
			
461,878
341,879
189,900
Less: Provision for Slow Moving Stocks		
(6,913)
(17,690)
			
454,965
324,189
189,900
27

TRADE & OTHER RECEIVABLES
Trade Debtors		
Provision for doubtful debts		
			
Other Receivables
27.1
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27.1

Other Receivables
Withholding Tax Recoverable		
Economic Service Charge Recoverable 		
Other Debtors		
Interest Receivable		
Dividend Receivable		
Advance and Prepayments		
Refundable Deposits		
			

133,742
(7,087)
126,655
379,968
506,623

143,437
(3,350)
140,087
209,127
349,214

55,000
55,000
157,093
212,093

23,428
23,428

81,753
81,753

96,310
96,310

7,140
6,916
33,458
21,446
309,758
1,250
379,968

12,992
6,285
49,167
8,825
130,608
1,250
209,127

1,706
39,181
116,206
157,093

1,982
21,446
23,428

10,989
1,274
8,825
60,665
81,753

1,223
230
94,857
96,310

	Group
Company
			As At	As At	As At	As At	As At	As At
			 31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011 31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011
28

LOANS TO RELATED PARTIES
Brown & Company PLC		
Royal Fernwood Porcelain Ltd 		
Lexinton Holding Ltd		
Taprobane Capital (Pvt) Ltd		
Millennium Development (Pvt) Ltd		
Browns Group Industries (Pvt) Ltd		
S.F.L. Services (Pvt) Ltd
(formerly known as Standard Finance (Pvt) Ltd)		
			

245,779
80,683
61,514

45,467
545,566
-

507,219
10,243
100,329
-

245,779
9,646
80,683
79,851
378
61,514

45,467
545,566
67,493
15,830
-

507,219
10,243
100,329
-

57,286
445,262

591,033

617,791

57,286
535,137

674,356

617,791

In Rs.‘000s
	Group
Company
			As At	As At	As At	As At	As At	As At
			 31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011 31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011

Short Term Investments
Investments in Equity Securities Note 30.1		
1,343,907
Fixed Deposits		
46,747
Savings Deposits 		
134,651
Investments in REPOs 		
12,943
Other Investments Note 30.2		
100,953
			1,639,201

1,346,418
47,167
140,685
18,527
756,953
2,309,750

954,798
1,002,102
1,070,389
13,650
1,035,716
4,076,655

1,326,679
9,117
30,463
1,366,259

1,322,257
1,030
688,703
2,011,990

954,798
1,002,102
1,010,025
1,035,716
4,002,641
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29	AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES
Amounts due from Subsidiaries
Samudra Beach Resorts (Pvt) Ltd		
695,349
35
Amounts due from Holding Company							
Brown & Company PLC		Amounts due from other related Companies							
Ceylon Ayurvedic Teas (Pvt) Ltd		
221
2,668
1,601
Free Lanka Trading Company (Pvt) Ltd		
7
2
42
Melfort Green Teas (Pvt) Ltd		
17
178
2,144
Taprobane Plantations Ltd			
914
FLMC Sudima Timber Products (Pvt) Ltd		
143
69
F L C Estate Bungalows (Pvt) Ltd
(Formerly Known as Free Lanka Estate Bungalows (Pvt) Ltd)		
23
4
Sierra Constructions (Pvt) Ltd			
52
Rain forest Eco lodge		
65 			
F L C Joint Venture Co. (Pvt) Ltd
(Formerly Known as Free Lanka Capital (Pvt) Ltd)		
183,437
190,895
194,016
373,800
380,726
380,727
F L C Holdings PLC (Formerly known as
Free Lanka Capital Holdings PLC)   		
90
Millennium Development (Pvt) Ltd		
2,112
2,112
Excel Global Holdings (Pvt) Ltd		
147
147
LOLC Leisure Ltd		
41,126
45,934
41,126
45,934
Perpetual Holdings (Pvt) Ltd		
162
Royal Fernwood Porcelain Ltd		
1,993
9,500
			
225,129
240,716
197,965
1,114,527
438,454
380,727

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In Rs.‘000s
	As At 31st Mar 2013	As At 31st Mar 2013 2012
01st Apr 2011
				
Market			
Market		
Market
		
No.of
Cost of
Value of
No.of
Cost of
Value of
Cost of
Value of
		
Shares
Investment
Investment
Shares
Investment
Investment
Investment
Investment
Investments in Equity Securities
Quoted Investments -Group
Agstar Fertilizer PLC
40,520,061
288,061
235,865 40,250,000
285,884
Ceylinco Insurance PLC				
1,000
554
Commercial Bank Of Ceylon PLC
9,528
953
1,077
160,450
16,225
CT Land Development PLC
19,500
195
469
19,500
195
Dialog Axiata PLC
45,008,515
522,033
409,577 44,991,400
521,864
Distilleries Company of Sri Lanka PLC
16,013
2,029
F L C Holdings PLC (formerly known as
Free Lanka Capital Holdings PLC)
43,978,213
43,978
114,343 43,978,213
43,978
Hayleys PLC
293,105
119,984
86,466
293,300
119,984
Hemas Holding PLC
843,100
36,283
22,764
843,100
36,283
F L C Hydro Power PLC (formerly known
as Hydro Power Free Lanka PLC)
38,200
567
218
1,027,934
15,283
Lanka Orix Finance Ltd
28,300
123
Nations Trust Bank PLC
116,100
10,273
7,082
116,100
10,273
Richard Peiris PLC
1,600,400
23,864
10,563
1,600,400
23,864
Seylan Bank PLC - Non Voting
12,131,541
409,008
425,876 10,363,800
357,244
Textured Jersey Lanka PLC
1,399,700
23,851
13,857
1,744,700
26,301
The Finance Company PLC
1,250,000
50,000
15,750
1,250,000
50,000
Parquet (Ceylon) PLC
72,800
2,367
Janashakthi Insurance PLC
The Lanka Hospital Corporation PLC
- 		
Vallibel One PLC
			1,529,077
1,343,907		1,512,451
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30.1

418,350
845
16,045
472
319,438
2,322

554
38,478
521,864
12,017

730
40,015
476,900
11,808

83,559
105,624
22,174

43,978
32,343

219,890
31,841

7,347
127
6,618
12,003
300,515
12,387
37,500
1,092
1,346,418

10,273
28,280
66,627
50,000
10,078
15
13,075
827,582

8,905
26,233
68,531
46,500
10,356
14
13,075
954,798

Quoted Investments -Company
							
Agstar Fertilizer PLC
39,270,061
275,311
223,839 39,000,000
273,134
405,600
Ceylinco Insurance PLC
1,000
554
845
554
730
Commercial Bank Of Ceylon PLC
9,528
953
1,077
160,450
16,225
16,045
38,478
40,015
Dialog Axiata PLC
45,008,515
522,033
409,577 44,991,400
521,864
319,438
521,864
476,900
Distilleries Company of Sri Lanka PLC
16,013
2,029
2,322
12,017
11,808
F L C Holdings PLC (formerly known as
Free Lanka Capital Holdings PLC)
43,978,213
43,978
114,343 43,978,213
43,978
83,559
43,978
219,890
Hayleys PLC
293,105
119,984
86,466
293,300
119,984
105,624
Hemas Holding PLC
843,100
36,283
22,764
843,100
36,283
22,174
32,343
31,841
F L C Hydro Power PLC (formerly known
as Hydro Power Free Lanka PLC)
38,200
567
218
38,200
567
275
Lanka Orix Finance PLC
28,300
123
127
Nations Trust Bank PLC
116,100
10,273
7,082
116,100
10,273
6,618
10,273
8,905
Richard Peiris PLC
1,600,400
23,864
10,563
1,600,400
23,864
12,003
28,280
26,233
Seylan Bank PLC - Non Voting
11,998,208
404,155
421,143 10,230,467
352,391
296,648
66,627
68,531
Textured Jersey Lanka PLC
1,399,700
23,851
13,857
1,744,700
23,851
12,387
50,000
46,500
The Finance Company PLC
1,250,000
50,000
15,750
1,250,000
50,000
37,500
Parquet (Ceylon) PLC
72,800
2,367
1,092
Janashakthi Insurance PLC
10,078
10,356
The Lanka Hospital Corporation PLC
15
14
Vallibel One PLC
13,075
13,075
			1,510,299
1,326,679		1,477,487
1,322,257
827,582
954,798

In Rs.‘000s
	Group
Company
		As At	As At	As At	As At	As At	As At
		
31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011 31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011
30.2

Other Investments
Investment in Commercial Papers
Investment in Unit Trust
		
31

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash in Hand
Cash in Transit
Cash at Banks
		
Bank Overdrafts
		
32

30,463
70,490
100,953

688,703
68,250
756,953

1,455
1,906
265,089
268,450
138,192
130,258

5,087
2,334
390,373
397,794
82,030
315,764

940,857
94,869
1,035,726

30,463
30,463

688,703
688,703

940,857
94,869
1,035,726

1,870
2
1,120		
534,095
2,894
537,085
2,896
24,554
26,669
512,531
(23,773)

188
38,172
38,360
38,360

3,734
3,734
3,734

Stated Capital
Movement in Number of Ordinary Shares
Opening balance as at 1st April
1,860,000
1,810,000
98,000
1,860,000
1,810,000
98,000
Share Split			
882,000			
882,000
Issue of Shares during the Year
50,000
830,000
50,000
830,000
Closing balance as at 31st March
1,860,000
1,860,000
1,810,000
1,860,000
1,860,000
1,810,000
Value of Shares
Opening balance as at 1st April
Issue of Shares during the Year
Closing balance as at 31st March

5,380,000
5,380,000

5,130,000
250,000
5,380,000

980,000
4,150,000
5,130,000

5,380,000
5,380,000

5,130,000
250,000
5,380,000

980,000
4,150,000
5,130,000

The Shares of Browns Investments PLC are quoted in the Colombo Stock Exchange under Divi Savi Board.

33

Capital Reserves
Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment
Assets Available for Sale Reserve
		

525,906
(349,842)
176,064

317,275
(219,369)
97,906

23,721
(144,954)
(121,233)

136,900
(349,680)
(212,780)

(219,265)
(219,265)

(144,954)
(144,954)

Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment
Company
Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment represents surplus on revaluation of Lands of Browns Investments PLC.
Group
Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment represents in additions to Company the group share of the surplus on revaluation of Land, Freehold Building, Electrical Equipment
and Penstock Pipe Lines owned by Hydro Power Free Lanka (Pvt) Ltd., a Sub-subsidiary of the Joint Venture of the Company and the fully owned subsidiaries of Ajax Engineers
(Pvt) Ltd and Royal Fernwood Porcelain Ltd.
Assets Available for Sale Reserve
Group/Company
Certain Quoted and Non quoted investments are classified as Assets Available for sale and Fair value in accordance with LKAS 39. Respective gain or loss recognized to Assets
available for sale reserve.
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	Group
Company
		As At	As At	As At	As At	As At	As At
		
31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011 31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011
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The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
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In Rs.‘000s
	Group
Company
		As At	As At	As At	As At	As At	As At
		
31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011 31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011
34

Interest Bearing Borrowings
Amount Payable after One Year
Amount Payable within One Year
		
34.1

Opening balance as at 1st April
Acquisition on Subsidiary
Amount Reclassified as Loan from Related Parties
Disposal of Joint Venture
Loans Obtained during the Year
Repayments during the Year
Closing balance as at 31st March

34.2

Lender-wise Summary
Bank of Ceylon
National Development Bank PLC
Lanka Orix Leasing Co. PLC
Sampath Bank PLC
Seylan Bank PLC
Lanka Orix Finance Co. Ltd
Commercial Bank PLC
DFCC Bank Ltd
People Leasing Finance Ltd
Hatton National Bank PLC
		
Finance Lease Obligation
Net Liability to Lessor of JEDB/SLSPC Estate
Other Finance Leases
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35

35.1

1,185,304
311,788
1,497,092

611,248
534,565
1,145,813

164,500
44,302
208,802

771,000
175,000
946,000

128,000
384,000
512,000

-

1,145,813
587,900
(236,622)
1,497,091

208,802
294,706
716,186
(73,881)
1,145,813

527,897
(66,203)
(239,665)
31,395
(44,622)
208,802

512,000
587,900
(153,900)
946,000

512,000
512,000

-

411,593
2,090
101,780
568,333
43,888
17,076
36,925
10,370
962
304,074
1,497,091

18,298
5,254
106,658
540,372
66,077
22,775
40,950
19,259
1,786
324,384
1,145,813

25,002
8,419
51,467
34,408
48,556
40,950
208,802

400,000
546,000
946,000

512,000
512,000

-

81,961
3,091
85,052

83,205
7,912
91,117

84,400
10,168
94,568

-

-

-

Amount Payable after One Year
144,213
150,827
158,661
Interest In Suspense
(62,166)
(65,768)
(69,937)
		
82,047
85,059
88,724
							
35.2 Amount Payable within One Year
6,618
10,515
10,735
Interest In Suspense
(3,613)
(4,457)
(4,891)
		
3,005
6,058
5,844
							
35.3 Opening balance as at 1st April
161,343
169,397
328,730
New Leases Obtained during the Year
2,256
2,881
Disposal of Joint Venture
(151,581)
On Acquisition of Subsidiary
934
Repayments during the Year
(10,512)
(11,244)
(12,971)
Closing balance as at 31st March
150,831
161,343
167,059
Interest in Suspense
(65,779)
(70,226)
(72,491)
		
85,052
91,117
94,568
-

In Rs.‘000s
	Group
Company
		As At	As At	As At	As At	As At	As At
		
31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011 31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011
36

Retirement Benefit Obligations
Balance as at 1st April
403,935
377,781
589,694
On acquisition of Subsidiary		
27,054 		
Transfer Out/Net impact of Actuarial Valuations				
Provision made during the Year
65,658
39,121
84,300
Payments Made during the Year
(52,163)
(40,021)
(28,492)
Adjustment on Disposal of Joint Venture			
(267,721)
Balance as at 31st March
417,430
403,935
377,781

-

-

-

This Liability is not externally funded.
The gratuity liability of the F L C Holdings PLC (formerly known as Free Lanka Capital Holdings PLC), a Joint Venture of the Company as at 31st March, 2013 is based on
the Actuarial Valuation carried out by Actuarial & Management Consultants (Pvt) Ltd, a firm of professional actuaries. As per the Actuarial Valuation, the provision in respect
of gratuity liabilities of the existing employees of the group as at 31st March, 2013 is Rs.1,262,128,382/- and the total gratuity provision including the gratuity payable of
Rs.145,788,000/- as at 31st March, 2013 is Rs.1,407,916,382/-. If the company had provided for gratuity on the basis of fourteen days wages and half work salary for each
completed year of service in line with the payment of Gratuities Act No.12 of 1983, the liability would have been Rs.1,483,752,924/-. Hence, there is a contingent liability of
Rs.171,023,664/-, which would crystallize only if the company ceases to be a going concern.
The Principal assumptions used by the Group
The Principal assumptions used by the Group in determining the cost of employees benefits using Actuarial Valuations are disclosed in Note 3.4.2.
Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages)
Discount rate				
Future salary increases		
For staff		
			 For Workers		
Retirement Age				

10.50%
7.50%
15.00%
60 Yrs

Per annum
Per annum
Per annum

The Gratuity Liability of Employees of F L C Hydro Power PLC (formerly known as Hydro Power Free Lanka PLC)

	Group
Company
		As At	As At	As At	As At	As At	As At
		
31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011 31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011
37

37.1

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Balance as at 1st April
281,713
Charge for the Year/(Release to Income Statement)
7,383
Liability in respect of Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment 5,988
Balance as at 31st March
295,084

Unutilised Tax Losses
Retirement Benefit Obligations
Property, Plant & Equipment
Bearer Biological Assets
Consumer Biological Assets
		

(91,187)
(57,527)
72,811
214,220
156,767
295,084

258,658
35,278
(12,223)
281,713

6,982
251,676
258,658

-

-

-

(80,260)
(54,865)
67,052
198,301
151,485
281,713

(69,366)
(54,843)
167,733
52,134
163,000
258,658

-

-

-
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Rate of Interest				
10.50%		
Rate of Salary Increment				
12.00%		
Retirement Age				
55 years		
Staff Turnover Factor				
5.00%		
The Company would continue as a going concern
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The key assumptions used for the calculation are as follows
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In Rs.‘000s
	Group
Company
		As At	As At	As At	As At	As At	As At
		
31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011 31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011
38

Deferred Income
Capital Grants Note 38.1
PHDT Lease Rentals Note 38,2
Rain Forest Eco Lodge (Pvt) Ltd Note 38.3
		
38.1

Capital Grants
Total Capital Grants Received
Balance as at 1st April
On Acquisition of Subsidiary
Total Grants Received during the Year
Balance as at 31st March

Total Amortization
Balance as at 1st April
Amount Amortized during the Year
Balance as at 31st March
		

124,282
1,810
16,372
142,464

128,739
1,956
16,880
147,575

131,589
2,103
133,692

-

-

-

172,950
398
173,348

171,187
827
936
172,950

163,145
8,043
171,188

-

-

-

44,211
4,855
49,066
124,282

39,599
4,612
44,211
128,739

34,144
5,455
39,599
131,589

-

-

-

38.2

PHDT Lease Rentals
Balance as at 01st April
1,956
2,103
2,250
Amount Amortized during the Year
(146)
(147)
(147)
Balance as at 31st March
1,810
1,956
2,103
							
Premises at St.Andrew’s Drive in Nuwara Eliya has been leased out to Plantation Human Development Trust (PHDT) for a period of 20 years commencing from August 2005 at a
total lease rental of Rs.10,734,696/=.
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Lease Rentals received are deferred and amortized over the lease period commencing from August 2005.
	Group
Company
		As At	As At	As At	As At	As At	As At
		
31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011 31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011
38.3

Rain Forest Eco Lodge (Pvt) Ltd (RFELL)
Balance as at 01st April
Value of Ordinary Shares received
Amount Amortized during the Year
		

16,880
(508)
16,372

17,470
(590)
16,880

-

-

-

-

This represents the value of 6,399,375 nos. of Ordinary Shares received by Maturata Plantations Ltd equivalent to 20% of the issued Ordinary Shares of RFELL at Rs.10/- each
in lieu of releasing the leasehold rights of 488. Hectares in Enselwatte Estate, Deniyaya for Eco Tourism Project. The value of Ordinary Shares are deferred and amortized over the
unexpired balance lease period. (32 Yrs)

In Rs.‘000s
	Group
Company
		As At	As At	As At	As At	As At	As At
		
31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011 31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011
38.4

Maturity Analysis
PHDT Lease Rentals
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not latter than five years
Later than five years
		

147
587
1,076
1,810

147
587
1,222
1,956

147
587
1,369
2,103

-

-

Rain Forest Eco Lodge (Pvt) Ltd
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not latter than five years
Later than five years
		

508
2,032
13,832
16,372

508
2,032
14,340
16,880

-

-

-

Loans from Related Parties
Brown & Co, PLC
		
40

Trade and Other Payables
Trade Payables
VAT Payable
Accrued Charges
Employees’ Profit Share
Payable on Share Acquisition
Other payables
Dividend Payable
Excess Funds Received in respect of Initial Public Offer (IPO)
Refundable to Subscribers
		
41

50,000
50,000

-

-

-

-

-

212,405
13,589
50,119
233,764
15,703

201,821
11,471
30,392
16,638
20,531
140,917
13,359

121,572
3,182
38,600
16,268
3,180
90,462
-

494
1,122
212
-

17,351
22,664
-

24,859
20,000
-

525,580

153
435,282

28,010
301,274

24
1,852

153
40,168

44,859

Loans From Related Parties
S.F.L. Services (Pvt) Ltd
(formerly known as Standard Finance (Pvt) Ltd.)
50,000
597,401
629,655
541,401
629,655
Ishara Traders (Pvt) Ltd
61,425
Brown & Company PLC
79,978
79,979
		
50,000
597,401
771,058
541,401
709,634
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	Group
Company
		As At	As At	As At	As At	As At	As At
		
31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011 31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011
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In Rs.‘000s
	Group
Company
		As At	As At	As At	As At	As At	As At
		
31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011 31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011
42	Amounts Due To Related Parties
	Amounts Due To Holding Company
Brown & Company PLC
	Amounts Due To Other Related Companies
Free Lanka Trading Company (Pvt) Ltd
Cricket Club Café
Perpetual Holdings Co. Ltd
Samudra Beach Resorts (Pvt) Ltd
F L C Estate Bungalows (Pvt) Ltd
(formerly known as Free Lanka Estates Bungalows (Pvt) Ltd)
Taprobane Planations Ltd
F L C Joint Venture Co.(Pvt) Ltd
(formerly known as Free Lanka Capital (Pvt) Ltd.)
S.F.L. Services (Pvt) Ltd (formerly known as Standard Finance (Pvt) Ltd.)
Sierra Civil Engineering (Pvt) Ltd
ARRC Capital Ltd
Sifang Lanka (Pvt) Ltd
BG Air Services (Pvt) Ltd
Royal Fernwood Porcelain Ltd
Commercial Leasing Co. PLC
F L C Holdings PLC (formerly known as Free Lanka Capital Holding PLC)
Taprobane Securities (Pvt) Ltd
Taprobane Holdings PLC
		

61,409

44,028

5,691

24,246

16,511

5,691

2
161,900
-

630
2
165,363
-

545
2
161,742
-

-

10,000

-

464
17,916

500
7,198

-

-

-

-

25,416
500
273
350
26
755
11,794
280,805

25,975
500
327
350
2,793
247,666

25,907
45,046
2
4,500
243,435

50,000
500
26
74,772

50,000
500
77,011

50,000
45,046
577
3
4,500
105,817
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43

Income Tax Payable
Balance as at 1st April
66,868
15,914
9329
48,808
1,645
Add : Current Income Tax Expense
38,482
63,821
32,366
48,808
SRL
137
On Acquisition of Subsidiary
10,402
Withholding Tax on Dividend from Associates/Subsidiaries
2,920
3,390
Income Tax (Over)/Under Provision
288
10,865
		
105,332
104,391
41,832
48,808
50,453
Less : Adjustment on Disposal of Joint Venture						
Payments made during the Period						
- Self Assessment Tax Paid
(38,300)
(29,639)
(7,444)
(6,070)
(1,645)
- ESC Set Off
(1,259)
(3,140)
(9,557)
- Withholding Tax Set Off
(18,467)
(4,742)
(2,462)
(10,989)
- Balance Tax Payment
(2)
(6,455)
(6,569)
Balance as at 31st March
47,306
66,868
15,914
25,180
48,808
44

1,645
1,645
1,645

Net Assets per Ordinary Share
Computation of the Net Assets per Ordinary Share has been done based on the total equity attributable to Equity Holders of the Company divided by the number of ordinary
shares in issue as at the Balance Sheet date and calculated as follows.

	Group
Company
		As At	As At	As At	As At	As At	As At
		
31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011 31st Mar 2013 31st Mar 2012 01st Apr 2011
	Amounts used as the Numerator
Total equity attributable to Equity Holders of the Company
	Amount used as the Denominator
Number of Ordinary Shares in issue as at the Balance Sheet date
Net Assets per Ordinary Share (Rs.)

10,653,731

10,610,589

7,888,071

6,510,769

6,129,273

6,456,751

1,860,000
5.73

1,860,000
5.70

1,810,000
4.36

1,860,000
3.50

1,860,000
3.30

1,810,000
3.57

BIPLC

✓

✓

✓
✓

LOLCPLC

Appointed w.e.f.1st March 2013
Resigned on 28th February 2013
Resigned on 1st October 2012
Alternate Director

✓*
✓**
✓
✓
✓
✓***
✓
✓
✓
✓
✓
✓

EGHL

BCPLC

✓
✓
✓
✓

✓

✓

✓
✓**
✓
✓

✓

✓
✓
✓

AEPL
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*
**
***
+

Mr. I.C. Nanayakkara
Mrs. R.L. Nanayakkara
Mr. N.M. Prakash
Mr. R.P. Sugathadasa
Mr. D.S.K. Amarasekera
Mr. N. Fernando
Mr. Stefan Furkhan
Mr. A.G. Weerasinghe
Mr. P.R. Saldin
Mrs. K.U. Amarasinghe
Mr. S.V. Somasunderam
Mr. W.D.K. Jayawardena
Mr. A.L. Devasurendra

Name of the Director

TCPL
✓

✓
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✓

✓

✓

SBRPL
✓
✓
✓
✓

FLCHPLC
✓

✓

✓

FLPCPL
✓

MDPL
✓

✓

✓

RFPL
✓

✓

✓

FLCPL
✓

✓

✓

FLMCL
✓

✓

MPL

45
Related Party Disclosures
45.1 The Directors of Browns Investments PLC are also the Directors of the following related Companies as at 31st March 2013.
			

FLCPHL
✓

DPL
✓

EPL
✓

VIIL
✓

✓

FLCHPPLC
✓

✓

HHPL
✓

THPL
✓

SHPL
✓

TTLRHL
✓

✓

TPL
✓

✓

AFPLC
✓
✓

✓

✓

✓

✓+
✓
✓

SLPL
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45

Related Party Disclosures (Contd...)

Name of the Company	Abbreviations

Nature of the Relationship

Lanka Orix Leasing Co. PLC
Brown & Company PLC
F L C Joint Venture Co. (Pvt) Ltd
(formerly known as Free Lanka Capital (Pvt) Ltd.)
F L C Holdings PLC
(formerly known as Free Lanka Capital Holdings PLC)
Free Lanka Plantations Co. (Pvt) Ltd
Free Lanka Management Co. (Pvt) Ltd
Maturata Plantations Ltd
Pussellawa Plantations Ltd
F L C Power Holdings (Pvt) Ltd
(formerly known as Free Lanka Power Holdings (Pvt) Ltd.)
Dolekanda Power (Pvt) Ltd
(formerly known as Free Lanka Power 2 Co. (Pvt) Ltd.)
Enselwatte Power (Pvt) Ltd
(formerly known as Free Lanka Power 3 Co. (Pvt) Ltd.)
F L C Properties (Pvt) Ltd
(formerly known as Free Lanka Capital Properties (Pvt) Ltd.)
F L C Hydro Power PLC
(formerly known as Hydro Power Free Lanka PLC)
Halgranoya Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd
(formerly known as Free Lanka Power 1 (Pvt) Ltd.)
Thebuwana Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd
(formerly known as Hydro Power Free Lanka 2 (Pvt) Ltd.)
Stellenberg Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd
(formerly known as Hydro Power Free Lanka 3 (Pvt) Ltd.)
The Tea Leaf Resort Holdings (Pvt) Ltd
Melfort Green Teas (Pvt) Ltd
Perpetual Holdings (Pvt) Ltd
Free Lanka Trading Co. (Pvt) Ltd
Ceylon Estate Teas (Pvt) Ltd
Agstar Fertilizers PLC
Rain Forest Eco Lodge (Pvt) Ltd
Ishara Traders (Pvt) Ltd
Sifang Lanka (Pvt) Ltd
Millennium Developments (Pvt) Ltd
Excel Global Holdings (Pvt) Ltd
Excel Restaurants (Pvt) Ltd
Ajax Engineers (Pvt) Ltd
Taprobane Capital (Pvt) Ltd
Taprobane Plantations Ltd
Royal Fernwood Porcelain Ltd
Samudra Beach Resorts (Pvt) Ltd

LOLC
BCPLC
FLCJVL

Ultimate Parent Company
Immediate Parent Company
Joint Venture

FLCHPLC

Joint Venture’s Sub-subsidiary

FLPCL
FLMCL
MPL
PPL
FLCPHL

Joint Venture’s Sub-subsidiary
Joint Venture’s Sub-subsidiary
Joint Venture’s Sub-subsidiary
Joint Venture’s Sub-subsidiary
Joint Venture’s Sub-subsidiary

DPL

Joint Venture’s Sub-subsidiary

EPL

Joint Venture’s Sub-subsidiary

FLCPL

Joint Venture’s Sub-subsidiary

FLCHPPLC

Joint Venture’s Sub-subsidiary

HHPL

Joint Venture’s Sub-subsidiary

THPL

Joint Venture’s Sub-subsidiary

SHPL

Joint Venture’s Sub-subsidiary

TTLRHL
MGTL
PHL
FLTC
CETL
AFPLC
RFELL
ITL
SLL
MDL
EGHL
ERL
AEL
TCL
TPL
RFPL
SBRPL

Joint Venture’s Sub-subsidiary
Associate
Other Affiliate
Other Affiliate
Other Affiliate
Other Affiliate
Other Affiliate
Other Affiliate
Other Affiliate
Sub-subsidiary
Subsidiary
Sub-subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Associate
Sub-subsidiary
Subsidiary

45.2

Substantial Shareholding and Immediate and Ultimate Parent Company
The company’s parent company is Brown & Company PLC which holds 38.55 % of the issued Ordinary Shares of the Company as at the Balance Sheet date and ultimate parent
Company is Lanka Orix Leasing Company PLC.

45.3

Key Management Personnel Information
According to LKAS 24, “ Related Party Disclosures”, Key management personnel are those having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling activities of
the entity. Accordingly, the Board of Directors (including Executive and Non-Executive Directors) has been classified as Key Management Personnel of the Company.

45.4

Related Party Transactions
The Company carries out transactions in the ordinary course of its business with parties who are defined as related parties in LKAS 24, “Related Party Disclosures”, the details of
which are reported below.
The pricing applicable to related party transactions is based on the assessment of risk and pricing model of the company and is comparable with that is applicable to transactions
between the company and its unrelated customers. Loans and borrowings between related parties have been at prevailing commercial rates and were made on terms equivalent
to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.

45.4.1 Transactions with Companies in which Directors of the Company hold Other Directorships
The Company has carried out transactions with entities where the Chairman/Chairperson or a Director of the Company is the Chairman/Chairperson or a Director of such entities
as detailed below.
45.4.1.1 Transactions with Immediate Parent Company
Name of Immediate Parent Company

Relationship

Description of Transaction

Brown & Company PLC (BCPLC)

Parent Company

The Company has given Rs.637,926,189 as loans to BCPLC and Recovered Rs.441,341,327 during the
Financial year. (Previous Year - Rs.520,000,000/=)
During the year Company has earned Rs.11,487,539/= an interest income (Previous Year Rs.11,500,544/=) on loans given to BCPLC.
Company has incurred Rs.5,600,000/= (Previous Year - Rs.5,600,000/=) as Management Fee to
BCPLC.

Description of Transaction
The Company has received Rs.2,182,212/= dividend income during the year. (previous year
Rs.600,000/=)

F L C Joint Venture Co.(Pvt) Ltd.(formerly Joint Venture
known as Free Lanka Capital (Pvt) Ltd.)
(FLCJVL)

The Company has received Rs.10,000,000/= dividend income during the year.

S.F.L.Services (Pvt) Ltd. (formerly known Other Affiliate
as Standard Finance (Pvt) Ltd. (SFL)

The company has fully settled loan obtained from S.F.L.Services (Pvt) Ltd during the year. (previous year
Rs.67,735,822/=)
The Company has incurred an interest expense of Rs.62,800,126/= (Previous Year - Rs.61,159,251/=)
on loans obtained from S.F.L. Services (Pvt) Ltd.
The Company has granted a loan of Rs.55,666,409/- during the Financial year.
During the year Company has earned Rs.1,716,051/= an interest income on loans given to S.F.L.
Services (Pvt) Ltd.

Page 95

45.4.1.3 Transactions with Other Related Companies
a)
Company
a).1
Receiving and Providing of Services
Name of Related Company
Relationship
F L C Holdings PLC (formerly known
Joint Venture's
as Free Lanka Capital Holdings Ltd.)
Subsidiary
(FLCHPLC)

The Company has invested Rs.78,000,000 in Commercial papers and divested Rs.50,000,000 during the
financial year.
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45.4.1.2 Transactions with Ultimate Parent Company
Lanka Orix Leasing Co. PLC
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Related Party Disclosures (Contd...)
Name of Related Company
Royal Fernwood Porcelain Ltd., (RFPL)

Relationship
Subsidiary

Description of Transaction
The Company has given a loan of Rs.57,000,000/= to RFPL. (Previous year 56,200,000/=) and RFPL
has fully settled loan during the Financial year.
During the year company has earned an interest income of Rs.8,502,498/= (Previous year
Rs.4,871,800/=) on loans granted to RFPL.
The Company has purchased Rs.61,826,050/- valued land and buildings from RFPL.

Lanka Orix Finance PLC (LOFPLC)

Other Affiliate

No Transitions

Lexinton Holdings Ltd.,(LHL)

Other Affiliate

The Company has recovered Rs.464,882,815/= during the year. (Previous year - Rs.818,946,115)
The Company has earned an interest income of Rs.129,848,896/= on loans granted to LHL. (Previous
year - Rs.107,923,245/=)

Excel Global Holdings (Pvt) Ltd.,(EGHL)

Subsidiary

No Transitions

Millennium Development (Pvt) Ltd.,
(MDPL)

Sub-subsidiary

The Company has recovered the outstanding loan balance amounting of Rs.15,830,000 during the year.
(Previous year- Rs.5,963,766/-)
The Company has earned an interest income of 2,097,951/= on loans granted to MDPL. (Previous year
- Rs.963,766/=)

Taprobane capital (Pvt) Ltd., (TCPL)

Subsidiary

The Company has earned an interest income of 11,843,339/= on loans granted to TCPL. (Previous year
- Rs.1.678,632/=)

Samudra Beach Resorts (Pvt) Ltd.
(SBRPL)

Subsidiary

The Company has paid Rs.250,000,000/- Mobilization advance on behalf of Samudra Beach Resorts
(Pvt) Ltd.
The Company has paid Rs.434,150,973/- Construction payments on behalf of Samudra Beach Resorts
(Pvt) Ltd
The Company has incurred expenses of Rs.19,348,845/-on behalf of SBRPL during the year. (Previous
year- Rs.34,642/-)
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The Company has sold Rs.321,000,000/- valued lands to SBRPL.
Agstar Fertilizers PLC
b)
b).1
b).1.1
b).1.1.1

Other Affiliate

The Company has received Rs.1,950,000/= dividend income during the year.

Group
Transactions between Group Companies
F L C Holdings PLC (formerly known as Free Lanka Capital Holdings PLC) (FLCHPLC) with Other Related Parties
Obtaining and Providing Services
Name of Group Company
Relationship
Description of Transaction
Maturata Plantations Ltd., (MPL)
Joint Venture's
FLCHPLC has granted Rs.150,000,000/= to Maturata Plantations Ltd,during the year(Previous Year
Sub-subsidiary
Rs.115,000,000/-)and received Rs.20,876,800/= (Previous Year Rs.31,573,200/-)from MPL in
part settlement of loan. The Company has earned Rs.30,981,600/= as loan interest.(Previous Year
Rs.9,791,809/-)
FLCHPLC has granted a Corporate Guarantee on behalf of Maturata Plantations Ltd to Lanka Orix Leasing
Co. PLC for Rs.275.0Mn. In return, a Counter Guarantee was received from Maturata Plantations Ltd for
the same amount and on the same terms & conditions
FLCHPLC received Rs.2,757,504/- as a guarantee fee from MPL
Free Lanka Management Co. (Pvt) Ltd.,
(FLMC)

Joint Venture's
Sub-subsidiary

FLCHPLC has earned Rs.86,729,781/=(Previous Year Rs.63,205,674/=) from FLMC as Dividend for
Investment made by the Company.

Name of Related Company
F L C Properties (Pvt) Ltd (formerly
known as Free Lanka Capital Properties
(Pvt) Ltd., (FLCPL)

Relationship
Joint Venture's
Sub-subsidiary

Description of Transaction
Current Year Nil. F L C Properties (Pvt) Ltd had issued 35,000,000 nos. Ordinary Shares to F L C Holdings
PLC (FLCH) at Rs.10/- per share in the Previous year against the advances.
During the year the Company has granted an advance of Rs.290,000,000/- to F L C Properties (Pvt) Ltd
(Previous year - Rs.290,000,000/-).
F L C Holdings PLC has settled Rs.2,583,607 for operational expenses and financial charges on behalf of
the F L C Properties (Pvt) Ltd (Previous year - Rs.10,396,845/-).

Ceylon Estate Teas (Pvt) Ltd (CETL)

Joint Venture's
Sub-subsidiary

Dolekanda Power (Pvt) Ltd (formerly
known as Free Lanka Power 2 Co.(Pvt)
Ltd)(DPL)

Joint Venture's
Sub-subsidiary

Enselwatte Power (Pvt) Ltd (formerly
known as Free Lanka Power 3 Co.(Pvt)
Ltd (EPL)

Joint Venture's
Sub-subsidiary

FLMCL loan granted to CETL Rs.21,500,000/-(Previous year Rs.4,000,000/-)
FLMCL received loan interest Rs.602,603/-(Previous year Nil.
FLMCL has invested in shares for Rs.45,500,000/-(Previous year Nil.)
FLCHPLC has paid Rs.450,729/- (Previous year Nil) to FLP2L as operational expenses

FLCHPLC has paid Rs.10,895,778/=(Previous year Nil) to EPL as operational expenses.

Joint Venture's
Sub-subsidiary

FLCHPLC has Paid Rs.83,518/=(Previous year Rs.16,398/-) on behalf of FLCEBL as Administrative
expenses.

Lanka Orix Finance Co. PLC (LOFC)

Other Affiliate

FLCHPLC has earned Rs.35,791,740/-/- as Gross Interest Income for the Short Term Deposits made in
LOFCL during the year.(Previous Year Rs.25,845,387/-) The Short Term Deposit as at 31st March 2013
amounted to Rs.175,000,000/- (Previous year - Rs.250,000,000/-)
The Company has obtained a revised Speed Draft Facility Rs.80,000,000/-(Originally 115,000,000/-)
and repaid Rs.20,876,800/- during the year (Previous year - Rs.31,573,200). The interest paid for the
loan during the year was Rs.14,288,564/- (Previous year - 6,071,404).

Commercial Leasing & Finance PLC
(CLFPLC)

Other Affiliate

FLCHPLC has earned Rs.42,717,187/- as Gross Interest Income for the Short Term Deposits made in
CLFPLC during the year.(Previous year Rs.11,200,235/-) The Short Term Deposit as at 31st March 2013
amounted to Rs.110,000,000/- (Previous year - 154,868,525/-)

Lanka Orix Leasing Co PLC (LOLC)

Ultimate Parent
Company

FLCHPLC has earned Rs.37,646,233/- as Gross Interest Income for the Short Term Deposits made in
LOLC during the year. (Previous year Rs.14,687,52/-)The Short Term Deposit as at 31st March 2013
amounted to Rs.250,000,000/- (Previous year - Rs.250,000,000/-)

LOLC Factors Ltd (LOLCFL)

Other Affiliate

FLCHPLC has earned Rs.25,202,877/- as Gross Interest Income for the Short Term Deposits made in
LOLCFL during the year.(Previous year Rs.10,430,340/-) The Short Term Deposit as at 31st March 2013
amounted to Rs.100,000,000/- (Previous year - Rs.300,000,000/-)

Maturata Plantations Ltd., (MPL) with Other Related Parties
Name of Group Company
Relationship
Pussellawa Plantations Ltd., (PPL)

Joint Venture's
Sub-subsidiary

Description of Transaction
MPL has paid Rs.152,779/-, Rs.1,264,164/-, Rs.175,000/-, & Rs.581,396/- for generator fuel, office
rent, rubber consultation, and other administration charges respectively
MPL has Incurred Rs.51,000/- for purchase of Rubber Plants.
MPL has been received Rs.215,146/- as reimbursement of administration expenses met by the company
on behalf of PPL.
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b).1.2

F L C Estates Bungalows (Pvt) Ltd
(formerly known as Free Lanka Estate
Bungalows (Pvt) Ltd (FLEBL)
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FLCHPLC has settled during the year a Promissory Note worth of Rs.10,000,000/= issued in favour of EPL
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b).1.2
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b).1.3

Related Party Disclosures (Contd...)
Maturata Plantations Ltd., (MPL) with Other Related Parties (Contd...)
Name of Group Company
Relationship
Description of Transaction
Lanka Orix Leasing Co. PLC.(LOLC)
Ultimate parent
MPL has obtained a revolving fund facility of Rs.275,000,000/- during the year and of which
company
Rs.262,605,732/- is utilized at the end of the date of statement of financial position
MPL has paid off Rs.12,405,888/- (Previous Year - Rs.18,528,342/-) in settlement of Commercial Loans
& loans obtained under ADB Plantation development Project through LOLC.
MPL has paid off Rs.1,965,828/- (excluding Input VAT) (Previous Year - Rs.1,040,312/-) in settlement
of loans obtained under finance leasing arrangements from LOLC.
MPL'S Loan amount payable was increased by Rs.4,180,296/-(Previous Year Rs.22,266,890/-)
MPL has incurred an interest expense of Rs.75,343,752/- (Previous Year - Rs.18,678,793/-) for loans
obtained from LOLC.
Free Lanka Trading Co (Pvt) Ltd., (PLTCL) Other Affiliate

MPL has incurred a vehicle rent expense of Rs.1,200,000/- (Previous year - Rs.900,000/-) for obtaining
vehicles on rent.

F L C Power Holdings (Pvt) Ltd (formerly Other Affiliate
known as Free Lanka Power Holdings
(Pvt) Ltd) (FLPHL)

MPL has incurred expenditure of Rs.58,272/- pertaining to its Hydro Power Projects

Ishara Traders (Pvt) Ltd (ITL)

Other Affiliate

MPL has repaid Rs.225,000,000/- and incurred an interest expense of Rs.37,402,740/- (Previous year Rs.36,846,576/-) during the year

Brown & Company PLC (BCPLC)

Immediate parent
Company

MPL has paid Rs.158,000/-, Rs.30,400/-, Rs.121,050/-, Rs.1,053,842/-, Rs.196,000/-,
Rs.2,900,000/- & Rs.164,970/- for purchase of batteries, C.F.L. bulbs, buying toners & servicing
photocopy machines, generator repair & servicing, purchasing drier trays, purchase of energy efficient fans
and other items respectively

Free Lanka Management Company (Pvt) Ltd., (FLMCL) with Other Related Parties
Name of Group Company
Relationship
Description of Transaction
Pussellawa Plantations Ltd., (PPL)
Joint Venture’s
FLMCL has received Rs.208,930,806/- (Previous year Rs.208,657,052/-) as Management fees
Sub-subsidiary
FLMCL has invested Rs.32,800/- (Previous year Rs.1,140/-) as Share Advance
FLMCL has received Rs.39,435,109/- (Previous year Rs.50,566,151/-) as Dividend.
Ceylon Estate Teas (Pvt) Ltd (CETL)

Other Affiliate

FLMCL loan granted to CETL Rs.21,500,000/-(Previous Year Rs.4,000,000/-)
FLMCL received loan interest Rs.602,603/-(Previous Year Nil.)
FLMCL has invested in shares for Rs.45,500,000/-(Previous Year Nil.)

Melfort Green Teas (Pvt) Ltd (MGTL)

Associate

FLMCL has received Rs.5,850,000/- (Previous year Rs 2,925,000/-) as Dividend

FLMC Sudima Timber Products (Pvt) Ltd

Other Affiliate

FLMCL has incurred Rs.269,525/-,(Previous year Rs.253,181/-) as Preliminary Expenses

Agstar Fertilizer PLC

Other Affiliate

FLMCL has received Rs.157,500/- (Previous year Rs.Nil.) as Dividend

Maturata Plantations Ltd (MPL)

Joint Venture’s
Sub-subsidiary

PPL has paid Rs.3,359,664/- on behalf of MPL (Previous year Rs.2,563,576/-) as Office Rent,
refurnishing cost and other services
PPL has paid Rs.149,773/- to MPL (Previous year Rs.97,742/-) as Vehicle Maintenance & Hiring Charges
PPL has received Rs.149,431/- (Previous year Rs.109,638/-) as reimbursement of Vehicle Maintenance
& Hiring Charges from MPL
PPL has received Rs.2,159,664/- (Previous year Rs.Nil/-) as Office Rent from MPL
PPL has received Rs.706,603/- (Previous year Rs.956,768/-) as reimbursement of Other Services from MPL
PPL has paid Rs.754,344/- to MPL (Previous year Rs.713,952/-) as Communication and Other Expenses.
PPL has obtained office rent Rs.2,159,664/-(Previous year Rs.Nil) has paid Rs.754,344/- to MPL
(Previous year Rs.713,952/-) as Communication and Other Expenses.

The Tea Leaf Resort Holding (Pvt) Ltd
(TLRHL)

Joint Venture’s
Sub-subsidiary

PPL has received Rs.996,040/- (Previous year Rs.Nil) as reimbursement of Valuation fee for Geragama,
Ayr Bungalow & Hotel Project

Ceylon Estate Teas (Pvt) Ltd (CETL)

Joint Venture’s
Sub-subsidiary

Current year Rs.Nil. Previous year PPL had received Rs.5,000,000/- as settlement of Short Term Loan
from CETL.
PPL has earned Rs.74,500/- (Previous year Rs.859,426/-) for supply of Teas to CETL
PPL has paid Rs.239,013/- (Previous year Rs.1,293,908/-) as Communication and Other Expense
PPL has received Rs.591,180/- (Previous year Rs.220,610/-) as reimbursement of Communication and
Other Expenses from CETL
PPL has received Rs.208,583/- (Previous year Rs 35,450.) as reimbursement of Tea sales from CETL
PPL has received Rs.928,000/- (Previous year Rs.Nil.) as reimbursement of Office rent from CETL.
PPL has received Rs.117,160/- (Previous year Rs Nil.) as reimbursement of Survey and labour charges
from CETL
PPL has received Rs.Nil (Previous year Rs.46,530,806/-) as settlement of Short Term Loan by FLCHPPLC
PPL has received Rs.354,255/- (Previous year Rs.290,501/-) as reimbursement of cot of labour and
transport charges from FLCHPPLC
PPL has received Rs.769,066/- (Previous year Rs.801,888/-) as reimbursement of Communication and
other services from FLCHPPLC
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Pussellawa Plantations Ltd., (PPL) with Other Related Parties
Name of Group Company
Relationship
Description of Transaction
Melfort Green Teas (Pvt) Ltd (MGTPL)
Joint Venture’s
Current Year Rs.Nil. Previous Year PPL had earned Rs.7,391,641/- for the Supply of Green Tea Leaf to
Sub-subsidiary
MGTL
PPL has earned Rs.8,324,335/- (Previous year Rs.8,731,366/-) for lent Labour and others to MGTL
PPL has earned Rs.84,836/- (Previous year Rs.27,763/-) for supply of Teas to MGTL
PPL has given Short Term Loans amounting to Rs.Nil (Previous year Rs.28,500,000/-) to MGTL
PPL has obtained an Interest on Short Term Loan amounting to Rs.Nil (Previous year Rs.859,830/-) from MGTL
PPL has earned Rs.8,324,335/- (Previous year Rs.8,731,366/-) for lent Labour and others to MGTL
PPL has earned Rs.84,836/- (Previous year Rs.27,763/-) for supply of Teas to MGTL
PPL has given Short Term Loans amounting to Rs.Nil (Previous year Rs.28,500,000/-) to MGTL
PPL has obtained an Interest on Short Term Loan amounting to Rs.Nil (Previous year Rs.859,830/-) from MGTL.
PPL has incurred Rs.2,064,590/-,(Previous year Rs.3,371,335/-) for tea purchased from MGTL.
PPL has received from MGTL of Rs.2,799,573/- (Previous year Rs.643,430/-) as reimbursement of Other
Expense
PPL has received Rs.200,000/- (Previous year Rs.Nil) as reimbursement of Office refurnishing cost from MGTL
PPL has received Rs.2,423,200/- (Previous year Rs.Nil) as reimbursement of Office and Factory rent from MGTL
PPL has received Rs.260,375/- (Previous year Rs.124,644/-) as reimbursement of Communication and
Other Expenses from MGTL
PPL has paid Rs.179,266/- on behalf of MPL (Previous year Rs.2,563,576/-) as Communication and
other Expenses.
PPL has paid Rs.1,500,000 (Previous year Rs.Nil) for Tea purchases.
PPL has received Rs.8,280,410/- (Previous year Rs.7,027,687/-) as reimbursement of Rent labour and
other charges from MGTL
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45
b).1.4

Related Party Disclosures (Contd...)
Pussellawa Plantations Ltd., (PPL) with Other Related Parties (Contd...)
Name of Group Company
Relationship
Description of Transaction
Thebuwana Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd
Joint Venture’s
Current Year Rs.Nil .(Previous year PPL had received Rs.2,868,511/- as reimbursement of Expenses paid
(formerly known as Hydro Power Free
Sub-subsidiary
on Thebuwana Projects).
Lanka 2 (Pvt) Ltd) (HPF2L)
Stellinberg Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd
(formerly known as Hydro Power Free
Lanka 3 (Pvt) Ltd) (HPF3L)

Joint Venture’s
Subsidiary

Current Year Rs.Nil Previous year PPL had received Rs 2,181,872/- as reimbursement of Expenses paid on
Stellenberg Project.

Free Lanka Trading Company (Pvt) Ltd
(FLTC)

Joint Venture’s
Sub-subsidiary

PPL has paid Rs 157,658/-(Previous year Rs.164,977/-) as Communication and Traveling Expenses
PPL has received Rs 228,977/- (Previous year Rs.247,974/-) as reimbursement of Communication and
Traveling Expenses
PPL has paid Rs 2,700,000/-(Previous year Rs.900,000/-) as Vehicle hiring Charges
PPL has settled Vehicle hiring charges Rs.3,600,000/-(Previous year Rs.Nil)
PPL has earned Rs.124,525/- (Previous year Rs.55,375/-) for supply of Teas to FLTC

Lanka Orix Leasing Co. PLC (LOLC)

Ultimate parent
company

PPL has repaid loan capital of Rs.9,642,444/-(Previous year Rs.9,038,871/-) to LOLC
PPL has incurred an Interest expenses of Rs.4,370,982/-(Previous year Rs.5,729,619/-) on loan
obtained from LOLC.
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b).1.5

Commercial Leasing Company PLC

Other Affiliate

No transactions

Brown & Company PLC

Immediate parent
company

PPL has incurred an expenses of Rs.876,063/-(Previous year Rs 905,186/-) for the Consumables

Agstar Fertilizers PLC

Other Affiliate

PPL has incurred an expenses of Rs.36,757,662/-(Previous year Rs 38,250,261) for the fertilizer
purchased during the year

F L C Hydro Power PLC (FLCHPPLC) with Other Related Parties
Name of Group Company
Relationship
Description of Transaction
Thebuwana Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd
Joint Venture’s
FLCHPPLC has incurred total expense amounting to Rs.87,528,125/- (Previous year - Rs.3,384,487/-)
(formerly known as Hydro Power Free
Sub-subsidiary
for operational expenses and finance charges on behalf of the company.
Lanka 2 (Pvt) Ltd) (HPF2L)
FLCHPPLC has settled Promissory Note worth of Rs.10,000,000/- to the Company during the year
Stellinberg Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd
(formerly known as Hydro Power Free
Lanka 3 (Pvt) Ltd) (HPF3L)

Joint Venture’s
Sub-subsidiary

FLCHPPLC has incurred total expense amounting to Rs.83,296,248/- (Previous year - Rs.7,369,674/-)
for operational expenses and finance charges on behalf of the company
FLCHPPLC has settled Promissory Note worth of Rs.10,000,000/- to the company during the year.

Halgranoya Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd
Joint Venture’s
(formerly known as Free Lanka Power 1 Sub-subsidiary
(Pvt) Ltd.,(FLP1L)

FLCHPPLC has incurred total expense amounting to Rs.1,580,307/- (Previous year - Rs.645,685/-) for
operational expenses and finance charges on behalf of the company.
FLCHPPLC has settled the due of MPL amounting to Rs.1,827,882/- directly on behalf of the company.

Joint Venture’s
Dolekanda Power (Pvt) Ltd (formerly
known as Free Lanka Power 2 (Pvt) Ltd., Sub-subsidiary
(FLP 2L)

FLCHPPLC has incurred total expense amounting to Rs.193,412/- (Previous year - Rs.72,827/-) for
operational expenses and finance charges on behalf of the company
FLCHPPLC has settled the due of MPL amounting to Rs.136,859/- directly on behalf of the company.

Name of Group Company
Relationship
Enselwatte Power (Pvt) Ltd (formerly
Joint Venture’s
known as Free Lanka Power 3 (Pvt) Ltd., Sub-subsidiary
(FLP 3L)

Description of Transaction
FLCHPPLC has incurred total expense amounting to Rs.4,831,093/- (Previous year - Rs.5,147,647/-) for
operational expenses and finance charges on behalf of the company
FLCHPPLC has settled the due of MPL amounting to Rs.908,910/- directly on behalf of the company.

F L C Power Holdings (Pvt) Ltd (formerly Joint Venture’s
known as Free Lanka Power Holding
Sub-subsidiary
(Pvt) Ltd., (FLPHL)

FLCHPPLC has incurred total expense amounting to Rs.159,947/- (Previous year - Rs.304,182/-) for
operational expenses and finance charges on behalf of the company.
FLCHPPLC has settled the due of PPL amounting to Rs.25,440/- directly on behalf of the company.
Company has fully settled the due amount of FLCHPPLC amounting to Rs.489,569/- during the year.

Pussellawa Plantations Limited (PPL)

Joint Venture’s
Sub-subsidiary

PPL has incurred total expenses amounting to Rs.1,168,459 on behalf of the Company.
FLCHPPLC has settled Rs.1,128,958/- during the year.

b).1.7

Name of Group Company
The Tea Leaf Resort Holdings (Pvt) Ltd
(TLRHL)

Relationship
Joint Venture’s
Sub-subsidiary

Description of Transaction
Tea Leaf Resort Holding (Pvt) Ltd has settled Professional Fees of Rs.57,120/- in the previous year. TLRHL
has incurred Rs.19,096/- in the current year which has been subsequently settled.

Pussellawa Plantations Ltd., (PPL)

Ultimate parent
company

PPL has charged Rs.1,335,616/=(Previous year Rs.5,607,692/=) at 15% per annum on the loan
granted to the FLCPL

Sierra Civil Engineering (Pvt) Ltd (SCEL)

Other Affiliate

Sierra Civil Engineering (Pvt) Ltd has billed for the value worked done amounting to Rs.244,140,272/during the year (Previous year - 48,911,744/-)

Melfort Green Teas (Pvt) Ltd., (MGTL)

Associate

FLMCL has received Rs.2,925,000/= (Previous year Rs.8,775,000/=) as Dividend

Rain Forest Eco Lodge (Pvt) Ltd (RFELL)

Associate

RFELL has been issued 6,399,375 nos. of Ordinary Shares equivalent to 20% of issued Ordinary Share
Capital of Rs.10/- each of Rain Forest Eco Lodge (Pvt) Ltd.
MPL has incurred Rs.6,352,363/- (Previous year - Rs.4,516,218/-) for the green leaf bought from
RFELL.
MPL has earned Rs.6,270,363/- (Previous year - Rs.6,432,679/-) as reimbursement of expenses met by
the company on behalf of RFELL.

F L C Hydro Power PLC (FLCHPPLC) with other Related Parties
Name of Group Company
Relationship
Description of Transaction
Halgranoya Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd
Joint Venture’s
F L C Hydro Power PLC has incurred total expense amounting to Rs.5,988,355/- (Previous year (formerly known as Free Lanka Power
Sub-subsidiary
Rs.1,580,307/-) for capital expenses and finance charges on behalf of the company.
1 (Pvt) Ltd)
F L C Hydro Power PLC has settled Promissory Note worth of Rs.10,000,000/- to the company during the
year
F L C Hydro Power PLC has settled the due of Matuarata Plantations Ltd; amounting to Rs.33,697/- for
operational expenses. (Previous year Rs.1,827,882/-) directly on behalf of the company.
Dolekanda Power (Pvt) Ltd (formerly
Joint Venture’s
known as Free Lanka Power 2 (Pvt) Ltd) Sub-subsidiary

F L C Hydro Power PLC has incurred total expense amounting to Rs.132,111/-(Previous yearRs.193,412/-)for capital expenses and finance charges on behalf of the company.

Enselwatte Power (Pvt) Ltd (formerly
Joint Venture’s
known as Free Lanka Power 3 (Pvt) Ltd) Sub-subsidiary

F L C Hydro Power PLC has incurred total expense amounting to Rs.202,061/- (Previous year Rs.4,831,093/-) for capital expenses and finance charges on behalf of the company.
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Free Lanka Capital Properties (Pvt) Ltd., (FLCPL) with Other Related Parties

BROWNS INVESTMENTS PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013

b).1.6

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45
b).1.7

Related Party Disclosures (Contd...)
F L C Hydro Power PLC (FLCHPPLC) with other Related Parties (Contd...)
Name of Group Company
Relationship
Description of Transaction
F L C Power Holdings (Pvt)Ltd (formerly Joint Venture’s
Company has fully settled the due to Hydro Power Free Lanka PLC amounting to Rs.99,389/- (Previous
known as Free Lanka Power Holdings
Sub-subsidiary
year Rs.489,569/-) during the year.
(Pvt) Ltd)
Pussellawa Plantations Limited

b).1.8
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Pussellawa Plantations Limited has incurred total expenses amounting to Rs.3,355,348/- (Previous year
Rs.1,168,459/-) on behalf of the Company.
F L C Hydro Power PLC has settled Rs.3,326,087/- (Previous year Rs.1,128,958/-) during the year.

Excel Global Holdings (Pvt) Ltd., (EGHPL) with Other Related Parties
Name of Group Company
Relationship
Description of Transaction
Millennium Developments (Pvt) Ltd
Sub-subsidiary
No Transactions during the year
Taprobane Plantations Ltd

b).1.9

Joint Venture’s
Sub-subsidiary

Associate

No Transactions during the year

Millennium Development (Pvt) Ltd., (MDPL) with Other Related Parties
Name of Group Company
Relationship
Description of Transaction
Taprobane Plantations Ltd
Associate
MDPL has earned Rs.31,751,424 as rent income.

45.5

Transactions with Key Management Personnel (KMP) of the Company or Parent
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the company as well as its related parties,
directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of the company.

45.5.1 Loans to Directors
a) Group/Company
		

No loans have been given to directors of the company and its parent company.

b) Compensations to Key Management Personnel of the Company and its Parent Company
b).1 Company
		

The Company paid Rs.2,084,000/- as emoluments to the directors of the company paid during the year. (Previous year - 2,400,000/-)

b).2 Group
Emoluments to the directors of the Group are disclosed in Note 12 to the Financial Statements.
Other than those disclosed above, there are no material transactions with the key management personnel of the company and its parent company.
45.6

Amounts receivable from and payable to related parties are set out in Notes 29 and 42 to the Financial Statements. These receivables and payables are unsecured and have no
fixed repayment terms.

46
46.1

Contingent Liabilities and Assets
Contingent Liabilities-Company
The company does not anticipate any contingent liabilities to arise out of any contingent event as at the reporting date except as disclosed below.
A corporate guarantee has been given to ICIC Bank for a sum of USD 7Mn for credit facilities obtained by Brown & Co, PLC.
A corporate guarantee has been given to LOLC Factors Ltd for a sum of Rs.200Mn for factoring facilities obtained by Brown & Co, PLC.
Contingent Assets-Company
There is no contingent assets as at the balance sheet date.

Pussellawa Plantations Ltd.
Harvesting of Pinus Trees
Forest Department has imposed Rs.50.8Mn as the stumpage payable to the Government by Pussellawa Plantations Ltd., (PPL) a sub-subsidiary of the Company for harvesting of
Forest Department’s Pinus Trees at Delta Estate by the Timber Lake Company. However, the company has requested Forest Department to reconsider the stumpage calculation, as
the said fee is more than the market value of the Timber and is not keeping in line with the Supreme Court judgement. Therefore, the amount of liability and the date of liability
are uncertain as at the balance sheet date and will depend on the response of the Forest Department.
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46.2	Group
46.2.1 Contingent Liabilities
Maturata Plantations Ltd
Debenture issued on 19th June, 1997 to the value of Rs.150Mn have been converted to ordinary shares on 22nd June 2002 as stipulated in the agreement. The basis and or
ratio of conversion has been contested by the golden share holder in year 2008

This is an action field by Mr. Justin Batepola against Pussellawa Plantations’ Ltd seeking to recover loss and damages in a sum of Rs.6Mn purportedly caused to him by taking
him into custody by police and by instituting action in the Magistrates Court Maliciously and without reasonable or probable cause.
F L C Properties (Pvt) Ltd (formerly known as Free Lanka Capital Properties (Pvt) Ltd
The company has issued an indemnity in favour of Colombo Municipal Council against any claims or demands for any damages to the adjacent structures and movable and
immovable properties due to the construction and also relating to boundary disputes and/or ownership disputes including access roads and service lines and issues relating to the
height or number of floors issues at the property at No 19, Dudley Senanayake Mawatha., Colombo 08.
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Contingent Liabilities and Assets (Contd...)

46.3

Contingent Assets
There is no contingent assets as at the balance sheet date

46.3.1 Company
There have been no capital commitments contracted but not provided for, or authorized by the Board but not contracted for, outstanding as at the balance sheet date.
46.3.2	Group
a) F L C Holdings PLC (FLCHPLC) (formerly known as Free Lanka Capital Holdings PLC)
		 F L C Holdings PLC is required to invest Rs.600.0Mn in Ordinary Shares of F L C Properties (Pvt) Ltd (formerly known as Free Lanka Capital Properties (Pvt) Ltd) a fully
owned subsidiary, out of IPO Proceeds to finance the Office Building Complex at No. 19, Dudley Senanayake Mawatha, Colombo 08.
b) F L C Properties (Pvt) Ltd (FLCPL) (formerly known as Free Lanka Capital Properties (Pvt) Ltd)
		 FLCPL has entered into an agreement for a lump sum contract with Sierra Civil Engineering (Pvt) Ltd as Designing and Building Contractor to construct a multi storied office
complex at new assessment No. 19, Dudley Senanayake Mawatha, Colombo 08.
		

The total cost of this project excluding the cost of land which is already acquired for Rs.181.674Mn and taxes is estimated to be Rs.625Mn.

		

For the purpose of the aforementioned Project FLCPL has entered into an agreement with Board of Investment on 08th March 2012 to obtain financial benefits/concessions
under the agreement. Accordingly, FLCPL is required to invest in Fixed Deposits not less than USD 7,000,000 or its equivalent in Sri Lankan Rupees.

c) Tea Leaf Resort Holdings (Pvt) Ltd., (TLRHL)
		 TLRHL, a joint venture of the Group has entered into an agreement with Sierra Constructions (Pvt) Ltd for Rs.850.0Mn for the construction of two boutique style hotels as
detailed below;
			

Amount

			

(Rs.Mn)

		

Tea Leaf, Giragama Estate

494

		

Tea Leaf, Ayr Estate

356
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d) Thebuwana Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd (formerly known as Hydro Power Free Lanka 2 (Pvt) Ltd)
		 The Company has entered into various contracts to construct Mini Hydro Power Projects at Thebuwana, Keragala Estate and Kuruwita the total of which as at the Balance
Sheet date are as follows;
			

Amount

			

(Rs.Mn)

		

Commitments on Civil Constructions

		

Commitments on Purchase and Installation of Electro Mechanical Equipment

57.07
8.59

e) Samudra Beach Resorts (Pvt) Ltd (SBRPL)
		 Samudra Beach Resorts (Pvt) Ltd has entered into an agreement for a contract with Sierra Civil Engineering (Pvt) Ltd as Designing and Building Contractor to construct a 4
star Hotel at Kosgoda. The total cost is estimated to be Rs.1,720Mn.
		

Other than as disclosed above, there have been no capital commitments contracted but not provided for, or authorized by the board but not contracted for, outstanding as at
the balance sheet date.

47	Assets Pledged as Collaterals
47.1	Assets Pledged as Collaterals by the Company
Name of Financial Institution

Nature of the
Facility

Facility Granted
(Rs.’000)

Sampath Bank
Bank of Ceylon

Term Loan
Term Loan

700,000
1,137,500

Balance Securities Pledged
Outstanding As At
31st Mar 2013
(Rs.’000)
546,000 Pledged short term quoted investments.
400,000 Mortgaged over freehold lands in Kosgoda.

47.2	Assets Pledged as Collaterals by the Group Companies
The following assets of the Group have been pledged as collaterals for overdraft facilities and Loans obtained by the Group to the respective financial institution concerned.
	Assets Pledged by Group
47.2.1 Maturata Plantations Limited
Facility Granted
(Rs.’000)
a)

b)

c)

Seylan Bank PLC

Asian Development Bank., through
Seylan Bank PLC

Lanka Orix Leasing PLC

Term Loan

Balance Securities Pledged
Outstanding As At
31st Mar 2013
(Rs.’000)

100,000

35,396 Mortgage over leasehold rights of Bramley Estate for Rs.13.0Mn.

13,000

5,417 Primary Mortgage for Rs.36.0Mn Secondary Mortgage bond for
Rs.50Mn over leasehold rights of Gonapitiya Estate.
110,000
125,000 Mortgage over leasehold rights of Alma Estate for Rs.26.0Mn.
9,106

Term Loan (Tea
Relief II)
Term Loan
Bank Overdraft
Temporary Overdraft

150,000
125,000
40,000

Term Loan (PSRP I)

24,567

Term Loan (PSRP II)
Term Loan (PSRP III)

13,400
16,991

PDP Loan under
ADB Plantation
Development Project

4,427

- do -

38,506

- do Loan

59,206
17,759

2,493 Mortgage over leasehold rights of estate land, buildings, fixed
and floating assets of Ragala Estate for Rs.120.0Mn.
2,800
4,655 Mortgage over leasehold rights of estate land, buildings, fixed
and floating assets of Mahan Uva Estate for Rs.19.50Mn.
Mortgage over leasehold rights of estate land, buildings, fixed
and floating assets of Enselwatte Estate for Rs.160.25Mn.
1,803 Primary Continuing mortgage bond for Rs.42.93Mn over the
unexpired leasehold rights over the land called Anningkanda and
Panilkanda Estates in Deniyaya.
Corporate Guarantee of M/s F L C Joint Venture Co. (Pvt) Ltd
for Rs.36.11Mn
13,164 Primary continuing mortgage bond on all that unexpired
leasehold rights over Land, Estate and Premises called "Hayes
Group" in Deniyaya/Rathnapura.
37,003
26,447 On demand promissory notes Rs.17.759Mn
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47	Assets Pledged as Collaterals (Contd...)
Name of Financial Institution

Nature of the Facility

Facility Granted
(Rs.’000)

d)

Lanka Orix Leasing Co PLC
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275,000

262,606 Corporate Guarantee of M/s F L C Holdings PLC for Rs.275.00Mn
A counter guarantee was given by MPL for Rs.275.0Mn in favor
of F L C Holdings PLC on the same terms and conditions with 1%
guarantee fee.
On demand promissory note Rs.275.0Mn
62,550 Fixed deposits certificate for Rs.100Mn
496 Absolute ownership of the asset on finance lease

Peoples Leasing Finance PLC

Speed Draft
Finance Lease

80,000
2,785

Merchant Bank of Sri Lanka PLC

Finance Lease

23,132

4,968 Absolute ownership of the asset on finance lease

Lanka Orix Leasing Company PLC

Finance Lease

5,989

3,276 Absolute ownership of the asset on finance lease

47.2.2 Pusellawa Plantations Limited
Bank of Ceylon
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Revolving Credit
Facility

Balance Securities Pledged
Outstanding As At
31st Mar 2013
(Rs.’000)

Overdraft
ADB - Term Loan

70,000
40,473

ADB - Term Loan
ADB - Term Loan
ADB - Term Loan

48,576
74,714
82,425

Sampath Bank PLC

Overdraft
ADB - Term Loan

70,000
150,000

People's Bank

Overdraft

National Development Bank PLC

8,082 Mortgage over Leasehold right of Stellenburg Estate
4,514 Mortgage over Leasehold right of Hellbodde and Stellenburg
Estates
6,072 Mortgage over Leasehold right of Pussellawa Estate
11,642 Mortgage over Leasehold right of Melfort and Mooloya Estates
20,239 Mortgage over Leasehold right of Kaloogalla, Mooloya &
Geragama Estates
33,326 Mortgage over Leasehold right of Beaumont Estate
81,809 Primary mortgage over Lease hold rights together with Factory
building therein of Halpe Estate

10,000

(33,743) Mortgage over Leasehold right of Hemingford and Keragala
Estates

ADB - Term Loan

117,944

7,654 Mortgage over Leasehold right of Delta,Ayr, Siriniwasa
Pambegama and Elston Estates

Lanka Orix Leasing Company PLC

ADB - Term Loan

219,545

Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC

ADB - Term Loan

150,000

31,795 Mortgage over Leasehold right of Sogama Estate
135,260 Primary mortgage over Lease hold rights together with Factory
building therein of Rothchild and Sanquhar Estates

47.2.3 Millennium Development (Pvt) Ltd
DFCC Bank

Term Loan

40,000

20,741 PPE amount up to Rs.40Mn.

Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC

Bank Over Draft

14,824

12,342 Fixed Deposit amount of Rs.12Mn.

47.2.4 Royal Fernwood Porcelain Ltd
Hatton National Bank

Term Loan

270,783

243,286 Mortgage over Land, Buildings & Factory Machinery

48	Events after the Balance Sheet Date
48.1 Company
The Company has acquired 51% of share holding of Green Paradise Resorts (Pvt) Ltd, on 5th April 2013 for the amount of Rs.500Mn which operates a hotel in Dambulla.
Subsequent to the Reporting date, no circumstances have arisen which would require adjustments to or disclosure in the financial statements except the above.

New Name

Free Lanka Power Holdings (Pvt) Ltd
Free Lanka Power 3 (Pvt) Ltd
Free Lanka Power 2 (Pvt) Ltd
Free Lanka Capital Properties (Pvt) Ltd
Free Lanka Capital Holdings PLC
Hydro Power Free Lanka PLC
Free Lanka Power 1 (Pvt) Ltd
Hydro Power Free Lanka 2 (Pvt) Ltd
Hydro Power Free Lanka 3 (Pvt) Ltd
Free Lanka Capital (Pvt) Ltd
Free Lanka Estate Bungalows (Pvt) Ltd

F L C Power Holdings (Pvt) Ltd
Enselwatte Power (Pvt) Ltd
Dolekanda Power (Pvt) Ltd
F L C Properties (Pvt) Ltd
F L C Holdings PLC
F L C Hydro Power PLC
Halgranoya Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd
Thebuwana Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd
Stellenberg Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd
F L C Joint Venture (Pvt) Ltd
F L C Estate Bungalows (Pvt) Ltd
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48 .2 The name of the following companies have been changed during the Year.
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In Rs.‘000s
49
Segmental Information
49.1 Primary Segments (Business Segments)
49.1.1	Group
a)
Segment Results
Plantation
Investments
				
				
Revenue		
Revenue Expenditure
Gross Profit/(Loss)

Tea

31st Mar
2013

31st Mar
2012

61,168
61,168

210,286
210,286

31st Mar
2013

Rubber

Coconut

31st Mar
2012

31st Mar
2013

31st Mar
2012

31st Mar
2013

31st Mar
2012

1,324,288
1,090,843
(1,225,093) (1,162,175)
99,195
(71,332)

346,793
(200,879)
145,914

440,441
(219,381)
221,060

2,595
(2,294)
301

2,828
(1,662)
1,166

Add : Other Income
454,360
118,944
		
Gain in Fair Value of Biological Assets
28,027
146,290
		
Share of Profit from Equity Accounted Investees (243,182) (101,065)
		
Gain in Fair Value of Investment Properties
9,000
		
Negative Goodwill		
2,656,003 																	
Less : Expenses
(176,697) (541,935)		
Profit/(Loss) before Taxation
104,649
2,342,233
99,195
(71,332)
173,941
367,350
301
1,166
Less : Taxation
(48,809)
Net Profit/(Loss) for the Year
104,649
2,293,424
99,195
(71,332)
173,941
367,350
301
1,166
b) Segment Assets
Non-current Assets
Current Assets
			
Segment Liabilities
Non-current Liabilities
Current Liabilities
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c)

2,920,033
2,385,884
5,305,917

2,802,061
3,330,619
6,132,680

737,059
179,262
916,321

736,667
162,973
899,640

1,667,279
33,986
1,701,265

1,562,322 			
40,751 			
1,603,073
-

771,000
377,158
1,148,158

128,000
1,161,181
1,289,181

475,202
372,489
847,691

495,903
301,115
797,018

44,865
19,632
64,497

43,446 			
21,331 			
64,777
-

677,585

358,497

40,000

58,629

106,912

97,905

-

-

693

273

36,675

41,569

5,545

7,492

-

-

d) Segment Capital Expenses
d).1 Capital Expenditure
d).2 Depreciation/Amortization
*
**
***

Leisure sector includes Excel Global Group results which was acquired in July 2011. Therefore comparative includes only 8 months results
Porcelain sector includes Taprobane Capital Group results, which was acquired in December 2011. Therefore comparative includes only 3 months results
Porcelain sector includes Taprobane Capital Group results, which was acquired in December 2011. Therefore comparative includes only 3 months results

Leisure*

Porcelain **
31st Mar
2013

Construction***

Unallocated

31st Mar
2013

31st Mar
2012

31st Mar
2013

31st Mar
2012

31st Mar
2013

31st Mar
2012

31st Mar
2012

31st Mar
2013

31st Mar
2012

31st Mar
2013

14,120
(17,199)
(3,079)

19,952
(16,914)
3,038

-

-

140,377
(65,907)
74,470

71,272
678,686
190,396
(28,512) (643,529) (174,010)
42,760
35,157
16,386

40,291
(18,450)
21,841

23,209
(22,560)
649

19,208
(6,443)
12,765

Total

31st Mar
2012

31st Mar
2013

10,150 2,624,821 2,056,549
(9,582) (2,177,500) (1,633,134)
568
447,321
423,415

1,620
19,413
33,384
6,113
2,653
26,000
26,050
487,221
116
384
28,143
- (243,182)
24,659
(34,454) 250,000
- 		
(795)
																	
469		
469
(41,765) (25,934) (234,244) (90,458) (38,087)
(6,674) (149,365) (130,228) (639,754)
(3,079)
3,038
24,659
(129) 286,239 (165,703) (67,959) (16,246)
(3,372) (110,484) (103,226)
79,423
- 		
(1,132)
(1,928)
(1,217) (40,251)
(12)
(2,753)
(42,371) (28,853) (45,495)
(3,079)
3,038
24,659
(1,261) 284,311 (166,920) (108,210) (16,258)
(6,125) (152,855) (132,079)
33,928
217,541
11,521
229,062

165,817
69,749
235,566

154,259
22,841
177,100

62,950 4,399,383 4,008,401
910,232
975,157
31,705
296,210
51,395
283,946
212,768
94,655 4,695,593 3,877,573 1,194,178 1,201,414

34,871
97,931
132,802

41,959
154,770
208,599

111,979
4,834
116,813

10,993
1,955
12,948

16,217
16,217

1,969
1,969

4,386
76,968
81,354

10,969
95,203
106,172

354,338
468,674
823,012

307,148
370,532
677,680

13,544
63,240
76,784

15,705
34,243
49,948

397,016
11,986
409,002

59,878

33,571

66,650

13,352

771,856

-

-

-

-

-

22,878

7,725

-

-

22,256

9,127

22,256

57,201

44,843

4,363

2,923

2,737

31st Mar
2012

173,173
146,674
(101,065)
250,000
2,656,003
(802,108)
2,746,092
(122,594)
2,623,498

1,657,317 1,599,831 12,697,974 11,955,165
228,049
157,965 3,539,630 4,212,695
1,885,366 1,757,796 16,237,604 16,167,861
517,366 2,172,330 1,529,530
18,296 1,411,198 2,005,825
535,662 3,583,528 3,535,355

13,730 1,745,759
1,826

124,066

575,684
98,595
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In Rs.‘000s
49
49.2
49.2.1
a)

Segmental Information (Contd...)
Primary Segments (Business Segments)
Company
Segment Results
Plantation

			

Investments
31st Mar 2013
31st Mar 2012

Tea
31st Mar 2013

31st Mar 2012

Rubber
31st Mar 2013
31st Mar 2012

Revenue
71,168
210,286
Revenue Expenditure			Gross Profit/(Loss)
71,168
210,286
																		
Add : Other Income
492,555
179,084
																	
Gain in Fair Value of Investment Properties
9,000 														
Less : Expenses
(197,712)
(541,935)
Profit/(Loss) before Taxation
375,011
(152,565)
Less : Taxation
(48,809)
Net Profit/(Loss) for the Year
375,011
(201,374)
b)

Segment Assets
Non-current Assets
Current Assets
			
Segment Liabilities
Non-current Liabilities
Current Liabilities
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c)

d)

Segment Capital Expenses

d).1

Capital Expenditure

d).2

Depreciation/Amortization

4,542,995
3,042,247
7,585,242

4,103,748
3,244,913
7,348,861

-

-

-

-

771,000
303,473
1,074,473

128,000
1,091,388
1,219,388

-

-

-

-

677,585

358,497

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Hydro Power
31st Mar 2013
31st Mar 2012

Real Estate
31st Mar 2013
31st Mar 2012

31st Mar 2013

Leisure
31st Mar 2012

Unallocated
31st Mar 2013
31st Mar 2012

31st Mar 2013

Total
31st Mar 2012

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4,542,995
3,042,247
7,585,242

4,103,748
3,244,913
7,348,661

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

771,000
303,473
1,074,473

128,000
1,091,388
1,219,388

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

677,585

358,497

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-
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71,168
210,286
71,168
210,286
																		
492,555
179,084
																															
9,000
(197,712)
(541,935)
375,011
(152,565)
(48,809)
375,011
(201,374)
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Financial Instruments - Group
Financial Assets and Liabilities by Categories
Financial assets and liabilities in the tables below are split into categories in accordance with LKAS 39.

50.1

349,214
591,033
240,716
397,794
1,578,757

-

506,623
445,262
225,129
268,450
1,445,464

212,093
617,791
197,965
537,085
1,564,934

1,403,336
1,403,336

1,891,400
1,891,400

-

The fair value of financial liabilities does not significantly vary from the value based on the amortised cost methodology.

Financial liabilities by categories
Financial liabilities measured
	As at 31 st March
at amortised cost
				As at 1 April
		
2013
2012
2011
Financial instruments in non current liabilities
Borrowings
1,317,351
696,307
253,224
Financial instruments in current liabilities
Trade and other payables
525,580
435,282
301,274
Amounts due to related parties
280,805
247,666
243,435
Loan from Related parties
50,000
597,401
771,058
Short term borrowings
54,522
35,955
16,380
Current portion of borrowings
314,793
540,623
50,146
Other current financial liabilities
47,306
66,868
16,324
Bank overdrafts
138,192
82,030
24,554
Total
2,728,549 2,702,132 1,676,395

The fair value of loans and receivables does not significantly vary from the value based on the amortised cost methodology.

4,076,655
4,076,655

For financial assets both at fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale financial assets, the carrying amount and fair value are equal.

Financial instruments in non current assets
Other non current financial assets
Financial instruments in current assets
Trade and other receivables
Loans to Related Parties
Amounts due from related parties
Short term investments
Cash in hand and at bank
Total
235,865
1,239,214

1,003,349
418,350
1,364,931

946,581
920,840

920,840

-

-

-

-

-

-

Financial assets by categories
Loans and receivables (L&R)
Financial assets at fair value through	Available-for-sale financial assets
Held-to-maturity investments
		
profit or loss (FVTPL)
(AFS)
(HTM)
	As at 31 st March			As at 1 April			As at 1 April			As at 1 April			As at 1 April
		
2013
2012
2011
2013
2012
2011
2013
2012
2011
2013
2012
2011

Classes of financial instruments that are not carried at fair value and of which carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value
Current trade and other receivables (Note 27), cash and cash equivalents (Note 31), trade and other payables (Note 40) and loans and borrowings (Note 34).

(i)

In Rs.‘000
50
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
a)
The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged or settled between knowledgeable and willing parties in an arm’s length transaction, other than in a forced liquidation or sale.
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Financial Instruments - Company
Financial Assets and Liabilities by Categories
Financial assets and liabilities in the tables below are split into categories in accordance with LKAS 39.
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Financial liabilities by categories
Financial liabilities measured
	As at 31 st March
at amortised cost
				As at 1 April
		
2013
2012
2011
Financial instruments in non current liabilities			
Borrowings
771,000
128,000
Financial instruments in current liabilities			
Trade and other payables
1,852
40,168
44,859
Amounts due to related parties
74,772
77,011
105,817
Loan from Related parties
541,401
709,634
Short term borrowings
Current portion of borrowings
175,000
384,000
Other current financial liabilities
25,180
48,808
1,645
Bank overdrafts
26,669
Total
1,074,473 1,219,388
861,955
				
The Company has not designated any financial assets or liabilities upon initial recognition, as fair value through profit or loss.
The fair value of financial liabilities does not significantly vary from the value based on the amortised cost methodology.

Both carrying amount and fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are equal.
The fair value of loans and receivables does not significantly vary from the value based on the amortised cost methodology for the Company.

Financial instruments in non current assets													
Other non current financial assets
987,939
934,388
911,832
Financial instruments in current assets													
Trade and other receivables
23,428
81,753
96,310
Loans to Related Parties
535,137
674,356
617,791
Amounts due from related parties
1,114,527
438,454
380,727
Short term investments
- 1,142,420 1,606,390 4,002,641
223,839
405,600
Cash in hand and at bank
2,896
38,360
3,734
Total
1,675,988 1,232,923 1,098,562 1,142,420 1,606,390 4,002,641 1,211,778 1,339,988
911,832
-

Financial assets by categories
Loans and receivables (L&R)
Financial assets at fair value through	Available-for-sale financial assets
Held-to-maturity investments
		
profit or loss (FVTPL)
(AFS)
(HTM)
	As at 31 st March			As at 1 April			As at 1 April			As at 1 April			As at 1 April
		
2013
2012
2011
2013
2012
2011
2013
2012
2011
2013
2012
2011

50.2

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In Rs.‘000
50.3

Financial Assets and Liabilities by Fair Value Hierarchy - Group
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:
Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs with significant effect on the recorded fair values are observable, either directly or indirectly;
Level 3: techniques that use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data
Methods and assumptions used to determine fair values
The methods and assumptions used by the management to determine the fair values of financial instruments other than those carrying amounts reasonably approximate their fair
values as mentioned in Note are as follows;
Instrument Category
Investment in Listed Shares

Fair Value Basis
Published volume weighted average (VWA) prices

Fair Value Hierarchy
Level 1

Fair value of financial instruments by classes that are not carried at fair value and of which carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value
Current trade and other financial receivables and payables, current and non-current loans and borrowings at floating rate, other bank deposits and cash and bank balances.
The carrying amounts of these financial assets and liabilities are a reasonable approximation of fair value, either due to their short-term nature or that they are floating rate
instruments that are re-priced to market interest rates on or near the balance
The Group held the following financial instruments carried at fair value in the statement of financial position:
		
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
				As at 1 April			As at 1 April			As at 1 April
		As at 31 st March
2013
2012
2011
2013
2012
2011
2013
2012
Financial assets
Fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets held for trading
1,108,042
Designated at fair value through profit or loss
Foreign exchange forward contracts
Available for sale
580,485
Total
1,688,527

928,068
825,617
1,753,685

954,798
201,494
1,156,292

658,729
658,729

539,314
539,314

719,346
719,346

-

-

2011
-

Financial liabilities									
Fair value through profit or loss
Foreign exchange forward contracts
Total
-
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50.4

Financial Assets and Liabilities by Fair Value Hierarchy - Company
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:
Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs with significant effect on the recorded fair values are observable, either directly or indirectly;
Level 3: techniques that use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data
The Company held the following financial instruments carried at fair value in the statement of financial position:

		
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
				As at 1 April			As at 1 April			As at 1 April
		As at 31 st March
2013
2012
2011
2013
2012
2011
2013
2012
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets held for trading
1,102,840
Designated at fair value through profit or loss
Foreign exchange forward contracts
Available for sale
567,743
			
1,670,583
Financial liabilities
Fair value through profit or loss
Foreign exchange forward contracts
			

-

2011

916,657
811,867
1,728,524

954,798
201,494
1,156,292

644,035
644,035

528,121
528,121

710,338
710,338

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

In Rs.‘000
51
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
The Group has loans and other receivables, trade and other receivables, and cash and short-term deposits that arise directly from its operations. The Group also holds available-forsale investments and may enter into derivative transactions. The Group’s principal financial liabilities, comprise of loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, and financial
guarantee contracts. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group’s operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Group is exposed
to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
51.1

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit
risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions
and other financial instruments.
The Group trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all clients who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.
With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Group, such as cash and cash equivalents, available-for-sale financial investments, short term investments,
and certain derivative instruments, the Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty. The Group manages its operations to avoid any excessive
concentration of counterparty risk and the Group takes all reasonable steps to ensure the counterparties fulfill their obligations.

51.2

Liquidity Risk				
The Group’s policy is to hold cash and undrawn committed facilities at a level sufficient to ensure that the Group has available funds to meet its short and medium term capital
and funding obligations, including organic growth and acquisition activities, and to meet any unforeseen obligations and opportunities. The Group holds cash and undrawn
committed facilities to enable the Group to manage its liquidity risk.
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a daily cash management process. This process considers the maturity of both the Group’s financial investments and
financial assets (e.g. accounts receivable, other financial assets) and projected cash flows from operations.
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of multiple sources of funding including debentures, bank loans, loan
notes, overdrafts and finance leases over a broad spread of maturities.

Net debt/(cash)

2012

2013

2012

1,639,201
268,450
1,907,651
1,317,351
54,522
314,793
138,192
1,824,858

2,309,750
397,794
2,707,544
696,307
633,356
540,623
82,030
1,952,316

1,366,259
2,896
1,369,155
771,000
175,000
26,669
972,669

2,011,990
38,360
2,050,350
128,000
541,401
384,000
1,053,401

82,793

755,228

396,486

996,949

51.2.2 Liquidity risk management
The mixed approach combines elements of the cash flow matching approach and the liquid assets approach. The business units attempt to match cash outflows in each time
bucket against a combination of contractual cash inflows plus other inflows that can be generated through the sale of assets, repurchase agreements or other secured borrowings.
The Group and Company net cash positions excluding long term borrowings amounting to Rs.82.8Mn (2012 - Rs.755.2Mn) and Rs.396.5Mn (2012 - Rs.997.0Mn)
respectively.
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Short term investments
Cash in hand and at bank
Total liquid assets
Non current portion of borrowings
Short term borrowings
Current portion of borrowings
Bank overdrafts
Total liabilities

Company
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51.2.1 Net debt/(cash)		
		
		Group
	As at 31 st March
2013

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In Rs.‘000
51.3 Market risk			
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.			
Market risk comprise of the following types of risk:			
* Interest rate risk			
* Currency risk			
* Commodity price risk			
* Equity price risk			
				
The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.		
51.3.1 Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the
risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.			
Most lenders grant loans under floating interest rates. To manage this, based on the market condition and outlook of the interest rate, the Group takes mitigating action such as
interest rate swaps, caps, etc.
51.3.2 Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group has
exposure to foreign currency risk where it has cash flows in overseas operations and foreign currency transactions which are affected by foreign exchange movements. Group
treasury analyses the market condition of foreign exchange and provides market updates to the board, with the use of external consultants’ advice. Based on the suggestions
made by Group treasury, the board takes decisions on whether to hold, sell, or make forward bookings of foreign currency.
51.3.3	Equity price risk
The Group’s listed and unlisted equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the investment securities.
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51.3.3.1 Financial assets at fair value through Profit and loss
The Group manages the equity price risk through diversification and by placing limits on individual and total equity instruments. Reports on the equity portfolio are submitted to
the Group’s senior management on a regular basis. The board reviews and approves all equity investment decisions.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

OPERATING RESULTS
Group revenue
EBIT
Finance expenses
Profit before tax
Tax expense
Profit for the year
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Minority interest

2013
Rs.’000

2012
Rs.’000

2011
Rs.’000

2010
Rs.’000

2009
Rs.’000

2,624,821
354,883
(275,460)
79,423
(45,495)
33,928

2,056,549
2,936,425
(190,333)
2,746,092
(122,594)
2,623,498

3,016,077
2,265,431
(130,475)
2,134,956
(31,531)
2,103,425

2,451,530
259,245
(85,224)
174,021
(18,891)
155,130

1,109,960
1,109,960
1,109,960

2,565,533
57,965
2,623,498

1,894,445
208,980
2,103,425

43,568
111,562
155,130

1,109,960
1,109,960

(35,815)
69,743
33,928

2,881,570
9,816,404
3,539,630
(1,708,669)
14,528,935

2,314,008
9,641,157
4,212,696
(1,583,039)
14,584,822

873,840
5,401,275
5,831,489
(1,330,754)
10,775,850

945,282
5,869,711
454,231
(1,390,032)
5,879,192

274,501
5,156,184
309,678
(915,092)
4,825,271

(596,728)
154,390
256,832
(185,506)

(227,606)
(551,117)
581,956
(196,767)

155,078
(4,195,774)
4,589,775
549,079

412,437
(979,393)
587,708
20,752

(507,301)
450,000
(57,301)

KEY INDICATORS
Earnings per Share (Rs.)*
(0.02)
Net Assets per Share (Rs.)**
5.73
Market Capitalization (Rs’000’)
6,138,000
Market price per Share (Rs.)
3.30
Price Earning Ratio (times)
(171.38)
Dividend per Share (Rs.)		
Return on Shareholders’ funds (%)
(0.34)
Return on Capital Employed (%)
2.44
Interest Cover (times covered)
1.29
Current Ratio (times)
2.51
Debt to Equity Ratio (%)
14.82
Number of Shares (‘000)
1,860,000
Dividend Payout Ratio (%)
-

1.38
5.70
6,138,000
3.30
2.39
0.10
24.18
20.13
15.43
2.10
15.45
1,860,000
7.00

3.14
4.36
24.02
21.02
17.36
4.10
11.55
1,810,000
-

0.04
24.97
1.78
4.41
3.04
0.55
15.94
98,000
-

24.67
35.00
71.15
23.00
0.49
19.03
45,000
-

CASH FLOW
Net cash flows from/(Used in) operating activities
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities
Net cash flows from/(used in)financing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

* Earnings per share has been adjusted for weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year (has been adjusted for previous years).
** Net Assets per share has been computed for the total number of shares issued as at 31st March 2013.
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ASSETS EMPLOYED
Property, plant and equipment (PP&E)
Non-current assets other than PP&E
Current assets
Liabilities net of debt
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CAPITAL EMPLOYED					
Stated capital
5,380,000
5,380,000
5,130,000
980,000
450,000
Capital reserves
176,064
97,906
(121,233)
314,194
Revenue reserves
5,097,667
5,132,683
2,879,304
1,153,228
1,109,960
Share holders fund
10,653,731
10,610,589
7,888,071
2,447,422
1,559,960
Minority interest
2,000,346
2,021,917
1,772,007
2,623,271
2,493,788
Total equity
12,654,077
12,632,506
9,660,078
5,070,693
4,053,748
Total debt
1,874,858
1,952,316
1,115,772
808,499
771,523
14,528,935
14,584,822
10,775,850
5,879,192
4,825,271

Subsidiaries, Associates
& Joint Ventures
Parent Company
Brown & Company PLC
Reg. No. PQ25

Mr. I C Nanayakkara
Mr. A L Devasurendra
Mr. N M Prakash
Mr. S.V. Somasunderam
Mr. H P J de Silva
Mr. W.D.K. Jayawardena
Mrs. K.U. Amarasinghe
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Ultmate Parent Company
Lanka Orix Leasing Company PLC
Reg. No. PQ70
Mrs. R.L. Nanayakkara
Mr.I.C. Nanayakkara
(also Alternate Director to Mr. R.M. Nanayakkara)
Mr. W.D.K. Jayawardena
Mrs. K.U. Amarasinghe
Deshamanya M.D.D.Pieris
Mr. R.A. Fernando
Mr. R.M. Nanayakkara
Mr. H. Yamaguchi
Mr. Y. Oshima
Mr. S. Yamana
(Alternate Director to Mr. H. Yamaguchi)
Mr. S. Hamada
(Alternate Director to Mr. Y. Oshima)
Subsidiaries
Excel Global Holdings (Pvt) Ltd
Reg.No. PV 1625
Mr. N.M. Prakash
Mr. P.R. Saldin
Mr. D.S.K.Amrasekera
Taprobane Capital (Pvt) Ltd
Reg. No. PV 73040
Mr. N.M. Prakash
Mr. P.R. Saldin
Mr. D.S.K.Amarasekera
Samudra Beach Resorts (Pvt) Ltd
Reg. No. PV 78179
Mrs. R.L. Nanayakkara
Mr. N.M. Prakash
Mr. D.S.K. Amarasekera
Mr. P.R. Saldin
Mr. R.P. Sugathadasa
Mr. S.V. Somasunderam
Ajax Engineers (Pvt) Ltd
Reg. No. PV 1556
Mr. S. Karunarathne
Mr. J. Sheriff
Mr. A.P. Weerasekera
Mr. D.S.K. Amarasekera
Mr. R.P.Sugathadasa
Mr. P.R. Saldin
Mr. N.M. Prakash

Sub-Subsidiaries
Royal Fernwood Porcelain Ltd
Reg. No. PB 1165
Mr. N.M. Prakash
Dr. L.J.A. Peiris
Mr. P.R. Saldin
Mr. D.S.K. Amarasekera
Fernwood Lanka(Pvt) Ltd
Reg. No. PV 22010
Dr. L.J.A. Peiris
Mr. N.M. Prakash
Mr. P.R. Saldin
Lanka Decals(Pvt) Ltd
Reg. No. PV 16089
Dr. L.J.A. Peiris
Mr. N.M. Prakash
Mr. P.R. Saldin
Excel Restaurants (Pvt) Ltd
Reg. No. PV 9123
Mr. Tilak Selviah
Mr. Kiron Shenoy
Millennium Development (Pvt) Ltd
Reg. No. PV 1792
Mr. N.M. Prakash
Mr. P.R. Saldin
Mr.D.S.K. Amarasekera
Joint Ventures
F L C Joint Venture Co. (Pvt) Ltd
(formerly known as Free Lanka Capital (Pvt) Ltd)
Reg.No. PV 74078
Mr. K. Aloysius
Mr. G.A. Aloysius
Mr. J.M.S. De Mel
Mr. R.P. Sugathadasa
Mr. P.R. Saldin
Mr. N.M. Prakash
Mr. D.S.K. Amarasekera
Mr. G.J. Aloysius
Associate Companies
Taprobane Plantations Ltd
Reg. No. PB 152
Mr.D.A.B. Dassanayake
Mr. R.P. Sugathadasa
Mr. R.R. Anthony
Mr. A.G. Weerasinghe
LOLC Leisure Ltd
Reg. No. PB 3805
Ms. J. Lord
Mr. K.A.K.P. Gunawardena
Ms. V.G.S.S. Kotakadeniya
Virginia International Investments Ltd
Reg. No. PB 4766
Mr. A.R.Gunawardena
Mr. H.D.K.P. Alwis
Mr. A.L. Devasurendra
Mr. D.S.K. Amarasekera
Mr. E.M.M. Boyagoda
Mr. D.W.P. Upali
Mr. T.N.M. Peiris
Mr. E.K.I. De Zoysa
Mr. W.C.J. Alwis

Glossary of Financial
Terms

AMORTIZATION
The systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an intangible asset over its
useful life.
ASSOCIATE
An associate is an entity, including an unincorporated entity such as a partnership,
over which the investor has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture.
AVAILABLE FOR SALE
Non derivative financial asset that are designated as available for sale or are not
classified as loans and receivable, held to maturity investment or financial assets at fair
value through profit and loss.
BIOLOGICAL ASSET
A living animal or plant
CAPITAL EMPLOYED
Shareholders’ funds plus minority interest and debt.
CAPITAL RESERVES
Reserves identified for specific purposes and considered not available for distribution.
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.
CONTINGENT LIABILITY
A condition or situation existing at the balance sheet date due to past events, where the
financial effect is not recognized because:
1. The obligation is crystallized by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events or,
2. A probable outflow of economic resources is not expected or,
3. Is unable to be measured with sufficient reliability.
COST METHOD
Cost method is a method of accounting for an investment whereby the investment is
recognized at cost. The investor recognizes income from the investment only to the
extent that the investor receives distributions from accumulated profits of the investee
arising after the date of acquisition. Distributions received in excess of such profits are
regarded as a recovery of investment and are recognized as a reduction of the cost of
the investment.

DEBT/EQUITY RATIO
Debt as a percentage of shareholder’s funds and minority interest.
DEFERRED TAX
Sum set aside in the financial statements for taxation that may become payable/
receivable in a financial year other than the current financial year.
EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)
Profits attributable to Equity holders of the parent divided by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the period.
EBITDA
Abbreviation for Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortization.
EFFECTIVE TAX RATE
Provision for taxation excluding deferred taxation divided by the profit before tax.
FAIR VALUE
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged between a
knowledgeable or liability settled between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s
length transaction.
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS
A financial asset/liability acquired/incurred principally for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing it in the near term, part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern
of short term profit taking, or a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial
guarantee contract).
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTION
The realized gain recorded when assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into Sri Lankan Rupees on the balance sheet date at prevailing rates
which differ from those rates in force at inception or on the previous balance sheet date.
GAIN ON BARGAIN PURCHASE
Business combination is which the amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed exceeds the aggregate consideration transferred.
GENERAL PROVISIONS
General provisions are established for Trading transactions and others for anticipated
losses.
GROUP
A group is a parent and all its subsidiaries.
IMPAIRMENT
This occurs when recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount.
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ACTUARIAL GAINS AND LOSSES
Is the effects of difference between the previous actuarial assumptions and what has
actually occurred and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions.

CURRENT RATIO
Current assets divided by current liabilities.
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ACCRUAL BASIS
Recording revenue and expenses in the period in which they are earned or incurred
regardless of whether cash is received or disbursed in that period.

Glossary of Financial Terms

INTANGIBLE ASSET
An identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance held for use in the
production/supply of goods/services or for rental to others or for administrative
purposes.
INTEREST COVER
Consolidated profit before interest and tax over finance expenses.
JOINT CONTROL
Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of the control over an economic activity,
and exists only when the strategic financial and operating decisions relating to the
activity require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
JOINT VENTURE
A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties undertake an
economic activity that is subject to joint control.
KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
Key Management Personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly.
MARKET RISK
This refers to the possibility of loss arising from changes in the value of a financial
instrument as a result of changes in market variables such as interest rates, exchange
rates, credit spreads and other asset prices.
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NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE
Shareholders’ Funds divided by the number of ordinary shares in issue.
NET ASSETS
Total assets minus current liabilities minus long term liabilities minus minority interest.
NET PROFIT MARGIN
Profit after tax divided by turnover.
PARENT
A parent is an entity that has one or more subsidiaries.
PROVISION FOR BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS
Provisions are established to reduce the book value of specific assets (primarily debtors)
to estimated realizable values.
RELATED PARTIES
Parties who could control or significantly influence the financial and operating policies
of the business.
RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Present value of a defined benefit obligation
Is the present value of expected future payments required to settle the obligation
resulting from employee service in the current and prior periods.

Current Service Cost
Is the increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from
employee service in the current period.
Interest Cost
Is the increase during a period in the present value of a defined benefit obligation which
arises because of the benefits are one period closer to settlement.
RETURN ON EQUITY (ROE)
Net income, less preferred share dividends if any, expressed as a percentage of average
ordinary shareholders’ equity.
RETURN ON TOTAL ASSETS (ROTA)
Net income expressed as a percentage of total assets.
REVENUE RESERVES
Reserves considered as being available for distributions and investments.
SEGMENT REPORTING
Segment reporting indicates the contribution to the revenue derived from business
segments such as Investments, Manufacturing, Constructions, Plantation, Leisure and
Hydro Power.
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUND
Total of issued and fully paid stated capital, capital reserves and revenue reserves.
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices adopted by an enterprise
in preparing and presenting Financial Statements.
SUBSIDIARY
A subsidiary is an entity, including an unincorporated entity such as a partnership that is
controlled by another entity (known as the parent).
TOTAL DEBT
Long term loans plus short term loans plus intercompany loans and overdrafts.
TOTAL EQUITY
Shareholders’ funds plus minority interest.
WORKING CAPITAL
Capital required financing day to day operations computed as the excess of current
assets over current liabilities.

NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING
BROWNS INVESTMENTS PLC
NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the FIFTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company will be held at Park Premier, Excel World, No. 338, T.B. Jayah Mawatha, Colombo 10 on Twenty
Fourth day of September 2013 at 11.30 a.m.
The business to be brought before the meeting will be :
•

To receive and consider the Report of the Directors and Statement of Accounts and the Balance Sheet of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2013 with the
Auditors’ Report thereon.

•

To re-elect Mr. W.D.K. Jayawardena as a Non-Executive Director of the Company in terms of Article 23(2) of the Articles of Association of the Company.

•

To re-elect Mrs. K.U. Amarasinghe as a Non-Executive Director of the Company in terms of Article 23(2) of the Articles of Association of the Company.

•

To re-elect Mr. I.C. Nanayakkara as an Executive Director in terms of Article 23(2) of the Articles of Association of the Company

•

To re-elect Mr. P.R. Saldin as an Executive Director who retires by rotation in terms of Article 23(6) of the Articles of Association of the Company.

•

To re-elect Mr. R.P Sugathadasa as a Non-Executive Director who retires by rotation in terms of Article 23 (6) of the Articles of Association of the Company.

•

To re-elect Mr. A.G Weerasinghe as an Independent Non-Executive Director in terms of section 210 of the Companies Act No.7 of 2007. Special Notice has been received from a
shareholder, pursuant to Sections 145 and 211 of the Company Act No.7 of 2007 of the intention to propose the following resolution as an ordinary resolution.
Resolution

To appoint M/s. KPMG Chartered Accountants, as Auditors of the Company for the ensuing year.

•

To authorize the Directors to fix the remuneration of the Auditors.

By order of the Board

S.F.L. SERVICES (PVT) LTD
(Formerly known as STANDARD FINANCE (PVT) LIMITED)
Secretaries
Colombo
30th July 2013
Notes:
1

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting may appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his stead.

2

A proxy need not be a member of the Company. A Form of Proxy is found at the end of this Annual Report.

3

The instrument appointing such a proxy must be deposited at No. 34, Sir Mohammed Macan Markar Mawatha, Colombo 3 of the Company before 11.30 a.m. on 22nd
September 2013.
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“That Mr. A.G Weerasinghe who reached the age of 71 years on the 20th May 2013 be and is hereby re-elected as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company and it
is hereby declared that the age limit of 70 years referred to in Section 210 of the Companies Act No.7 of 2007 shall not apply to the said Director”
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Notes

Form of Proxy

Browns Investments PLC - Reg. No. PV 66136 PB/PQ
I/We .................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... of
.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... being a
member/members of the above named Company hereby appoint
Ishara Chinthaka Nanayakkara
Prawira Rimoe Saldin
Nadarajah Murali Prakash
Arachchige Gunaratne Weerasinghe
Don Soshan Kamantha Amarasekera
Stefan Furkhan
Ruwan Prasanna Sugathadasa
Shanker Varadananda Somasunderam
Waduthanthri Darshan Kapila Jayawardena
Mrs. Kalsha Upekha Amarasinghe

or failing him,
or failing him,
or failing him,
or failing him,
or failing him,
or failing him,
or failing him,
or failing him,
or failing him,
or failing her,

Mr/Mrs/Miss............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
of.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
as my/our proxy to represent me/us and to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on the Twenty Fourth day of September
2013 and at any adjournment thereof and at every poll which may be taken in consequence thereof.
Signed this ............................................... day of ............................................... 2013

No. of shares held ...............................................................................................................
Proxy holder’s NIC No. .........................................................................................................
(if not a Director of this Company)

Notes:
1

The full name and the registered address of the shareholder appointing the proxy should be legibly entered in the form of proxy.

2

If the Form of Proxy is signed by an Attorney, the relative Power of Attorney should accompany the Form of Proxy for registration, if such Power of Attorney has not been
registered with the company.

3

In the case of a company/corporation, the proxy must be under its Common Seal which should be affixed and attested in the manner prescribed by its Articles of Association.

4

In the case of joint-holders, the senior should sign this form. Seniority shall be determined by the order in which names stand in the Register of Members in respect of the joint
holding.

5

Every alteration or addition to the form of proxy must be duly authenticated by the full signature of the person signing on the form of proxy.

6

To be valid the completed Form of Proxy should be deposited with the Secretaries at No. 34, Sir Mohammed Macan Markar Mawatha, Colombo 3 not less than 48 hours before
the time appointed for the holding of the meeting.
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Shareholder’s NIC No. .........................................................................................................
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Please provide the following details :

...............................................
Signature/s
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